Axis Communications AB

Arsredovisning for rikenskapsaret 2021-01-01--2021-12-31

Styrelsen och verkstallande direkttren avger foljande
arsredovisning for rakenskapsaret 2021.

Férvaltningsberattelse
Resultatrakning
Balansrakning

Forandring av eget kapital
Kassaflédesanalys

Noter

Undertecknad verkstallande direktor | Axis Comymunications AB intygar att

resultat- och balansritkning faststills pa ordinarie Arsstamma 2022.05,03,
Arsstimman beslot ait godkinna styrelsens forstag titl vinstdisposition,
Undertecknad intygar aven att innehallet i rsredovisningen och revisionsberittelsen
dverensstimmer med originalen,

Lund 20 f.ZS 03,

Ray'Mauritsson
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Axis Communications AB
Org nr 8562536143

FORVALTNINGSBERATTELSE

Axis Communications AB (Axis) ar eft helagt dotterbolag till Axis AB (55624 1-1085). Axis adress till huvudkontoret ar
Granden 1, 223 69 Lund.
Bolagets sate ari Lund.

Verksanthet

Axis Communications AB erbjuder intelligenta sakerhetslbsningar som mojliggte 10r en smariare och sékrare varid.

Som marknadsledare inom natverksvideo driver Axis Communications AB branschub/ecklingen genom att kontinuerligt
lansera innovativa nétverksprodukter, baserade pa Sppna plattfarmiar, som adderar 8kat kundvérde och distribueras ieit
globalt parinernatverk. Axis:Communications AB har |&ngsiktiga relationer med partners och erbjuder dem kunskap

ach banbrylande nétverksprodukter pa befintliga och nya marknader.

Axis Communications AB:s gallande strategi innebar att mota kundernas behov av sikerhiet i helhetsldsningar

i en-varld dar allt fier enheter kopplas samman. Malsatiningen &r st erbjuda de mest relevanta produktema i

ett brett sortiment och tillsammans med partner tithandahalla produkipaket och tjanster kring sékerhetslbsningar
som innehdlier mer 4n enbart natverksvideo. Efter mer 8n 20 ars arbete medinternet of things' star Axis
Communications AB vl rustat att inta en ledande roll dven i den kormmande utvecklingen.

Den lssningsorienterade affarsmodelien innebar att Axis Communications AB tar et stérre och bredare
serviceansvar gentemot pariner och slutkunder. Samtidigt 8r det avgorande atf fortsatt ligna i framxant med
hogteknologiska, innovativa och konkurrenskrafiiga produkier.

Axis Communications AB:s erbjudande gar alt mer fran predukterbjudande tifl Idsningar, dar produkterna
emellertid har en central roll. Axis Communications AB:s sékerhetskameror, encoders, accesskontrolipunkter
och tillbehdér kan integreras med Axis egna videchanteringssystem, saval som med partners produkter

och {janster; och darigenom skapa helhetsldsningar for kunderna: | takt mad att marknaden vaxer och

mognar fortsétter Axis Communications AB satsningen pé elt starkt helhetserbjudande och Gkat ansvarstagande.

Vidsentliga hdndelser under rikenskapséret

Axis dotterbolag Citilog BA; som forvarvades under 2018 i syfte-att uttka Auds erbjudande inom transportsegmentet,
har avyttrats per 30.april. Detta da bolagets forséijningsmodell har visat sig vara for utmanande att integrera i
Axis befintliga férsaliningsmaodell. Axis och Citilog med sin nya dgare, kommer dven framiver ha eif samarbste.

Infér 2021, och med tidigare @rs paverkan av pandemin, var farvantningarna stora pa aterné&mtning.

Farsta halvaret 2021 gick enfigt de firviintade planema, dérefter uppstod:en global brist pé elekironiska
komponenter, For Axis resulterade detta i omedelbara effekter i form av begransad produktionskapacitet

och iagre forsalining. Denna paverkan frvantas fortsétta dven under del av néstkommande ar.

Axis f8rmaga att fortsatta utveckla affirsverksamheten, trots asikra och utmanande marknadsforhallanden, ger
en bra position nérden-globala komponentbristen avtar och videoGvervakningsindustrin barjar aterh8mia sig 2022,

Under rakenskapsdret har nedskrivning giorts med 25,7 msek (33,4) avseende fordran pé dotterforetaget Axis
Communications Lida, Brasilien. Nedskrivningen avser tifl sin helhet fordran fér av datterforetaget giorda inkdp av
Axis produkter och beddmningen har skett utifran dotterfretagets framtida mdjligheter att reglera sina fordringar.
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Flerdrsbversikt (mkr)

Nettoomsditning

Resultat efter finansielia poster
Balansomsiutning

Soliditet

Medeital anstalida

Miljs

Axls Communications AB
Org nr5662563-6143

2021 2020 2018 2018
g624 9718 9647 8531
662 835 1.273 973
5133 5136 4 B77 4136
43% 33% 2% 0%
2338 2239 2032 17495

| syfte att minska verksamhetens och produkiernas paverkan pa& miljsn.arbetar Axis Communications AB:med

en bvergripande miljdpolicy vars malsaltning &r att sékerhetstalla att bolaget tillhandahaller produkter och

iBsningar p& ett effektivt och miljovantigt satt samt att juridiska skyldigheter och milidregler efterlevs. Under

senare arhar livscykelanalyser genomféns pa flera.av:produkterna. Analyserna visaratt en vésentlig del-av
miljspaverkan under produkternas liveeykel harrdr frén deras energiférbrukning vid anvandning i slutinstaliationerna.
Stor vikt lggs daritr pd att | utvecklingsprocessen ta fram produkter med god energiprestanda,
Produkterna kar vidare utfarmats pd ett alit mer kompakt satt vilket minskar materialtgang och transportvolymer.

Féretaget upprattar enligh ARL 7 kap 31 a§ inte ndgon lagstadgad hallbarhetsrapport. Moderforetaget Axis AB (556241-1065)
med saie | Lund upprattar hallbarhetsrapport for koncernen dar foretaget ingar. Denna finns att tiliga pa www.axis.com

Forskning & utveckling

Kostnaderna fr forskning och tiveckiing har okat med 4 MSEK (232) jamftrt med foregéende arach uppgick
{ill 1.948 MSEK (1,944}, vilket uighr 55 % (51%) av de fotala rérelsekostnaderna.
Axis Communications AB:s feknologi bygger pd internt utvecklade ASIC (Application Specific Integrated Circuity
plattformar vilket utgbr kéirnan | Axis Cammunications AB:s produkter. Kretsarna, ARTPEC®, ar optimerade for effektiv
bildhantering och bildkomprimering och dterfinns i de flesta av Axis Communications AB:s produkter, Tillsammans
med Axis Communications AB:s mjukvaruplattformar bildar dessa en mycket flexibelteknologibas pa vilken
varidsiedande produkter; snabbt och kostnadseffektivt kan utveckias. Arbetet med kommande generationers

ARTPEC® har fortsatt urider 2021,

Utldndsk fitial

Bolaget har en filial i Qatar, Axis Communications AB, Doha branch med {6r ndrvarande 3 personer anstélida.
Filialens huvudsyfte &r att marknadsftra och saljd Axis produkier pa den lokala marknaden.

Personal

Vid arets slut uppgick antalet anstélida 1l 2336, vilket &r €n nettotkning med 97 personer sedan

31 decermber 2020, Huvuddelen av. dkningen har skett inom forskning oeh utveckling.

Under dret har ett antal introduktionsutbildningar genormfarts. Alla hyanstaiida genomgar en
feretagsuthildning lokalt dér de far godinblick | foretagets historia, verksamhet och framtid.

Finanslella risker

Bolagets finansiella risker hanteras via styrelsens faststalida policies. Bolaget ar-framst

exponeral for valuta- och kreditrisker.

Viédsentliga risker och osdkerhetsfakiorer

Axis Communications AB &7 en internationell koncern med verksambet och kunder dver hela varlden
och - darmed exponerat for ménga olika risker. Bolagets riskhantering syftar till att minimera riskerna men
ocksd aitt sakerhelstalla att majligheteriia tas tillvara pa basta s&it, for att underlatta fortsatt god tillvébd

och expansion av varksamheten.
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Axis Communications AB
Org nr 556253-6143

Under 2021 har Axis koncernen darAxis Communications AB ingér fortsait formalisera sitt arbetet med
riskhantering. Riskbedamning utféres Arligen | tiltampliga delar av organisationen.

Axis koncernen dir Axis Communications AB ingdr har sedan tidigare implementerat ett intermkontroli-
ramverk baserat pa COSO (Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission)
med véldokumenterade kontroller som testas arligen.

Riskerna for Axis kancemen och darmed aven fér Axis Communication AB, delasini exierna, strategiska,
verksamhetsrelaterade och finansielia risker.

Externa risker-ér sadana sam uppkommer genom handelser i faretagets omvard och sam ar utanfor
féretagets inflvtande eller kontroll. Axis Communications AB. paverkas av den globala makroekonomiska
verkligheten, dir osakerhet paverkar indirekt kundernas investeringsvillighet, investeringsformaga och
finarsieringsmofiigheter. Bland de extérna riskerna aterfinns &ven riskerna f6r naturkatastrofer och olyckor
vilka kan feda till diverse stémingar.i produktforsériningskedjan.

Strategiska risker definiéras som risker som kan hindra bolagst aft na sina strategiska mal eiler

dess arbete mot dessa mal. Axis Communications AB:s strategi att bredda kunderbjudandet med nya
produkter och helhetslasningar medfe 8kade krav pa anpassning och utveckling.. Som ledande aktbr &r
fortsatia framgéngar beroende av.att kunderma ar ndjda med produkter, 10sningar och service,

Det finng dven strategiska risker att medarbetare, leveranttrer eller partner inte agerar pa eft etiskt ochi
alla avssende hallbart satt:

Verksamhetsrelaterade risker 8r sadana som kan innebéra fSriuster tilt foljid av icke andamalsenliga eller miss-
fyckade irterna processer, manskliga fel eller felaktige systern, Fall tillverkning forekommerviss miljdpaverkan vilket
bland arinat kan inkiudera energiférbrukning, diverse utsiaipp och farligt aviall. Ett vésentiigt riskomrade inom verk-
samhetsrelaterade risker for Axis Communications AB &r att bibehalla och vidarautveckia den unika foretagskulturen.

Finansiella risker definieras frémst som valita- ach kreditrisker. Ranterisken beddms som
begransad.

Arbetet med alt hantera och frhalla sig till den riskexponering som bolaget utsatts f6r fortgér |6pande.
Externa och strategiska rigker hanteras framst pa Axis koncernlednings- och styreiseniva medan
verksamhetsrelaterade riskema forelridelsevis hanteras pd Axis koncernlednings- och regionchefaniva.
Hantering och koordinering av finansiella samt férsékrngsbara risker sker huvudsakligen pé bolagets
ekonomi- och finansavdelning. Risker pd det juridiska orradet hariteras av specislister i samverkan
med externa jurister och radgivare i sanrad med bolaget.

Forvintad framtida utveckiing

Bedomningen av utvecklingen pa marknaden och tillstrdmningen av nya projekt &r under radande
omsténdigheter kring pandemins nuvarande o¢h framtida paverkan extra svar att gdra:

Axis fortsatter arbeta for en Okad penetrationen i installationer f6r mindre systerm samt pa tillvaxtmarknader,

ikombination med attlansera ett stort antal innovativa produkter-ach vidareutveckla partnernatverket
for att fortsatt kunna bibehalla positionen som marknadsledare av natverksbaserade videolosningar.

Firslag till vinstdisposition

Tilt &rsstémmans forfogande star;

Balanserade vinstmede! 1684 004859
Arels resultat 517 514 250
Totalt: 2201 519 1089 kronor

Slyrelsen och verkstéllande direkidren foreslar aft vinstmedien disponeras sa

iy rakning balanseras 2201 519 109
2201518109 kronor
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Axis Communications-AB
Org.nr 556253-6143

21.01.01 20.01.01
RESULTATRAKNING «21.12.31 -20.12.31
Nettoomséattning Not4.9 9624 088 9718 367
Kostnad far salda varor -5 746 472 -5 824 789
Bruttoresultat 3877616 4084 578
Farssljningskostnader -431833 -383 162
Administrationskostnader -1063 465 -1.007-058
Forsknings-och utvecklingskostnader <1848 078 -1:943 771
Ovriga rorelseiniakier 216555 352601
Qvriga rirelsekostnader -123 234 -466 161
Rérelseresultat Not5,.6,7.8,9 527 561 687 027
Resultat fran finansiella ihvesteringar
Resultat frin andelar i koncernforetag Not 10 133576 167719
Rénteintakter och liknande resultatposter Mot 11 548 568
Réantekostnader och liknande resultatposter Not12 =56 -48
Resultat efter finansislla poster 661628 835 266
Boksiutadispasitioner Not 13 -48 464 -68.050
Skatt pa arets resultat Not 14 -35 651 -140:951
ARETS RESULTAT 517 514 626 265
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BALANSRAKNING

TiLLGANGAR 21.12.31 20:12.31
Anldggningstiligangar

Immateriella anl3ggningstilgdngar

Rattigheter Mot 15 3285 3657
Summa immaterielia anldggningstiligéngar 3295 3 857
Materiella anfggningstilgangar

Inventarier, verklyg och installationer Not 16 284 211 235592
Pagaende nyanlaganingar och férskott avseende

materiella anldggningstillgangar Not 17 41 359 55364
Summa materiella anlaggningstillgéngar 325570 280 956
Finansiella anlaggningstiligdngar

Andelari dotterforetag Not 18 78686 123518
Uppskjutna skattefordringar Not 19 86402 36 556
Andra langfristiga fordringar 27332 22643
Summa finansiella anldggringstiligangar 162 430 182718
Summa anlidggningstillgangar 481 285 477 33
Omsattningstillgdngar

Varulager

Fardiga varor och handelsvarsr 1419 742 14671 609
Summa varulager 1419 742 1.461.809
Korttristiga fordringar

Kundfordringar Not20 242559 329 568
Fordringar hos koncernfaretag Not 28 2230954 2290563
Aktuell skattefordran 172428 0
Gvriga fordringar 424 782 420442
Farutbetalda kostnader och-upplupna intakter Not 21 97 839 91406
Summa-fordringar 3 188 562 3132079
Kassa och bank Mot'25 53748 84 620 ¢
Summa omsattningstiligangar 4642 053 4 658 608
SUMMA TILLGANGAR 5 133 348 § 135939

Sida g

¥

Thisfle is sealed with a digital signature,

i The seal is 3 guarantee for the authenticity
 ofthe documaent,

Docament 1D
TOAOF5IAETECAGRFIDSEEIGE2ECIADEE




Axis Communications AB

Org nr 556253-6143

BALANSRAKNING

SKULDER & EGET KAPITAL 21,12.31 201231
Eget kapital

Bundet egetkapitat

Aktiekapital Not22 180 160
Reserviond 40 40
Summa bundet eget kapital 200 200
Fritt eget kapital

Balanserat resultat 1684 005 1057740
Arets resultat 517 614 626 265
Summa fritt eget kapital 2201 819 1684 005
Summa eget kapital 220119 1 684 205
Avsitiningar

Gvriga avsattningar Neot 23 240 163 164 D63
Summa avsittningar 240 153 164 063
Skuider

Korifristiga skuider

Leverantérskulder Not 20 1032889 519 B89
Skulder till koncernfiretag Not-28 774830 1786318
Aktuell skatteskuld 0 106 090
Owvriga skulder 181903 235148
Upplupna kostnader och férutbetalda intakter Not 24 702 054 636 228
Summa kortfristiga skulder 2691476 3287 871
Summa skulder 2691 476 3.287 671
SUMMA EGET KAPITAL OCH SKULDER 51433348 5135 939
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FORANDRING EGET KAPITAL

Axis Communications AB

Qrgnr 556253-6143

Rapport éver fardndring eget kapital

Ingdende balans 2020-01-01
Omféring resultat féregdende ar
Arets resiliat

Utgaende balans 2020-12-31

Ing&ende balans 2021-01-01
Omfring resultat foregdende ar
Arets resultat

Utgdende balans 2021-12-31

Bundet egef kapital Fritt eget kapital
Balanserat Arets
Aktickapital  Reservfond resultat resultat
160 40 1464 1086 276
1056 276 -1'G56 276
: 626 265
160 40 1.057 740 526265
160 40 4 087 740 626265
626 265 626 265
517 514
160 40 1684005 517514
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KASSAFLODESANALYS

Axig Communications AB
Org nr 556253-6143

21.01.01 20.01.01
-21.12.31 -20.12.31

Kassafllide frdn den i8pande verksamheten

Resuliat fore finansnetto

Justering for poster som ef ingar | kassaflodet:
Avskrivriingar

Erhallen rénta

Erlagd-rénia

Erhallen utdelning

Realisationsresultat

Férandringar | avsidttningar.

Betald skatt

Kassafldde fran den ldpande verksamheten fare
fardndringar av rérelsekapitalet

Kassafitde fran fordndringar | rérelsekapitalet
Okning/Minskning av varulager
OkningiMinskning av fordringar
Okning/Minskning av kortfristiga skulder
Kassaflode fran den l0pande verksamheten
Kassaflode fran investeringsverksamheten
Forvarv av dotterbolag

Avyttringar av dotterbiolag

Férvary av materiella anlaggningstiigdngar
Forvarv avimmateriella anldggningstiligangar
Forvare av finansiella anldggningstilgangar

Kassaflsde fran investeringsverksamhéten

Kassafiode fran finansieringsverksamheton
Erhalletiamnat koncernbidrag

Kassallde fran finansieringsverksamheten

Arets kassafltde

Likvidaemedel vid arats bbrjan
Farandring: likvida medel

Likvida medel vid arets slut

527661 667 027
113 542 92 653
548 568

56 -48
135844 185 434
3848 5685
76080 50082
-201 741 -230952
655 637 771449
41.867 136219
-36 483 -314 394
-490 165 -327 383
170916 265 891
0 -100
42655 0
-154:200 <123 667
-2059 -1-197
-24.535 -15.653
-138 239 =140 517
-43:848 -60.460
43 848 -80.460
11171 64.914
64920 6
=11 171 54914
Not 25 53749 64 820
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Org nrb56253-6143

NOTER

Not 1 Redovisningsprinciper

Arsredovisningen upprattas med tilldmpning av drsredovisningsiagen och Bokféringsndmndens
alimanng rad BFNAR 20721 Arsredovisning och kencemredovisning (K3).

Koncernredovisning .
Axis Communications AB #r ett helagt-dotterbolag till Axis AB (5566241-1065) med séte i Lund,

Axis AB ingérsedan 2015 som et dotterbolag | Canon-konicernen via et direktagande av. :Canoniihe, Tokyo,
Japan, som ocksa ar det yttersta moderforetaget.

Under 2018 fdrvdrvade Canon Inc yiterligare dgarandelar | Axis AB, till motsvarande ca 98%.

Axis AB:s aklier har per 13 november 2018 avrioterats fran Nasdag: Stockholm:

Darefter pabsriades en process av tvangsinidsen av restsrande aktier. Detla avslutades 11 februari 2020,
ach Carnon In¢innehar nu dérmed ett 100% agande.

Ingen koncernredovisning. har upprattats med stéd av Arsredovisningsiagen 7 kap. 2§ punkt 1.
Koncernredovisning avidmnas av Canon inc. Denna finns tillgdnglig pd www.canon.com

Redovisningsvaluta
Arsredovisningen 4r upprattad i svenska kranor och beldppen anges i {usentals kronar om inget annat anges.

Poster i utidndsk valuta
Transaktioner i utléndsk valuta omréknas enligh de valutakurser som géller pa transaktionsdagen. Fordringar
ach skulder | utlandsk valuta omraknas ill balansdagskurser. Uppkomna kursdifferenser ingér i rirelseresultatet.

Utlandsk filials tiligangaroch skulder omréknas for monetara poster till balansdagskurs och for icke monatéra poster
fill anskaffningsvarde.

Intikisredovisning

Vid forsafining av varor redovisas inkomisten som.intékt nér de vasentliga formaner och risker som ar farknippade med
Sgandet ay varan har overfirts fran bolaget till kGparen. Forsaljningen redovisas efter mervardesskatt, liknande skatter
ochrabatter.

Forskning och ufveckling

Axis teknologh bygger pa intert utvecklade ASIC (Application Specific Integrated Circuit) plattformiar vilka

utgr kdrnan i Axis produkter, Natverksapplikationer haserade pa dessa plattformar, som{ ex

néatverkskameror, skrivarservrar eic betraktas som anpassningar av kémprodukten. Axis tillampar kostnadsféringsmodelien,
vilket innebdr att savil utgifter forutveckling av nya plettformar som ulgifter f6r anpassning av plattformarna fill olika
natverksapplikationer kosinadsférs ndrde uppkommer. Utgifter f8r forskning belastar resultatet det &r de uppkommer.

Koncernbidrdg
Séval erhalina som ldmnade koncernbidrag redovisas som bokslutsdisposition i enlighet med-alternativiegeln.

Inkomstskatter

Aktuell skatt
Aktuell skatt avser inkomstskatt 16r innevarande rakenskapsar samt den del av tidigare rakenskapsars inkomstskatt
som -dnnu inte redovisats, Aktuel skatt beréknas utifran per den skattesats som géller per balansdagen.

Uppskjuten skatt

Uppskiuten skatt &r inkomsiskatt som avser framtida rékenskapsar tll f5fjd av tidigare héndelser.
Redovisning sker enligt balansrakningsmetoden. Enligh denna redovisas uppskjutna skatteskulder och
uppskiutna skattefordringar pa temporara skilinader som uppstar mellan bokférda respekiive skattemassiga
viirden for tillgangar och skulder samt for twiga skaltemassiga avdrag elier underskott.

Uppskjutna skattefordringar netioredovisas mot uppskjutna skatteskulder endast om de kan betalas med ett
niettobelopp. Uppskjuten skatt beraknas ulifran beslutad skattesats pa balansdagen. Effekter-av foréndringar
i géllande skattesatser resultatfors | den pericd féréndringen lagstadoats: Uppskjutna skaltefordringar
reduceras till den del det inte &r sannolikt att den underiggande skattefordran kommer att kunna

realiseras inom dvarskadiig framiid. Uppskiuten skattefordran redovisas som finansiell anldggningstitigang
och uppskjuten skatteskiild som avsatining.

Immateriella/materiella anldggningstiligangar

Axis immaterielia anliggningstillgangar utgdrs av forvérvade réatligheter.

Faivanade rattigheter redovisas till anskaffningsvards efter avdrag f6r ackumulerade. avskrivningar
enligt plan. 'anskaffningsvardet ingér utgifter som direkt kan héanforas til frvarvet av tillgangen.
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Axis Communications AB
Org nr 556253-6143

NOTER

Not 1 Redovisningsprinciper (forts)

Materiella anidggningstillgangar utgars av inventarier; verktyg och instaliationer och redaovisas till
anskaffningsvérde efter avdrag for ackumulerade avskrivningar enligh plan.

| anskaffningsvardet ingar uigitter som direkt kan hanfdras il forvarvet av tillaangen.
Tillkommande utgifter som avser tillgangar som inte delas upp | kamponenter, laggs
anskaffningsvardet om de bedoms ge faretaget framtida ekonomiska fordelar,

Utgifter for lbpande reparationer och uniderhall redovisas som kostnader.

Inga pantsatiningar eller tagande om framtida investeringar {6religger.

Avskrivningar enligt plan
Avskrivningar enligt plan gors beréknat pa ursprungliga anskaffningsvarden med hansyn tagen till eventuslit restvarde
och baseras pa tillgingarnas beddmda nyttiandepariod enligt féljande;

Inventarier, verktyg och installationer : ‘ 3-5ar
Rattigheter 3 &

Beroende pa den mycket snabba utvecklingstakten f6r PC-datarer har ulgifter fér dessa kostnadsféris.

Medskrivning av icke-finansiella tillgangar

Nar.det finns en indikation pa att en tillgangs varde minskat, gars en provhing av nedskriviingsbishov. Har tillgangen
ettatervinningsvarde som ér lagre &n det redovisade virdet, skrivs den ner till atervinningsvardet. Under aret har
inga nedskrivningar gjorts.

Leasingavtal
Samtliga leasingavial dar Axis &r leasetagare redovisas som operationefl leasing (hyresavtal), cavsett om avialen
ar finansiella eller operationella. Leasingavgiften redovisas som en kostnad linjirt Sver feasingperioden:

Finansiella instrument

Axis finansiella instrument utgbrs av Andelar | datterfdratag, Andra finansiella tillgangar, Kundfordringar, Fordringarhios bvriga
koncernforetag, Ovriga fordringar, Kassa och bank, Leveranttrsskulder, Skulder fill Svriga koncemféretag och Ovriga skulder;
Samtliga finansiglla instrument borisett fran Andelar i-dotterférelag redovisas och varderas i enlighet med kapitel 141 K3,
utifran anskaffningsvérdet. Andelari dotterféretag varderas il anskaffningsvardet vid frvérvstidpunkten, vilket

utdver ink8pspriset inkluderar avriga utgifter som &r direkt hanfSrliga till rérelsefdrvarvet samt eventuell fllaggskopeskilling.

Axis tillampar nettoredovisning av kundfordringar | fall dér Axis motpart i sin tur har krav pa Axis | form av
upplupna rabaiter Kopplat 4l inkép fran Axis.

Varulager
Varutagret varderas, mad tilldmpning av forst-in forst-ut-principen; till det lagsta av anskaffningsvérdet och dess netto-
forséljningsvarde. Med nettoférsdliningsvarde avses varornas Trséljningsvarde minskat med forsaljningskostnader.

Avsittningar

Avsatiningar redovisas nér balaget har en innevarande legal efler informel! forpliktelse som ett resultat

av tidigare handelser ach dér ett utfléde av resurser ar troligt for att reglera atagandet, och dér det &r

méjligt att pa-ett tfSHiligh satt berakna beloppet. Foretaget nuvardesheraknar fOrpliktelser som vantas

regleras efter mer &n tolv manader. Den dkning av-avsaltningen som beror pa att tid forflyter redovisas som rantekosinad.

Avsattningar for garantireserver baseras pa historisk information samt akiuella frender som kan tyda pé att framtida
utfall kan komma att gvvika frdy de historiska,

Erséttningar till anstillda {pensioner)
Pensianer {ill-ansialida redovisas enligt Tryggandelagen ach K3s fSrenklingsregel far planer | de fall en pensionspremie betalas.

Faretaget har dven avgiftsbestamda pensionsforpliktelser vilka uteslitande &r berosnde av vérdet pa av foretaget dgda
kapitalfdrsakringar. Kapitalfdrsakringarna redovisas som finansiell anliggningstiligang. T enfighet med fbrenkiingsregein | BFNAR
2012:1 redovisas pensionsforplikisisen som:en avsétining 1ill samma vérde som kapitalforsakringens redovisade vérde.
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Axis Communications AB
Org nr 556253-6143

NOTER

Not 1 Redovisningsprinciper (forts)
Nyckeltalsdefinition

Kassaflddesanalys

Kassafiddesanalys upprétias enligt den indirekta matoden.

Arets forandring av kassabehaliningen delas upp | rérelseverksamhet, investeringsverksamhiet
respekiive finansieringsverksamhet. Utgangspunkten for den indirekta metoden 8r rérelseresultatet
justerat med sadana transaktioner som inte medfort in- eller utbetainingar. Med likvida medei avses
kassa och bankmedel samt Kortfristiga placeringar. Samtliga poster ingdende i likvida medsl kan
relativt omgaende kanverteras till kantanter,

Soliditet

Eget kapital och cbeskattade reserver {med avdrag for uppskjuten skatt) i forhallande 4t
balansomslutning

Not 2 Uppskattningar och beddomningar

Axis gbr uppskattningar och beddmningar om framitiden. De uppskattningar for redovisningsandamal som biir foliden

av dessa kommer, definitionsméassigt, séllan att motsvara det verkligs resultatel. Provning gérs av poster med viss osékerhet,
sasom fordringar och skulder till dotterbolag. | dvrigt - de uppskaltningar-och -antaganden som innebér en betydande risk for
vasentliga justeringar i redovisade vérden for tillgdngar ach skulder under nastkommande &r i huvuddrag behandlade nedan.

Aktier { dotterbolag

Foratt styrka bokforda varden j aklier | dotterbolag gt Axis arligen nedskrivningstester.

Baserat pa nedskrivningstester pa balansdagen gérs beddmningen att det inte foreligger nagra nedskrivningsbehov
av bokforda varden pa andelar | koncemftretag.

Garantier

Sedan 2020 harkoncernen andrat till atterbjuda | allmanhet fem &rs garanti pa sina natverksprodukier, mot tidigare

tre&rs garantiti. Ledningen gor en uppskattning av erforderlig avsattning for framtida garantikrav baserat pd information

om historiska garantikrav.

Upplupna rabatter

Axis:sdlimodell innehaller eit moment med rabatter som regleras | efterhand. Rabatternas storlek avgbrs bland annat-av volym
och 1l vilken typ av partner distributdren séljer produktema: Ledningen gdr en uppskatining av erforderlig reservering fér
upplupna rabatter baserat pa information om historiska rabattnivéer och fBrvantat utfall,

Not 3 Hallbarhefsrapport

Foretaget upprattar-enligt ARL 7 kap 31 a§ inte ndgon lagstadgad halibarhetsrapport. Moderfdretaget Axis AB (556241-1065)
med séte | Lund uppréttar hallbarhetsrapport f5r koncemen dér foretaget ingér. Denna finns att tillga pd www .axis.com
Upplysningar tiff enskilda poster

Not 4 Netioomsittningens fordelning pa geografiska marknader

Nettoomséattningen fordelar sig pa geografiska marknader enligt féiiénde:

21-12:31 20-12-31
Europa {inkl. Afrikka och Mellandstern) 3285896 3153857
Koncernintern farséljning 338 192 6 565 510

Sumima ’ 9.624 088 9719 367
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Axis Communications AB

Org nr §56253-6143
NOTER
Mot 5 Parsonal
Medeltalet anstalida med fordelning pé kvinnor och mén har varit:
Kvinror Méir Totalt
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Sverige (Lund samit Linképing) 617 584 1716 1652 2333 2 236
Qatar (Doha) 0 0 3 3 3 3
Totalt B17T 584 1719 1655 2338 2239
Styrelsen, 3 till antalet, och VD utgdrs av man, | likhet med fSregaends ar,
Léner och.ersatiningar har Uppgatt till;
Styrelse & VD Ovriga Totalt
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Sverige 7502 7116 1367611 1.252 241 1375113 1268357
Qatar [ 0 3998 3308 3958 3308
Totalt 7 502 7116 1371809 1285547 1379 111 1262 663
{varav
Léner och ersattningar Sociala kostnader pensiohskostnader)
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Sverige 1375113 1259357 664 860 615934 210113 192824
Qatar 3998 3308 0 0 0 0
Totait 1379111 1262663 6584 860 6515934 210 113 192 824

Utéver ersétiningen till styrélse & VD enligt ovan har bonus utgatt til dessa med 4.736 tsek ( 0 tsek).
Kostnaden for styrelsearvode tas frén och med drsstamman i april 2016 1 Axis AB (556241-1068).
Av totala pensionskostnader avser 2.470 tsek (2,657 tsek) verkstallande direktor.

Avgangsvederiag

' héndelse av tippsagning galler 6 Verkstgllande direktoren sex manaders émsesidig Uppsagningstid.

Vid uppssigning fran bolagets sida utgar st avgdngsvederlag motsvarande tolv kantanta manadsiéner. Vid uppsagning fran
Verkstallande direki6rens sida skall ingst avgangsvederlag utga. Mellan bolaget och de andra iedande befattningshavarna galler
en dmsesidig uppsagningstid om fre till sex manader. Vid uppsagning fran bolagets sida utgdr ett avgangsvederlag motsvarande
upp il tolv kontanta manadsiéner. Vid uppsédgning fran en ledande befattningshavares sida utgar inget avgangsvederlag.

Not 6 Avskrivningar

21+12-31 20-12-31

Avskrivningar av materiella och immaterielia
anldggningstillgangar uppgar till: 113542 92 853
113 542 92 B53

I resultatrakningen redovisas avskrivningarna i posterna kostnad sélda varor, forsaliningskostnader, administrationskostnader
ach forsknings- och utvecklingskostnader.
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Axis Commiunications AB

Org nr 556253-6143
NOTER
Not 7 Revisionsarvoden
21-12-31 20-12-31
Revisionsuppdraget :
Ernst & Young AB 0 132
Deloitte AB 7800 8084
Revisionsverksamhet utéver revisionsuppdraget a 0
Skatteradgivning 0 {
7800 8216
Not 8 Operationelia leasingavtal
21-12-31 20-12-31
Framtida minimileaseavgifter avseende
icke-uppségningsbarsa leasingavtal
Forfaller til betalning inom ett ar 164582 161 758
Forfaller till betalning senare &n ett men inom & ar 218058 209873
Forfaller till betalning senare &n 5.8¢ 6 827 6 746
390 465 378 377
Under perioden kastnadsférda leasingavgifter 163 192 125091

Avser operationel! leasing hanfordig till f9r verksambeten normala avtal inom angivna intervall avseende ej uppsdgningsbara
hyreskontrakt. De flegta leasingavialén avseende lokaler innehalier villkor som ger ratt att forlénga avtalet ifrdge tnder

en fbrutbestimd tidspericd, och innehaller inte ndgon Gvergang av ganderdtten §ifl fastigheten vid Ioptidens slut
eller ndgra ekonomiska firdelar avseende vardestegring pa leasad fastighet

Not 9 Inkdp och farsiiljning mellan koncernfbretag

21-12-31 20-12-31
Andel av arets fotala inkép som skett frén-andra
féretag inom koncernen 5% 5%
Andel av arets totala forsaijning som skett till andra
faretag inom koncernen 86% 68%
Not 10 Resuitat fran andelar i koncernféiretag

21-12-31 20-12-31
Erhéllen utdelning fran dotterforetag 135 844 185434
Resultat vid avyttringar -2'268 1]
MNedskrivning av.aktier - dolterféretag o -17 715

133 576 167 718

Not 11 Rénteintdkter och liknande resultatposter

21-12-31 20-12-31
Réanteintikter 548 568
Summa 548 568
Not 12 Rintekostnader och liknande resultatposter

21-12-31 20-12-31
Rantekostnader -58 -48
Summa -55 -48
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Axis Communications AB

Org nr 556253-6143

NOTER
Not 13 Bokslutsdispositioner

21-12:31 20:12-31
Erhallet koncernbidrag 21150 4 363
Lamnat koncernbidrag -45 998 654 823
Forandring avskrivningar éver/understigande plan -4 616 -7 580
Summa -48 464 -68 050
Not 414 Skatt pé arets resultat

211231 20-12:31
Forandring uppskjuten skatteintékt/kastnad avseende
temporéra skilinader 18 847 14882
Justering tidigare ars aktuella skatt -1 453 1097
Aktuell-skatt =114 045 -156.940
Summa -55 651 -140 851

Axis har ett redovisat resultat fare skatt pa 613,165 {sek. Om alla redovisade intakter och kostnader var skattepliktiga

respektive avdragsgilla skulle den akluella skatten bli 20,6% av 13,185 =126.312 tsek

Som framgar av tabellen nedan 4r den aktuella skatten 114.045 tsek.

Redovisat resuttat fore skatt

Skatt berdknad enligt gallande skattesats 20,6% (21,4%)

Ei avdragsgilla kostnader
SRillnad i utlandska skattesatser
Ei skattepliktiga intakter
Redovisad aktuell skattekostnad

Not 15 Réttigheter

Ingéende anskaffningsvarde
Arets anskaffningar
Utgaende anskaffningsvérde

Ingaende ackumulerade avskrivningar enligt plan
Arets avskrivring enligt plan
Utgéende ackumulerade avskrivningar ent plan

Utgaende planeniigt restvarde

Sida 15

21-12:31 26-12-31
613 165 767 218
126 312 164 184

15175 30810
542 1830
07984 -89 684
114 045 156 940
21-12-31 20-12-31
33 092 31895
2059 1497
35151 33092
29435 .25 538
24z 3897
31 656 9435
3295 3857

%, This file is sealed with-a digital signature,
L Thesealis a3 guarantes for the authenticity
7 of the document:

Diosument 1D
TOABFEIMEFGUAERERDGEF 38280 2A06E




Axis Communications AB

Org nr 5562583-8143

NOTER
Mot 16 inventarier, verktyg och installationer

21-12-31 20-12-31
Ingdende anskaffmingsvarde 760006 600 255
Arets anskaffningar 119 692 74293
Omklagsificering 48 518 96 317
Forsaljning/Uirangering -73 088 -7 859
Utgdende anskaffningsvéirde 856 126 TE0 006
Ingdende ackumulerade avskriviingar enligt plan 551 487 -463 905
Arets avskrivning enfigt plan =111 124 88 756
Férsdlining/Utrangering 89 236 1174
Utgéende ackumulerade avskrivningar enl plan -593 372 -551 487
Underavskrivningar 22487 27073
Utgaends planeniigt restvarde 284 211 235 592
Not 17 Pagaende nyanldggningar och forskott avseende
materiella anldggningstiligangar

21-12-31 20-12-31
Ingéende anskaffingsvarde 55364 89 407
Arets aktivering 34 6511 52274
Omklassificering -48 516 <98 317
Utgdende anskaffningsvards 41 359 55 364
Not 18 Andelar| dotterfiretag

21-12-31 20-12-31
Ingaende anskaffningsvérde 123 518 141 134
Nyanskafiningar &) 100
Avyttringar -62 538 0
Nedskrivningar Y 17715
Aterforing av nedskrivningar 17715 0
Utgdende anskaffningsvarde 78696 123 519

Antal Andal Kvot Eget Arets Bokfort varde
aktier Réster.och virde kapital resultat
kapital 21-12-31 20-12-31
Axis Netwaork AB 500 100% 100 1079 0 50 50
org.nr, 556508-3451
Séte: Lund, Sverige
Axis Peripherals AB 500 100% 100 101 o 50 50
arg.nr. 556505-1786
Sate: Lund, Sverige
Cognimatics AB 1 000 GO0 100% 0.1 136 0 100 100
org.nr. 556644-0936
Béte: Lund, Sverige
Axis Ex AB 500 100% 200 100 0 100 100
org.nr. 556599-4562
Sate: Lund, Sverige
Axis Communications SA 2500 100% 320 7332 3 8586 320 320
Sate: Frankrike
Axis Communications (UK Ltd 30 000 100% 376 11806 2534 376 376
Sate: Storbritannien
Sida 16
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Axis Communications AB

Org nr 556253-6143
NOTER
Antal Ande! Kvot Eget Arets Bokfort varde
aktier Roster ach vérde kapital resyltat

kapital 21-12-31 20-12-31
Axis Communications GmbH 1 100% 223 7292 5469 223 223
Séte; Tyskland .
Axis Communications inc 10 000 100% 80 176 114 138 866 45 430 45430
Sate: USA
Axis Communications KK 200 100% 762 12:406 4778 9534 9534
Sate; Japan
Axjs Commupications (S) Ple Ltd 50 000 100% 237 29128 16 651 B77 677
Bater Singapare
Axis Communications Ltda 19 889 100%: 208 =70 424 -13 324 3372 3372
Site: Brasilien
Axernet Communications SA 100 000 100% 550 3253 1487 550 550
Sate: Spanien
Axis Communications BY 182 100% 155 4110 2788 155 155
Site: Nederlandema
Axis Communications SA Pty 100 100% 3 1445 258 3 3
Sate; Sydafrika
Axis Communications Ltd 1000 100% 1614 10615 2048 1614 1614
Sste; Hong Kong, Kina
Axis Video Systems India Privat Lid 166.999 100% 301 5333 963 301 31
Satel Indien
Axis Communications Talwan Co,, Lid 100 Qo0 100% 208 1420 o1 208 208
Sute: Taiwan
Axis Cammunications LLC 10000 100% 3 39340 2708 853 853
Sste: Ryssland
Axis Communications Srl 1 100% 92 2943 1452 g2 92
Séte: Italien
Axis Communicacones Chile Ltd - 99% 78 1555 227 79 78
S&te: Chile
Axis Communications Inc 100 100% 1 12:054 2127 1 1
S&ter Canada
Axis Communications Video Sdn Bhd 100 000 100% 218 678 128 219 218
Sate: Malaysia
Axis LAC, S:A: DECV 49988 100% 27 14 760 978 10377 10377
Site: Mexico
Axis Komunikasyon Hizmetleri ve 400 100% 42 327 277 42 42
Tic. Ltd, Sti.
Sate: Turkiet
Axis Communicationss.r.o 100% 78 2 267 923 76 76
Site: Tieckien
Axis Communications OY 1.000 100% 23 1301 457 23 23

Stita: Finland
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NOTER

Axis. Communications AB
Org nr 556253-6143

Axis Communcations de Argenting SA
Séte: Argentina

Axis Communications Poland Sp .z.o.0.
Sate: Poien

Aods Communications Colombia 8:A.8.
Sate: Colombia .

Axis Communications FZE
Séate: Forenade Arabemiraten

Axis Communications AS
Sate: Morge

Axis Communications d.o.o
Bate: Kroatien

Axis Communications (Thailandy Lid,
Séte: Thailand

Axarnet Communications Kenya Lid.
Sate! Kenya

Citilag 8A
Sate: Frankrike

Axis Commdunications Saudi Arabia Ltd.
Sate: Saudiarabien

Bokfdrt varde

Not 19 Uppskjuten skatt

Ingéende saldo

Tillkommande skattefordringar
Aterférda skattefordringar
Utgaende saldo

Temporsra:skilnader:

Uppskjutna skaltefordringar

Avséttning for framtida garantikostnader
Ovriga upplupna kestnader

Uppskjuten skatt hanférig tilt temporara skillnader

- Skattesats 20,6%
Skaltereduktion for inventarieinkdp 2021
Summa

Antal Andel Kot Eget Arets Bokfér varde Bokfért varde
aktier  Rasteroch varde kapital resuttat

kapitat 21-12-31 20-12-31
45000 90% 72 2080 1 140 72 72
500 100% 10 3367 917 192 102
26000000 100% 101 1651 195 101 10%
1 100% 1840 8271 2780 1 840 1840
100 100% 34 508 123 34 34
10 100% 24 495 123 24 24
12 800 100% 313 1477 221 313 313
999 95% 173 507 53 173 173
3 . - - 44 824
500 100% 1000 2117 413 1211 1211
78 698 123518

21-12-31 20:12-31

36 558 21664

56402 36 586

-36.556 -21 864

56 402 36 556

21-12-31 20-12-31

204924 172 331

37277 5125

242201 177456

49893 36 556

& 509 0

56402 36656
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Axis Communications AB

Crg nr 556263-6143
NOTER
Not 20 Kundfordringar 21-12-31 20-12-31
Kundfordringar 242 894 . 320635
Reservering for vardeminskning i fordringar -335 -67
242 559 329568

Axis fillampar riettoredovisning av kundfordringar i fall dér Axis motpart | sin tur har krav pd Axis | form
av upplupna rabatter kopplat till inkdp fran Axis. Per den 31 december 2021 ar effekisn av denna nettoredavisning

en reduktion av kundfordringar med 242 528 tsek (200.488 tsek).

Aven nettoredovisning av kundfordringar emot leverantdrsskulder tillampas for kontrakistilverkare avsesnde fakiuror
utstallda §ill undereverantérer dé produkier skickats for vidarefradiing: Per den 31 december 2021 4r effekten av

denna nettoredovisning en reduktion av kundfordringar resp leverantdrsskuider med 82.010 tsek

Mot 21 Férutbetalda kostnader och upplupna intdkter

(115:333 tsek).

21-12-31 20-12-31
Forutbetalda hyreskostnader 26 098 24 568
Ovriga foruthetalda kostnader 71 741 66 837
Summa . . 97839 g1 4086
Not 22 Eget kapital
Antal aktier
2021 2020 2021 2020
kvotvarde  kvotvarde Antal Antal
A-aktier 100 1680 1-600 1.600
Not 23 Gvriga avséttningar
21-12-31 20-12-31
Produkigaranti 204 101 134 755
Pensionsatagande 36 082 29 308
240 153 164 063

Fran rakenskapsaret 2020 omfattar Axis produktgaranti fam ar, tidigare tre ars garanti, pa samtliga

nétverksprodukier som koncernen erbjuder.

Berdkningen avseende framiida avsatining baseras pé tillganglig information och historiska garantikray,

21:12-31 20-12-31
Belopp vid &rets ingang 134755 88216
Arets frandring garantiresery 89.346 48 539
Belopp vid arets utgang 204 101 134 755

Penslonsatagandet avser delar av ledande befattningshavares pension, dér atagandet | sin helhet

sakrats via kapitalforsakringar.
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Axis Communications AB
Org nr556253-6143

NOTER
Not 24 Upplupna kostnader och forutbetaida intékter :
21-12-31 20-12-31
Forutbetalda intékter 81172 80306
Upplupna lénekostnader 300188 241612
Upplupna sociala avgifter . 193 892 209 131
Owriga upplupna kostriader 126 832 105179
Summa 702 054 536.228
Not 25 Kassa och bank
21-12-31 20-12-31
Banktiligodohavanden 53749 84 920
53 7449 54 920
Ovriga upplysningar
Not 26 Eventualforplikielser
21-12-31 20-12-31
Tuligaranti * 18661 17 464
Kapitalférsakring 27332 22 B43
Ovrigt 2436 0
48 429 40107

“aravy 12,661 (11.464) avser tullgaranti utstaild 4ill forman for Axis Communications:Inc.
Mot 27 Handelser efter rikenskapsarets utgang

inga visentliga handelser har intréffat efter rakenskapsarets utgdng.

Not 28 Transaktioner med nérstaende

Den 31 december 2021 uppgick foretagets kartfristiga fordringar hos koncemféretag till 2:231 Mkr (2.291): Kortfristiga skulder
till koncerndéretag uppgick till 775 Mkr {1.786). Transaktioner med nérstaende ar prissatta pd marknadsmassiga villior.

Samtliga koncernforetag redovisas i not 18 Andelar i dotterforetag. information om styrelseledamoter och koncernledning samt
ersétining til dessa redovisas | not 5 Personal. Utbver den ersattning till styrelseledamster och koncernledning som anges | not 5
har inga transaktioner med nérstiende fysiska personer dgt rum. Axis harinte lamnat 1an, stalit garantier eller ingatt
horgensforbindelse far ndgon av styrelsens ledamdéter eller andra ledande befattningshavare,

Axis Communications AB:s finansiella transaktioner med huvudagaren Canon Inc eller dess dotterforetag harunder aretuppgatt il
137.042 Mkr (131.945). Axis foretagen hyr, sedan tiden fore Canon Inc:s bud, kontorsmaskiner av dotterfiretag il Canon Ing,
Vidare har Axis ach Canon ett samarbete géllande tillverkning av Axis produkter | Canons fabriker. Axis &r ocksa

aterfdrsaljare av Canons natverksvideoprodukter | EMEA ach Americas.

Axis har stéindigt ett-antal pagéende forstudier och samarbetsprojekt med olika foretag. Alla firstudier och samarbetsprojekt &r
vél definierade, sker pa marknadsmiassiga villkor, &r till tydlig nytta 6r Axis.achiregleras vid behov av Non Disclosure
Agréements eller andra avial. Axis har eit antal férstudier och samarbetsprojekt med foretag | Carion-

koncernen. Sammantaget finns det cirka 19 undertecknade Non Disclosure Agreements och ett mindre antal avial.

De viktigaste avtalen reglerar gemensamma utvecklingspraojekt. For ndrvarande pagar-forstudier om majliga tillverkningssynnergier
som skulle gynna Axis, tillghng till kunskap och teknolagikomponenter fran Canon samt om Axis utnyttjande av kunskap

ach korslicensavial inom Canon-koncernen. Om dessa farstudier skulle leda till avial och finansiella transaktioner
mellan Axis och Canon, kKommer aven dessa att ske pa marknadsmassiga goh fir Axis gynnsamma villkor,

Sida 20

! of the documant.

Dacorasnt i

IDABFRIAET Y44 2R SDEEF 358280 LAUGE

This file s sealed with a digital signature.
. Thesealis 3 guarantee for the authenticity




NOTER

Axis Communications AB
Org nr 556253-6143

Not 29 Resultatdisposition
Farslag till vinstdisposition
Balanserade vinstmedel

Arets resuliat
Totalt;

Styrelsen och varkstillande direktéran foreslar att vinstmedlen disponeras sa

i.ny rakning balanseras

Lunid den
Martin: Gren Ray Mauritsson
Ordferande Verkstallande direkior

Var revisionsberattelse har avgivits den

Delpitte AR

Henrik Ekstrom
Auktorisarad revisor
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Deloitte.

REVISIONSBERATTELSE

Till bolagsstamman i Axis Communications AB
organisationsnummer 556253-6143

Rapport om drsredovisningen

tittalanden

Vi bar utfbet en revision av Brsredovisningen for Axis
Communications AB for rakenskapsaret 2021-01-01 -
2021+12531.

Enligt vAr uppfatining har &rsredovisningen uppréttats.i
snlighet med. 8rsredovisningsiagen och.ger.en i alla
vasentliga avseenden rdttvisande bild av Axis
Communications ABs finansiella stélining per den 31
december 2021 och av.dess finansiclia resultat och
kassaflode fér dret enligt Srsredovisningsiagen.
Férvaltningsberattelsen dr forenlig med
Srsredovisningens Svriga delars

Vi tillstyrker darfér att bolagsstdmmen faststaller
resultatrakningen och. balansrikningen.

Grund for uttalanden

Vi har utfért revisionen enligt International Standards ‘on
Auditing (ISA) och god revigionssed | Sverige, Vart
ansvar-enligt-dessa standarder beskrivs ndrmare i
avsnittat Revisorns ansvar. Vi r oberoende i forhdllande
it Axis Commmunications AB énligt god revisorssed i
Syerige och har [ Bvrigt fullgjort vrt yrkesetiska ansvar
enhigt déssa Krav.

Vi.anser att de revisionsbevis vi harinhdmtat &r
tillrdckliga och éndamisenliga som grund for vra
uttalanden:

Styrelsens och verkstillande direktorens ansvar

Det &r styrelsen och verkstillande direktbren som har
ansvaret f6r att rsredovisningen upprittas och att den
ger en rittvisande hild enligt drsredovisaingslagen.
Styralsen-ach verkstallande direktbren ansvarar dven fir
den interna kontroll sorii de beddmet dr nddvandig for
att uppratta en drsredeovisning som inte Innehdller ndgra
vasentligs felaktigheter, vare sig dessa beror p8
wegentligheter eller misstag.

vid upprittandet av Srsredovisningén ansvarar styrelsen
och verkstallande direktiren f0r bedbmningen av
bolagets farmdga att fortsitta verksambeten, De
upplyser, nér 58 dr tilampligt, om forhditanden som kan
paverka form8gan att forts#itta verksamheten och att
anvinda antagandet om fortsatt drift. Antagendet om
fortsatt drift tiliBmpes dock inte om styrelsen och
verkstallande direkidren avser-att likvidera bolaget,
upphiira med verksamheten elier inte har ndgot
realistiskt alternativ till atk géra ndgot av detta.

Revisorns ansvar

Véra mal &r att uppnd en rimlig grad av sakerhet om
huruvida Srsredovisaingen som helhet inte inniehdlier
négra vasentliga felaktigheter; vare sig dessa berar pd

vegentligheter eller misstag, och att lmna en
revisionsberéttelse sorm innehdlier vira uttalanden,
Rimlig sékerhet 8r en hig grad av sékerhet, men ar
ingen garankti fér alt'en revision som utfdrs enligt-ISA
och ged revisionssed i Sverige alltid kemmer att
upptécka en vasentlig felaktighet om en sddan finns.
Felaktigheter kan'uppstd p4 grund av-cegentligheter
ellgr misstag och anses vara vasentliga om de enskilt
sller tllsammans rimligen kan forvantas piverka de
ekonomiska beslyt:som anvandare fattar med grund i
drsredovisningen.

Som-del av.en revision enligt 1SA anvdnder vi
professionellt omdGme och har en professionellt skeptisk
instélining under hela revisionen. Dessutom:

= ideatifierar och beddmar vi riskerna fir visentliga
felaktigheter 1 drsredovisningen, vare sig dessa beror
pé oegentiigheter eiler misstag, utformar och utfir
granskningsatgarder bland annat utifrin dessa risker
ochy Inhamtar. revisionshevis som &r tillréckliga och
andamalsenliga far att utadraen grund for vara
uttalanden. Risken for att inte uppticka én vasenilig
felaktighet Lill foljd av cegentligheter &r hbgre 8n ior
en vasentiig felaktighet som beror pd misstag,
eftersorn cegentligheter kan innefatta agerande |
maskapi; férfalskning, avsiktliga uteldmnanden,
felaktig information eller 8sidosttande av intern
kontréll,

+ skaffar vi oss en firstielse av den del.av bolagets
interna kontroll som har betydelse fér vBr revision
f8r att utforma granskningsatgarder som ar lampliga
med hinsyn till omstdndigheterna, men inte fr att
uttala oss om effektiviteten i den.interna kontrollen,

s ubvérderar vl igmpligheteni da redovisningsprinciper
som anvands-och rimligheten bstyrelsens och
verkstillande direktérens uppskattningar |
redavisningen och tilihGrande upplysningar.

+ drarvien slutsats.om [@mpligheten I att styrelsen
och verkstallande direktéren anvander antagandet
om fortsatt drift -vid apprattandetav
Srsredavisningen: Vi drar ocksd en slutsats, med
grund i de inhdmtade revisionsbevisen, om huruvida
det finns ngon vasentlig osdkerhetsfaktor som
avser sddans hindelser eller forhdlianden som kan
leda:titl betydande tvivel om bolagets formifiga att
fortsitte verksamheten, Omvi drar slubsatsen att
det finhig en visentllg osakerhetsfaktor, miste vii
revisionshertislsen fasta uppmarksamheten pd
upplysningarna 1 rsredovisningen am den visentliga
osikarhetsfaktorn eller, om sidana upplysningar r
otflirdckliga, modifiera uttalandet om
Brsredovisningen. Vara siutsatser baseras pa de
revisignsbevis som inhamtas fram till datumet for
revisignsherattelsen: Dock kan framtida handelser
eiler farhdlianden géra att ett bolag inte ldngre Kait
Forisdtta verksamheten.
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Deloitte.

« plvdrderar vi den Gvergripande presentationen;
strukturen och innehdllet i drsredovisningen,
diribland upplysningarna, och om Arsredovisningen
&terger de underfiggande transaktionerna och
handelserna pd ett sétt som ger en rattvisande bild.

Vi maste informera styrelsen orm bland annat revisionens
planerade omfattning och inrtktning: samt tidpunkten for
den. Vi mAste ocksd infarmera om betydelsefulla
lakttagelsar under revisionen, déribland de eventuella
betydaride brister i den interna kontrolian som vi
identifierat:

. Rapport om andra krav enligt lagar ech

andra férfattningar

Uttalander

Utever v8r revision av Brsredovisningen har vi Bven
utfart en'ravision av styrelsens och verkstillande
direktbrens farvaltning fr Axis Communications -AB f8r
rakenskapsdret 2021-01-01 ~ 2021-12-31 samt av
férslaget till dispositioner betraffande bolagets vinst eller
fariust.

Viitillstyrker att bolagsstémman disponerar vinsten
endigt férslaget | frvaltningsberdttelsen och beviliar
styrelsens ledaméter och verkstailande direktoren
ansvarsfribiet for rakenskapsiret,

Grund for uttalanden

Vi har utfsrt revisionen enligt god revislanssed i Sverige.
Yart angvar eriligt denna beskrive ndrmare | avanitiet
Revigorns ansvar. Vi §r oberoende 1 forhllande till Axis
Commuriications AB enligt god revisarssed i Sverige och
har i gvrih fullgjort VArt yrkesetiska angvar enligh dessa
krav.

Vi ariser &Lt de revigionsbevis vi har inhdmtat 8¢
tillrdckliga och dndamalsentiga som grund fir vira
uttalanden.

Styrelsens och verkstéllande direktGrens ansvar

Det &r styrelsen som har ansvaret for forstaget till
dispositioner betraffande bolagets vinst eller fariust. vid
féirstag till utdelning irinefattar détta bland annat.en
bedamning av. om utdelningen dr. forsvarlig med hdnsyn
till-de krav som holagets verksamhetsart, omfatining
och risker stalfer pa storieken av bolagets egna kapital;
konsofideringsbehov; likviditet och stilining i Svrigt.

Styralsen angvarar T8r bolagets arganisation och
fhrvaltningen-av bolagets angeldgentieter. Detta
innefattar bland annat att fortidpande bedoma bolagets
ekonomiska situation och att tillse att bolagets
arganisation &r utferrmad 53 att bokfdringen;
medelsforvaltningen och bolagets ekonomiska
angel#genhater | Gvrigt kontrolleras pé et betryggande
sétt, Varkstallande direktbren ska skita den l8pande
farvaltningen enligh styrelsens riktlinfer och anvisringar
¢ch bland annat.vidta: de Btgdrder som ar nidviindiga
{or att bolagets bokféring ska fullgbras i
dverensstimmelse med lag och for att
medelsforvaltningen ska skites pa ett betryggande satt.

Ravisorns ansvar

vAit mal betrsffande revisionen av forvaltaiger, ach
darmed vart uttalande:om ansvarsfrinet, drattinhdmta
revislonsbevis fdi-att med en rimlig grad av sakerhét
kirna badéma om ndgon styrelseledamot eller
verkstillande direktéren i ndgot vésentligt avseende:

Asis Commusnications AB
organisationsnummsr 5562536143

2(2)

» f@retagit ndgon Atgird eller gjart sig skyldig til
ndgon frsurmfmelse soiv Kan foranleda
ersdttningsskyldighet-mot-bolaget, eller

« pa ndgotannat satt handlat i strid med
aktiebolagslagen; Srsredovisningslagen eller
bolagsordningen.

vart mil betrdffande revisiorien av frslaget tilt
dispasitioner av bolagets vinst eller forlust, och ddrmed
virt uttalande om detta, dr att med rimlig grad av
sikerhet bedtma om frslaget ¢ férenligt med
aktiebolagslagery.

Rimlig s&kerhet 8r'en hbg grad av sdkerhet, men ingen
garanti fir att en revision sam otflrs anligt god
revisionssed { Sverlge alltid kemmer att uppticka
atgarder eller forsummelser som kan foranleda
ersdttningsskyldighet mot bolaget, eller-att ett farsiag tl
dispositioner av bolagets vinst elfer férlust inte ar
forentigt med akticbolagslagen.

Som én del avien revision enligt god revisionssed i
Sverige anvander vi professionellt omddme och har en
professionellt-skeptisk inskdlning under hela revigionen.
Granskningen av firvaltningen och forslagat till
dispositioner av bolagets vinst eller forlust grundar sig
framst pd revisionen‘av rikenskaperna. Vilika
tillkemmande granskningsatgarder som utfirs baseras
pi vr professionelia bedbmning med utg8hgspunkt
risk och vasentlighet. Det innebér att vifokuserar
gransknifgen p& sdena Btgarder, omraden och
farnalianden som dr viisentliga for verksambeten och
dar avsteg och Svertradelser skulle ha slrskild betydelse
for bolagets situation, Vi gdr igenom gch prbvar Tattade
beslut, beslutsunderlag, vidragna StgSrder achargra
farhBiianden sor ir relevanta fir vart uttalande om
ansvarsfrihet. Som underlag for vt uttalande om
styrelsens forslag till dispositioner betr8ffande bolagets
vinst aller-forlust hiar vi granskat om farslaget dr
forenligt med aktiebolagslagen.

Malmdé ! 2022
Deloitte AB

Henrik-Ekstrém
Auktorigerad revisor
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Fujita Health University -Hospital —-which
hoasts the largest number of hospital beds
i Japan —currently uses Canon’s computed
tornography (" CT7) systems sguipped with

the Precize 1O Engine (PIQE) so that high-
dafinitioncardiac testing can be.carried out
with the latest Al-driven image reconstrug-
tior technology.




FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Kitlions of ver Thousands of ULS. dollars
ecept per shars amountst {Gxrept per shararmonnts)
2021 2020 Change (%) 2021
Netsales ¥3,513,357 ¥ 3,160,243 +11.2 $ 30,550,930
Operating profit 281,918 110,547 +155.0 245,461
income before income taxes 302,706 130,280 +132.4 2,632,226
Netincome attributable to Canon Inc. 214,718 83,318 +157.7 1.867.113
Netincome attributable 1o Canoninc,
shareholiders per share!
~—Basic ¥ 20535 ¥ 79:37 +158.7 3 1.79
—Diluted 205.28 79.35 +158.7 1.79
Total assets ¥ 4,750,888 ¥ 4625614 +2.7 % 41,312,070
Canen Inc, shareholders' equity ¥2,873,773 ¥ 2,575,031 +11.6 % 24,989,330
Motes:

1. Canon's consolidated fmancial statements are prepared in‘accordancs with U5 generally accepted accounting prindples,
2. U5 dollar armolnts are translated from yen at the rate of IPY115=0.5.31, the approximate exchange rate on the Tokyo Foreign Exchanges Marketas of
Decernber 30, 20271, solely for the convenience of the reader.
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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

ill further promote
rand strateqgic transformation
y accelerating reform activities.

Canon
a

FUHO MITARAI
Chairman & CEO
Canah e,
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STRATEGY

Performance in 2021

Folfowingon from 2020, the COVID-18 pandemic continued
1o affect many aspects of qur fives in 2021 . Even though the
pardemic necessitated numerous restrictions, we began to
see economic activity pick up againas the vacdnation rellout
gairad traction and the world adjusted to the reality of having
T coexist wWith the virds, However, iy thie secand half of the
term, demand grew sharply on'the back of the resumptionof
economicactivity Thisresulted in disrupted distribution net-
waorks mainly due to semiconductor and labor shortages, and
it even precipiteted an inflationary economy on'a glotal scale
by driving up the prices of enargy resources and commodities.
ircthis enwironment, Canonlaunched s new five-year man-
agement plan, Phase Vi of the "bxcellent Global Corporation
Plan, "o anhance competitiveness through company-wide
organizational realigniment dnd 1o improve grougswite pro-
ductivity through extensive reinforcement of Canon’s.global

ie
T

headguarter functions under the basic policy of "accelerating
our corporate portfolio transformation by improving produc-
tivity and creating new businesses.”

Withoffice occupancyrates reCovering, we saw signs.of a're-
covery in sales of office multifunction devices (MFDs), while sales
ofinkjet and laser printers increased thanks 1o the implementa-
tion of remote work and home studving. Sales of commercial

Canon Inc. shareholders’ equity ratio (%)

50

55

2018 2019 2020 2021

&1
f

printersirose, thanks to their capacity to produce high-quality
images whilst boosting productivity. Sales of full-frame mir-
rorless cameras waere strorng partly thanks to a recovery in the
digitalinterchangeanle-lens digital camera market. Sales of
network cameras were also buoyed by the resumption of invests
ments.in public facilities and the likeafter grinding to 3 balt
during the COVID-19 pandemic, while sales of videt manage-
rnent systems and video content analytics sottware were alse
salich thanks o heightened demand far mainly remote monitor
ing systems, Stronger demand for medical eguipment during
the pandemic underpinned Tirm sales, primarily Tor CT systems
and diagnostic ultrasound systems. I addition, production of
semicanductormanufacturing equipment continued &t maxi-
il capadity due 1o agoressive investmeant ineguiprment by
chip makers to meet growing demand and addrass supply short-
ages, Furthermore, sales of flat panel display (FPD] lithography
equipment were strong, reflecting solid dermand for televisions,
iaptop comgputers, and other devices,

As.aresult, consolidated net sales for thistermincaeased by
T1.2% year onvvest 1o 3,513 4 billioryen, consolidatedincome
before income taxes increased by 132.4% year onyear 10 302.7
oillion yen, and conselidated net income attributable to Canon

In¢. increased by 157.7% vearon year to 214:.7 billion yen.

CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Phase | Phase i Phase Il Phase IV Phase V
19562000 20042005 2006-2010 20131-2015 20162020

Canontransformed its
mindset 1o focus more
on total (not partiall opti-
mization and profitability
trotsales) and also en
gaged in thorough cash
flow rmanagement. Wein-
troduced various business
innovations, including the
selection and-tonsolida-
tion of business. areas,
and reform activities in
suche areas as production
anid development,

Afring to become Ne.

e all major business
areas, Canon focused on
strenigthening its com-
petitivengss by stepping

up efforls to digitalize its
products inline with the
changing times. We also
reformed how we under
take procurement activities
mainly by sething up-a new
Frocurernent Headguarters,
and we took:steps to
refarm in-house systems,
such-as our personnel

Canon pushed ahead
Witht new growth strat-
egles, including the
snhancerment of existing
Businésses and expansion
of revw Business areas,
and also implemented
supply chaln maragement
and 1T reforms i order
o achieve real-time marn-
agement that:can readily
wdapt to changes,

Canon revised its man-
agermant policy from a
strategy targeling expan-
sior-of scale to'a strategy
airvied atstrengthening its
financial structure. While
actively pursuing tghs,
wie pushied ahead with
the rebuitding of our busi-
ness foaundation 1o serve
as a pewdriver of future
growth with & view to
miaking a foray into indus-
fries that can become new
grewth engines in step

Canon endeavored 1o
reconsolidate My trad-
tomal core businesses,
which include caimeras
ard offics egliprment,
ardrcompleted the first
stage of s grand stra-
tegic transformation by
working to expand.and
strengthnan the following
four new businesses that
urderpin Canon’s future:
cormmercial prifting, net
wiark carneras, medical,
and industrial eguiprment,

system, with the aim of
balancing lifetime -employ-
frignt with merit-based
principles.

with changes'in the fimes,

Excellent Global Corporation Plan

Phase | to Phase V (1996~-2020)

Canon launched the Excellent Global Corpoaration Plar in
1996, and has since strengthened its managemernt base
through each of the plan's Tive-year stages, from FPhase |
through Phase V.,

During Phase |, we stressed thoraugh <ash flow manage-
ment and significantly boosted productivity through the
introduction of our cell production system, along with other
measures, InPhase I, we stepped upeffarts to digitalize
our copying machines and camera offerings, endeavored 1o
strengthen the competitiveness of our products, and estab-
lishied & strong earnings.structire. In Phase W, warode the
globalization and digitization wave to drjve salestand profit
higher. Tn 2007, we achieved record-high sales of 4,481 3
billiorn ven and recorded net profit of 488 3 billionyen. Also
during that period, we turned our attention to OLED displayvs
and welcomed Canon Tokkd (formerly Tokki} and Netherlands-
based printer manufacturer Canon Production Printing
{formerly Océ) into the Canon Group.

During Phase IV, we promoted diversification via the lateral
expansion of our existing businesses into such new businesses

as the Cinema EOS System, while also accelerating our M&A

CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021

strategyin puisult of pew growth. In this manner, weset out
a clear direction for shifting cur focus for growth from B2{ fo
BZB. At that time, we turned Milestone Systerns (" Milestone ™}
arnd Axis Communications (" Axis” ) into subsidiaries inorder
to reinforce and expand our rapidly growing nebwork camers
business, Additionally, Canon Nanotechriclogies {formerly
Molecular rmprints) became a subsidiary, and we furtherad
the development of next-genaration semiconductor manu-
facturing equipment that uses nanoimprintlithography, a
technology thatenables miniaturization and costreduciions
for semiconcuctor devices,

in Phase V, weweicomead Cancn Medical Systems
Corporation("Canon Medical™; formerly Toshiba Megical
Svstemshinto the Canon Group to complete our current busi-
riess setup in line with the basic policy of “embracing the
challenge of new growth through a grand strategic trans-
formation.” Asa manufacturer, we strove unceasingly to
achieve prodguctionreforms.and thorough costreductions. At
the sama time, we accomplished the grand transformation of
our business portfolio by establishing new growth platforms
in commercial grinting, netwerk cameras, medical equip-

ment,.and industrial equipment.



STRATEGY

Phase Vi basic policy and key strategies

Building on pur achievernents thus 1ar, in Phase VI, whigh com-
mienced iy 2021, we aim to surpass our record-high sales figure

achileved in 2007 with atleast 4,500 billon yeninsales in 2025,

o

hefinalyear of Phase’Vl. We plan to.achieve this by “thoroughly
entiancing competitivenassthrough company-wide realignmernt
into a newindustty-otiented business group stricture™ and

"Tnproving group-wide productivity through extensive reinforce-

i

ment of Canon’s giobal headguarter Tunctions,” These efforts
will be guided by our basic policy of "accelerating our corporate
portfoliofranstormation by improving productivity and creating
neve businesses.” We arsalso targsting an operating profit ratio
of 2tleast 12%, a net profif ratie-of 8% or highar, and a'share-

holder equity ratio of 80% or greater,

Strategy 1

Thoroughly enhancing competitiveness through
company-wide realignment into & new industny-oriented
business group struciure

In April 20271, with the objective of fully maximizirig our wide aray
of businasses and technologies, we reorganized our business divi-
sions into the following four groups according 1o thelr affinity with
each other: prnting, imaging, medicsl, and industrial. People-to-
people axchange within thesegroups has already led 1o synergies,
and going forward, wewill make every effort to reinforca organiza-
tions by reviewing techrolegical capabilities and business domains
from the perspective of each group. Also, wewill aim to accelerate
the pace of R&D tocreate ang quickly expand new businesses more
efficientlyby aggressively and boldly pursuing M&A deals-andreal:
iZzing syriergles with Canon's éxisting businesses.

In addition, to coindide with the business shift to the B2B do-
main, we intend to restructure the roles and positioning of business
headouarters and sales companies and focus ondeveloping a
first-rate sales engineer team that accurately reflects the needs
of custernersin product development. Meanwhile, the frontier
business will be upgradedo abusiness headguarters{the Frortier
Business Promotion Headeuarters) so b can accelérate the commer-
cialization of solutions mainly for the raterials business, production

technology, and component sales o outside businesses.

Strategy 1

Thie comtiriuous-feed oress ProStrearn 1000 seriex

The Printing Group mainly consists of multifunction devices,
inkjet printers, laser printers, and commercial and industrial
printers. The primary objactive forthis group—-the largest

of all the industry-oriented hisifiess groups—is to cement a
dominant position I new fields, including commercial and
Industrial printing, and expand sales. By combining Canon’s
nfinting technotogewiih the exceptional productivity and sta-
bility technigues hitherto hoped by Canon Production Printing,
we will look 1o further deepen collaberation and expand into
new commercial and industrial printing domains. In commer-
cial printing, wewill provide products that deliver even greater
image guality and a high leve! of productivity, whilst also
targeting steady growth, mainly by improving workflow and
strengthening the added value of printed material, In industrial
printing, armed with printheads that leverage ourin-house
developed technology, we will strive te-expand our bisiness in
such flelos as printing oflabels and other packagings.

With the-dlgital transformation (DX} of society gaining con-
siderable momentum among corporations, we will werk on
impreving our neupof multifunctien devices inthe office
equipment business. At the same time, becauss a hybridworks
ing style that combines office-hased work with remote work has
now becomewell entrenched at companies, we will expand our
range of products and services that can offer a printing environ-
ment free trom the constraints of physical working logation,
whether it beat home ofin the office. Inthisfield in particular,
we intend toreinforce our developrment of hardware and 507
ware withrthe sim ofproviding cloud-based digital services and
findan optimal batarce between lineun expansion and cost re-
ductions with the useof platform-based product development.
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Strategy 1

The EOS RS full-frame mirrorless camera

The Imaging Group comprises cameras and lenses, broadcast
equipment, prefessional video cameéras, netwaork cameras,
automotive cameras, and similar proddcets,

Irvthis group, the first geal is to seize the numbarone spot in
the global interchangéatile-lens camera market. As thaworld's
leading camera manufacturer, we alm 1o achieve this objective
by expanding olr lineup of camera models and lenses.

The second goal is 1o establish a solid position in nebwork
cameras, forwhich industrial and secietal demandis growing
rapidly. With demand rising In-manufaciuring and market-
ing fields-—far such applications as process management
at production sites orthe retail customer analyses—iwe will
support the development activities of Axis, further deepen
collaboration with Group companies that develop software,
and reinforce oursulte of total solutions, including video
management and video analytics, that only Carion is capable
of delivering.

The third goal isto-develop new businesses in such areas
as KR (VRAR/MR], rermote camera systerns, and free view-
point video. Finally, the fourth objective of this gredpisto
strengthan the key componant husiness in new fields of imag-
ing. In particular in the dynamically evolving mobility market,
imanticipation of a future age of unmanned vehicles, we will
push ghead with strategic development in such businesses
as vehide on=board camera and transportation infrastructure
based on Canon's optical and network technologies,

CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Canon’s CTSystem

Themostimportant objective of the Medical Group isto
capture the biggest share of the.global CT market. Through
aracquisition completed in September 2021, we welcorned
Canada-based Redlen Technologies into the Canon Group
This company beests world-ieading technalogy in semicon-
ductor detector modules, a keydevice innext-generation CT
systems. By collaborating with Redlen Technologies, we can
niow graatly accelerate thedavelopment of Photon Counting
CT technology (PCCT), which is expected 1o be the next=
generation . CT technology. We are also boistering our product
competitiveness in the areas of MR and diagnostic ultrasound
systerns by ensuring high-quality images and lowering costs.
Also, in the field of healthcare IT, we expect 19 s2e growtn In
dermand for Al-driven solutions such .as radiology interpreta-
tion and diagnostic support for Tutlre personalized medical
services. These are the kind of opportunities we intend to pur-
sue in orderto achieve steady growth:

Boosting sales overseas is another priority. We will focus
orimarily on the LS. market and seek 1o expand our share In
other overseas markets by hastening the expansion of sales
bases and sales personnel



STRATEGY

Bibibi o i

Flat Panel Display (FPD) lithography eguiprment
The industrial Group-handles semiconductor and flat panel
display (FED) lithography systems; Canon Tokkl's OLED panel
manufacturing systerms, Canon Anelva’s sputtering equip-
rmant, Canon Machinery’s die bonders, and similar product
lines, In-this-group wewill endeavor to-scale up-and aug-
mentbusiness operations by combining the group’s collective
strengtns to meet the massive demand for sericonductors
and display panels,

inthe area of semicanductor lithegraphy systemns;-we il
alm to maintain the dominant position of our =line systems
and capitalize upon favorable market cenditions {o expand
our market share of Kif systems. We are also taking up the
chalierige of expanding the use of cur nancimprint ithogra-
phy technology. Moreover, intermsof economic security In
developed cotintrigsand regiofis, there is a tendency Tor chips
1o be produced domestically or within the region. In light of
this we intend to focus our efforts on expanding sales of semi-
conductor lithography sguipmentnot only in Asia, but alsoin
Western'markets.

As for display pane! manufacturing equipment, we will
strive to further increase our market share by offering increas-
ingly higher resolution In LCDs and improving manufacturing
productivity, Forthe praduction of OLEDs we are'working
to redice the costs associated with the current deposition
technique and we are alsé accelerating the development of
equitpment for new technigues and the In-house produciion
of materials. For sputtering eguipment and die bonders, the
industrial group will work togsther 1o leverage its distinctive
technology-and expand business operations

FRONTIER BUSINESS

The Frontier Business Promction Headguarters,
which was upgraded 1o a business headquarters
in 2021, draws upon the wealth of technologies
Canon has cultivated thus far to explore come-
mercial potentialin the three fields of life sciences;
materials, and solutions. Going forward, itwill
work dosely with Canon HO's 8D departrnent
and each business headquarters 1o engagein a
process of selection and-concentration to clearly
identify the areas targeted for commercialization
and someday establishour fifth ard even the sixth
industry-oriented business groups.

Complex ceramiclattice structure in hollow shapes
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Strategy 2

Improving group-wide productivity through extensive
reinforcement of Canon's global headquarter functions
Another key strategy of Phase Vi will be the extensive reln:
torcement of Canon's global headguarter functions inorder
o achieve a total optimization across the aforementioned
industry-oriented business groups. Thereare four points of
focusin this strategy.

The first Is "thorough cash fiow management.” Aswe
needed to borrow funds to facilitate the grand transformation
ot our business portfolio-through M&Hs, we plan onrepaying
these debts in full during the period of Phase Vi so astopre-
pare for the nextmajor investment or-eConemic crisis. We will
alsoaim to rectify the flow of capital within the Group and
obtain a high credit rating of AAor Aat.

The second focus peintis “establishing & more dynarmic and
migrit-based HRE mandgemant systern, ™ Wa will improve the
link between performance and salary white switching te asys-
ternthat betterreflects the abilities of erpployees. Atthe same
time, we intend to strengthen HR develooment and ancour-

age career transitions within the Company inHine with the

in conclusion

Given that COVID-19 vaccinations-comtinue to be adminis:
tered worldwide and the development and use of therapeutic
drugs has also begun, we expect economic activity to gradu-
ally normalize and the balance of supply and demand Tor
sermiconductors and other components and productsto
stabifize. Thiswill lixely drive a'full-fledged tecovery Inem-
ployment, income, dnd consuraption. Amid this-environmant,

the Canen Group is pushing ahead with the Group-wide

CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021

transformation of our business portfolio, We will alse push
ahead with the nurtiring of e digital-savwy workforce and the
utilization of IT tools as we endeavor to-boost productivity
amid the digital transtormation (DX}

The third peint'is “promoting costraduction Initiatives
across the whale Group.™ We will aim 1o lower the tost-
of-sates ratio by 50% through the searnless automation of
design, production engineering, and manufacturing floor
processes, as well as the in-house production of manirfactur-
ing equipment, On topof this, we will bulld a resifientsupply
network for minimizing the impacts of unexpecied events on
orodiiction, procurement, and distribution.

The fourth point is*“focusing on innovations that advance
new product development and responding to the rapidly chang-
ing business erivironrment. ™ This invelves the anticipation of exit
points three to five years from now and furthering the develop-
mentof technologies and devices that will Be indispensable in
thetuture. And o a comipany-wide leval, we will take staps to
tackle various issues pertaining to decarbonization, the adoption

of renewable energy, and changes in werld affairs.

husiness portfolio transformation, as we believe that change
Is progress and transformation is advancement, The world
has been shaken to the core by the COVID-18 pandemic,
forcing people to reassess their values and lifestyles, but
Canon will'stay a.step shead of changes in sociaty and keep
reinventing tselt as anexcellent company not onlyin terms
of scate, but also quatity We look forward 1o your continued

suppertand understanding

Fujio-Mitarai
Chiairman & CEQ
Canonying.
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PRINTING GROUP

Tapping demand from a hybrid working style
and targeting growth in the digital commercial
printing field

The varioPRINT X series of high-speed

cut-sheet inkjet printers combines

irage quality and productivity at &
EPGRT 2021 high level,




STRATEGY

The irnageRUNNER ADVANCE DX striss of office MIFDs by connectin
cloud sarvices s contribUting to imiproved productivity,

fled

In-commerdal and industrial printing and other new fields, wa
will aimito cement adominant.position inthe market by ers
haricing the competitiveness-of our products. We will also push
ahiead with the-development of products and services to capture
nevy Hifestyle and worksstyle demand from-offices and prosurn-
ers, strengthen our DX-capable products and services, and find a
balance between product ingexpansionsand cost reductions.

2021 Performance

I the office equipment Business, we endeavored to find a
balance between development effidiency enhancements and
production cost reductions and launched a new product that
was favorably Teceived, the imageRUNNER ADVANCE DX
CEBO0 series, which offers enhanced essential featurss, such
as low power consumption and quiet operation. Sales of con-
sumables are also récovering as theratio of people whe have
gone back to the office gradually returns to normal,

I the prosumer business, sales of hoth inkjet and laser print-
ars,as well a5 consumabiles, were streng following the launch
of new products desigried for teleworking and home lganing.

inthe production business, we podsterd our compatitiveness
with thelaunch of a new high-speed imagePRESS printer and
through the launch of new accessories that can automatically
inspect and adjust images. In the large-format printer category,
we launched the TZ serfes, our fastestimagePROGRAF print-
ers to date. We also expanded our imagePROGRAF lineup
with theintroduction of the new GP-series, the industiy’s
tirst model equippead with fluorescent ink to enhance poster
printing. And, in addition to the ColorStream and ProStream
serigs, which are the rmainstream products of contintous

feed presses, thanks to exceptional image guality andilsvelof

Cavion's Inkjet printers that are suited for remcte w
fromm home.

ticand leatning

nroductivity, sales of the varioPRINT X series-of high-speed
cutssheetinkjet printers were boosted by faverable market
assessment since going onvsale in 2020, Mareover, we success-
fully expanded the number of dealers selling the new Colorado
1630 farge-format prirter for graphic arts printing as it sug-

ports & wide range of media,

Toward further growth

inthis era of digital transformation (0, the shift-towards pa-
periess offices—in the sense of decreasing prifting volurne—will
continue to gather momerium in the coming future, butwe stilt
anticipate firm demand for printing v terms of sharing thoughis
and work results. A hybrid working style that combines office-
based vwork with teleworking has gained traction amiong
companiss due to the spread of COVID-19 Infections, which
rneans we Must now provide printing environments and ser-

vices that arg impervious to the constraints of physical working

iocation by, Tor example, taking advantage of the cloud. Canon
will draw upon its strengths-—=namely, the two.digital printing
technalogies of electrophotography and inkjet, aswellas a
worldwide sales and service netwark—to focus on providing so-
lutions attuned to the era of DX and aim 1o bie the giobal leader
in the office and prosurner market categories. Additionally, in
the commercial printing field, which indludes the printing of
bocks, catalogues and direct mallings, as well as in the Industrial
printing field, which indudes the printing of labels and other
packaging, we expect thesshift fromeanalogue todighal to prag-
ress even further, which is why we wiltlook to astablish a'solid
position in the market by successively launching new competi-
tive products that conserve energy and add greater value

CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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IMAGING GROUP

Maintain the world’s No.1 brand by securing
absolute market share and establish solid position
in network cameras




STRATEGY

The EOS RS featurss a ivione advanced Tuhction to detect cubjects
through deep-lgarning technology.

Ininterchangesble-lens cameras, we air to secure sustain-
ableprofit, maintaining the world's No 1 brand by securing
absolute market share, In the network camera field, we aim 1o
astablish a-solid pesition inthe market by capturing a broad
spectrum of demand, We will also cultivate new businesses
inthe field of 3D imaging application such as free viewpoint
video and XR fields including virtual reality,

2021 Performance

The digital camera market overall held Tirm buoyed by solid de-
mand for high-quality image expression. Sales of the EOS RS and
ECS RE thatwere released in 2020 remained brisk-and sales of RF
lenses-—the lineup of which has now beenh expanded to 26—alse
grew significartly thanks 1o synergisswith EOQS Rseresicamera
bodies. Moreover, welaunched a new virtual reality (VR) imaging
production systerm (E0S VR SYSTEM) with a view to.expanding
inite hew business fislds: We also offered riewways of enjoying
image content, for example, we launched a new productin the
MREAL series of raixed reality (MR) heathmount displays (HMDs),
aswell 75 @ newcarmera that captures images automatically.

I addition, sales o not only netwerk cameras, but alsevidso
management software and video content analytics software
apphicationswere strong, teflecting heightened demand for,
among-others, production site automation and remote moni-
toring systems during the COVID-19 pandernic,

irvthe business for video production, which indudes broadcast
equipment, we launched arernote carmera systern that allows
users torcontrol muhtiple cameras over a nataork, We also worked
orvstrengthening and expanding into new fields such as capturing
actual images at the Volumetric Video Studio — Kawasakl, a studio
leveraging our Free Viewpolnt Video System techiology.

Carion's voluinettic video téchrology can producs vidéog
viewpoint and angle.

fromm any

Toward further growth

Demand for high-guality visualexpression remainsfirm largely
a5 a resuit of more people using thelrextra free time to enjoy
taking pictures at-home and shiaring them online. We willlook
to further bolster our offerings of EOS R system cameras and
RF-series interchangeable lenses and gain a bigger market
shiare by launching products In g timely manner that give users
more options. Furthermere, In broadcasting andvideo produc-
tion felds, we will strengthen our lineup of high-lmage-quality
remote carera systems. We-also intend to leverage the tech-
riologles-of the imaging group, such as optical technology and
image processing technology, inorder to help drive growth in
image capturing, from stiltimages and movies to VR videos,

I the network camera area, we will enhance our presence
inthe security field with the combined strengths acrass Group
cornpatiies: Axis, a network carmera leader with partners all over
the warld; Milestong, 2 leading viden managerent software
company, BriefCam, a video content analytics sottware com-
pany; and Arcales, acloud services company. We alse intend 1o
go beyord the conventional objectives of security ard deploy
productsand services that canhandlavarious operatisns; for
example, inspecting finished products at production sites or de-
tecting congestion levels in stores or exhibition halls.

in autonomows driving and other miobility fields in which
innovative changes are progressing at a biistering pace, we
will took to contribute torthe proliferation of mehility services,
such as.driver assistance systems, by leveraging our lohg-
honed expertise in optical and retwork technologies 1o enter
the automotive camera as well-as the transportation infra-

structure business.
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MEDICAL GROUP

Aiming to scale up business operations
by strengthening product competitiveness
and sales structures
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Caron’s diagiostic ultrasaund systerds provide Figh-definition Imagss
that are clear with little roise.

In arder to respond 1o the growing sephistication of medical
freatment, we aim to contribuie to healthcare around the
warld by expanding our business tield 1o healthcare 1T and in-
vitro diagrostics, with diagnostic irnaging at its core.

We will strengthen the competitiveness of cur CF, MR ana
diagnostic ultrasound systermns and galn the largest share of the
global CT market. We wilk also-bolster our Salesstructure in over-

seasmarkets, particularly in priority areas likethe United States,

2021 Performance

Irvthe Japanese marketin 2027, sales of mainly U7 sysiems

and diagniostic ultrasound systems for COVID-19 festing were
strong partly thanks 1o the government providing support for
riedical institutions, [nthe US, where we have continued-to
strengtheriour sales structure, orders and sales grew as we ex-
panded business operations whilst flexibly contending with the
negative impacts of the panderic. We have been also engaged
in joint researchwith the National Cancer Center lapan with

a view to.commercial vighility at the earliest possible time for
Photan Counting CT{PCCT), whichiis increasingly touted as the
next-gensration of UT techndlogy: In September 2027 through
an M&A deal we welcomed Canada-bassd Redlen Technologies
into the Canon Group. This company possasses world-leading
fachniclogy to developand manufaciure semiconguctor deted-

tor modules that are used as the key device for PCCT.

Toward further growth
In the diagnesticimaging business, having brought Redlen
Technologies into the Canon Group in 2021, we can now

push forward with the technological development and early

Carion Madical has introdUced ahtigen gualitative test kit for COVID-19,
whichis used st Yokohama City University Hospital.

nractical application.of PCET, a technology with the potential

£
7

to deliver unprecedented diagnestic functionality and greatly
reduce radiation exposure. And to complement cur propristary
technologies, such as RE coll technology (the Tundarnental tech-
niology in MRI}, we will look to develop next-generation high
performance MRIwith the Use of Al-driven image processing
technology. Asfor our diaghostic ultrasound systerns, wa will
take steps to reduce costswith the use of Canon's production
engineering by realizing the In-house production and standard:
ization'of platforms. Also, by strengthiening our salés network
miainly in the US, we will aim tosecure the leading global mar-
ketsharein CT and establish ourselves as one of the world’s
leading menufacturers of disgnostic imaging equipment.

Iy the field of healthcare 1T, v will aim to provide high-quality
diagnostic support and eftident medical care by integrating
image and non-image data collected from clinical settings and
using Al and other types of technology to analyze and process
those data before offering them to medical institutions wiorld-
wide. Moreover, in the field of initro diagnostics, we will work
on expanding our portfolio and business into the field of periph-
eral tasting systems, such as tast reagents for COVID-19.

in the medical component business, not only will we grow
the existing business mainly by gaining new customers and
consclidating sales functions, but with a view to M&A-driven
groweth, wewill alse look to.provide solutions to-B2Bcus-
tormers on multiple levels, including end products, modules,
processes, and services By-doing:so, we will gim to further
expand this business, whose sales account for more than 10%

of the entire Medical Systems and Components Operations.
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INDUSTRIAL AND OTHERS GROUP

Meeting robust demand for semiconductors and
flat panel displays in a bid to expand market share
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STRATEGY

Production of QLED panel mantfacturing egiipment with overnvhelming
competitivenassat Canan Tokki:

Forsemiconductor lithography equipmentand flat pane! dis-
play (FPD} lithography equiprnent, we will develop and provide
functionsand performance, such as throUghput and overlay
accuracy,-in a tirely manner soras o contribute fo productivity
Improvernents for customers. We will also leverage loT, A, and
other digital technologles to-deliver services and support with
ahighlevel of customer satisfaction. dn addition, for Caron
Tokki's OLED panel manufacturing eguipment, we will endeavor
1o enhance the function and performanceof equipment that
use the current deposition technigue and will also accelerate the

developrnent of new ranufacturing processes and materials.

2021 Performande

Despite the impact of COVID-19casting a shadow over the tim-
ing of a long-terrn economic recovery, as well asconcermsabout
how semiconductor shortages and mouhting US-China trade
friction might affect investmients, thete was cniy a slight impact
from these factors and capital investment demand from mainly
rernory and logic chip ranufacturers for semiconductor fithog-
raphy equiprment remaingd firma in all sectors, Demand for FRD
lithegraphy eguipment was aiso soiid thanks 1o the ongelng in-
stallation of sguipment that had been pushed out 1o 2027 fram
2020 due 1o COVID-19 travel restrictions, as.well as the increassd
dernand for devices such as TVs, lagtop computers, and tablets
owing 1o stay-at-home demand. Alse, the adoption of GLED dis-
plays for rmainly mobile devices contfinued, driving solid demand

forCanon Tokkis vacbum depositior equipraent.

Toward further growth
Owing 1o the proliferation of the 5G telecommunications net-
work standardand claud Computing, demand foriCs, memany

Mass production verfication of nancimprint mantifacturing eguipmenit is
underway at Kioxia’s voidaichi plant. Japan)

devices, and other types of semiconductors 5 expected 1o ex-
pand going forward. We glso anticipate solid demand for LD
and GLED panels diiverimainly by online video streaming, hiame
fmarning; and increasingly higherimage resolution. Considering
that we continue to produce our semiconductor lithography
eguipment, FPD lithography equipment, and OLED panel
rmanlfacturing equipment at nearly full capagity, swiftly meet-
ing incressed demand in the near term will prove challenging.
This s why we will ook 1o harness the collective strangth of the
industrial Group and augment our production syster,

Over the medium-to-long term, we will work 1o enhance our

product capabilities and increase our market share by adding
furictions and improving performance in order to contribute 1o
customer productivity:

As for nanoimprint lithography, because the main capabili-
ties of this technology have now reached mass broduction
teveds, wewill atm to quickly achisve commercialization and
step up the pace of efforts 1o expand the scope of application.
We will-also focus our resources on-establishing production
technology for next-generation OLED displays.

in addition o ultra-pregision positoning and highly accurate
fabrication in lithography equiprment and vacuum deposition
systems Tor deposition egiiipment, the industrnal group pos-
sesses g whole host of core technologies, induding Canon
Anelva’s sputtering technology essential to the production
ofhard disks and DRAMSs, and Canon Machinery's thin die
handling technology Used togttach semiconductorchips o a
substrate, By fusing together the group’s core technglogies to
create products and services that deliver new value 1o custom-
ers we-alm to expand our business sphere as well as establish a

strong garnings base:
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AT A GLANCE

i

PRINTING GROUP Compaosition of Sales @)

55.2%

Main Products

o Officemulafunction devices thiFDs)
» Document soltifions

= Laser mgltifunction printers (MFPs)
» Laser printers

= [nkjet printers

« Image scanners

« Calculators

s Digital continuous feed presses
Digital sheet-fed presses

e Large format printers

Office rultiftriction devices (MFDg) Laser multifuniction pririters (MFPs)

Digital sheet-fed presses (Electrophotographic) Large format printers inkjet)

IMIAGING GROUP Composition of Sales (%

18.6%

interchargeable-lens digital cameras Iriterchangeable-lens digital cameras

~pifroriess carmeras —Ligital SLR cameras Main Products

Interchangsable-lens digital camerss
Interchangesble lenses

Digital compact cameras

Compact phato prin
Network cameras
Video management software
Video content anakytics software
igital cameorders

Digital cinerna cameras
Broadeast equipment

o Maltimedia projectors

¥

®

&

]

Interchangeable lenses Metwork cameérss

Bate: The percentad res for the tour business:anits presented inthe pie chart above do notadd up 1o100% bevause “Eliminations,” recorded inconsalidation accownting, swete not.in-
<) - caloulation considendions,
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BUSINESS SEGMENT/
CORPORATE STRUCTURE

Composition of Sales ()

13.7%

Main Products

¢ Computed tormography (CTy systerns

» Diagnostic ultrasound systems

e Diagnostic X-raysysterns

» [Magnetic resonance imaging (MR systerns
 Clinical chemistryanalyzers

» Digital radiography systems

« Ophthalmiceguipment

Composition of Sales (%)

15.5%

Main Products

s Semiconductor lithography equisment

# PO (Flat parel display) lithographiy eguiprment
e OLED Dispiay Manufacturing Equipment

& Vacuum thin-film deposition equipment

s Die bonders

+ Handy terminals

» Document scanners

-
e
o
o
ke ?‘%
-
£
b vl
£
L
k-

Cormputed tormography (CT) systems Diagriastic Xeray systems

Diagriostic: ultrasound. systerns Digital radiography systems

Semicanductor lithography equipment FPO iFlat panel displayy lithography equipment

Crganic LED (OLED) panal marufacturing equipment Die bonders

CANON ANNEAL REPORT 2021 19



20

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT

Developrmant of SPAD image sensor that is expected 1o be used i a wide range of fields such as self-drving vehicles and medical care.

Canon is perpetually strengthening R&D as a company possessing
a corporate DNA that places high importance on technology to
differentiate itself from competitors.

R&D Expenses and Patents
From the time of Canon’s founding, we have continued 1o
diversity ourbusiness operations by practicing astyle-of cote
competency managemeant thatcombines fupdamentsl techpol-
ogies and core compatency technologies in & variety of ways
On aglobalscale, technology isin the ridst of significant
change and a-so-called paradigrm shiftis cccurring in R&D
whereby comganies are adding innovation-focused R&D for
solving sodial issues to their existing invertion-focused R&D

CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021

porticlios. Canon's invention-focused R&D revolves around

industiy-academia collaboration and open innovation, while in the

innovation-focused R&D space, tocomplernent the modificatio

of our proprietary technologles, we are accelergting our efforts

o generate innpvationto accurately meet societal needs through

alllances with other companies, M&A deals, and other endeavors:
in 2021, R&D expenses amounted 1o ¥287 3 billion, and the

ratioof R&D expenses to net saleswas 8.2%. This focus on R&D

activities has also cemented Canon's leading position in the
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Highly accirate facial recognition \with Canon's propristary facial recogr
tion enging and large-sized database of fadal images.

intellectual property field. Canon was granted 3.027 patentsin
the'United Statesin 2021, ranking it third among all companies,
At the same time that we have maintaired first place amang

lapansse comparies for the 17th consecutive year

initiatives to Establish Mew Businesses

Guided by a long-term perspective, Canon 5 focused on dis-
covering new techinoblogies for the fiture

Development of the world’s first 3.2-megapixel SPAD
image sensor

Owing to Canon's proprietary pixel architecture thatefficiently
captures and greatly multiplies faint particles of light, we have
suttessfully developed an ultra-small. SPAD sensorcapable of
capturing theworld's highest™" resclutionof 3.2-megapixel
color images—a highe' resolution than Full HD {appraximately
207 megapixels), even in low-light environments, The newly
developed SPAD sensor greatly enhances sensitivity, inciuding
light orthe nearinfrared spectrum, andis capable of capturing
colorvideo ata resolutionof 3.2 megaphals under low-light
conditions of G002 ™7, which'is darker than g starless night
sky. In addition, the SPAD sensor is-capabile of extrermely high
information processing speeds on the level of 100 picoseconds
{orie trillionth of a second). By taking advantage of its high
sensitivity and rapid respense funchionality, the SPAD sensor
has the potential to be vtllized In awide range of applications,
including self-driving vehicles, medical diagnosticimaging de-
vices, and scientific precision measuring instruments

*1 fmong SPAD sensors. As of Decerber 14, 2021 Based on Canon research,

*2 Ught:fror stars estimated 3t 0.02 10 Amblent light i starless night environment
sstirpated ot 0007 kx

2021 Top Ten WS, Patent Holders by Company
Bl

Samsung Electronics
LANON
SN

-

Huawei

intel

Apple

LG Electronics

ticrosott

Ciualcomm

improving the technology of facial recognition systems
Powered by Canon's proprietary faclal recognition engine, we
Have successtully developed s highly accurate facial recogni-
tion technology: It combines & large database of various facial
imagas with Canon's deep learning Al design technigles mak-
ing it possible to recognize a persort’s face with a high degree
of accuracy and speed even in network camera images cap-
tured fronyatop-down angle-—which conventional technoloty
nas struggled to intgrpret—and also in blurry lovw-resolition
inages. in 2027 we demenstrated worid-class aceuracy in four
categories for assessing the accuracy of a person retriaval In
the Face Recognition Vendor Test (FRVT), 4 ¢lobal evaluation
benchrnark organized by the National Institute of Standards
and Technology (NIST) inthe United States

Detecting defects in infrastructure

In résponse to the progressive deterioration of public infrastric-
ture around the world, Canon is developing solutions that uss
Imaging 1o Inspect the integrity of bridges, tunnels, and other
concrate structures. With the use of deep-earning Al cracks
asfine as 0.2 mmiin width reparexposures, water leaks, any
other defects can be detected from high-resolution images,
thusimproving the efficiency and quality of inspection reports.
Also, because hairline cracks will go unnoticed inimages that
areeven slightly out of focus or blurry, In 2021 we announced
the development of a tool forverifying the quality of inspection
Irmages, This tool attomatically and r2pidly judges whether an
image is out of focus or blurry, and by extension, helps irmprove
the-guality of images taken at inspection sites.

CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021

21



22

PRODUCTION

Automatic production line tor interchangeable lens{(Utsunomiva Plant),

Canon is a corporation that has constantly pursued ultimate
perfection in manufacturing. While striving to further improve
production-engineering technology such as automation of assembly
lines, we also focus on developing human resources armed with

outstanding technical skills,

Glabally Optimized Production

Canon employs a globally optimized predusction system
through-which we comprehensively determine the most ratio-
nal locations torproguce cur-products: This decision hinges.on
changes in social and economic circumstances and takes into

JCCOUNTL COUNTY or tegion-spedific factors such a5 costs, tak

CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021

systerns, logistics, ease of procuring parts, and labor, I Japan
we are endeavoring to reduce costs by establishing mother
factories that integrate development, procurerment, produc-
tion, and manufacturing processes. Maanwhile, in emerging
countries and regions we aim toboost productivity by further
hioning the skiils of emplovees. Canon leverages regional
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Product evaluation test at a glant, (Clta Canon)

characteristics and manufactures

and flexible

products utilizing an agile

system that spans theglobe,

Automation and In-house Production

Canon endeavors to create original products by activaly pur-
suing the in-house production of net only CTMQCS sensors
and ether key devices and components, but also production
equipment like automatic asserbly machines and high-
precision processinig machings, as well as'molding dies. To

produce high-guality products-at low cost, we aim 1o establish

highly reliable automated production lines. We have rolled out

fully autormated production lines with zero human interven-
tion for tonarcartridges and we seek to do the sarvie for the
manufacturing of camerasdnthe future In 2023 Canon Moid
which heads up the Group’s mold manufacturing business,
solidated its s plants in Kasama City In Ibarakl Prafecture
into a single location and is currently endeavoring toramp up
prodhuctioncapacity- and enhance distribution efficiency.
Development of Human Resources
To further enhance s manufacturing capabilities, Canon iz
focused on nurturing s most skilled technicians, known as
Master Craftsmen, and those who contribute tothe advance-
ment of manufacturing with thelr wide-ranging skills-and
knowledge of mainly assembly and component processing,
kriown as Meisters. These technicians-contribute to the im-
provement of Canon's production tecnnalogy and play an
active role at the front line of production by passing on the
skills they have honed over the years 1o the hext generation

tachnigues by particibating ih & competition.

Youing engineers raise their

initiatives for Environmentally Conscious
Manufacturing and Enhanced Product Quality
Canon has worked to reduce energy consumption by un-
dertaking a thorough=going review of operating conditiens
at production sites, Tor instance by cutting ot excess use of
prassurized alr and cooling water and adiusting air conditioner
setlings. Atthe Kiyohara Industrial Fark focated in Uisunomiya
City, Tochigi Prefacture, we launched-a smiart energy prolect
fa multisplant integrated energy-saving project) in parthership
with Tokyo Gas Co,, Lid, andthree other enterprises. By shating
electric power and heat (steam and hotwater) betwesn a num-
ber of business sites with differing levels of energy defmand, we
were ableto realize major energy savings hot possibleat g single
business slite-operating inlsolation. This projectwas awarded
thie METI Minister's Award In the 2021 Energy Conservation
Grand Prize hosted by the Energy Conservation Center, lapan.
in addition, guided by our mission to-guarantes the high
quality of our products, "no caims, no trouble,” we have
draven Up our owi rules i the form of @ quality management
systeny that we achere 1o exhaustively. This guarantees that
our products are safe and provide satisfaction to our cus-
tomers, Our unigue quality standards not only comply with
imternational quality managemsent staridards and relevant
laws and regulations in each country or region, but they also
takecustomer safely into account. Morsover, we endeavor o
oring to market only the products that have satistied our qual-
ity standards after putting them through'a rigorous evaluation
test at well-developed testing facilities and comprehensive

checks in each manufaciuring progess,

CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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SALES & MARKETING

e world premiers shiow “CP2021" for cameras and photographic images as an onling event.

Accelerating growth in commercial printing, network cameras,
medical and industrial equipment as key drivers of
Canon’s next-generation business

lapan addition, sales to major corporations in the Systern Integration
Sales in Japan amounted to ¥830.4 billion, or 23.6% of con- {Slysenvices and data center businesses weare boosted by ac-
solidated net sales. tive T investment activity by corporations. Demand from
Sales of mainstay business equipment such gz office MFPs SMEs to build teleworkingenvironments remeained strong and
and laser grinters declined due to the impact of product sales inthe {T solutions businesstose on the back of growth
supply shortages caused primarily by a lack of semiconduc- insecurity services and maintenance/operation services for T
tors, On the other hand, sales increased for mid-range and equiprnent and the like,
high-end mirrorless cameras and RF mount interchangeable in addition, we actively participated in webinars and on-
lenses, on which we have been concentrating our efforts. In line exhibitions, to promote the appeal of our products and

CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Canon Eurcpe faunched avirtua! platform o help production print
srofessianals.

Services,

The Americas
Sales invthe Armericas gmounted 1o ¥968.8 billion, or 27 6%
of consolidatad net sales,

CanonUJ.S.A. handles marketing operations for North,
Central, and South America, Its high-quality service frame-
wark for office equipment and commiercial printers covering
all U.S. states has been rated highly by customers: To mest
growing demand for printing in hybrid working environ-
mernits, Canen LS. A, fook steps 1o realign its erganization
and strengthen sales, Iralsg expanded sales.of midinly the
EQSRS and RE carneras.and sharply boosted sales.of malnly
the Cinerma FOS Syster by capturing strong video stream-
ing demand. Alse, Canon'’s technological innovatiens mainly
in s unigue new businesses-were widely promoted during
CES 2021, the world’s largest consurner electronics showcase

eventthat was hield online for the very firsttima.

Europe (Europe, Middle East, Africa)
Sales in burope amounted to ¥ 8949 billion, or 25 5% of
consolidated net'sales.

Canon Europe oversees business inthe EMEA region
= Europe, the Middle East and Africa. Operating in approxi-
mately 120 markets. In 2021, we launched avirtual platfarm
to help production print professionals shape a positive busi-
ress Tuture, with practical advice, demonstrations and the
latest market insights. We also continued 1o support partners

Composition.of Sales by Region

Asia and Oceariia The: Americas

23.3% 27.6%
¥R192 billion ¥968.8 billion
Net Salas
¥3,513.4
bifhon

Japan Europe
W AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA 25'5%

¥830.4 biliion ¥B94.9 killion

and customers through virtual everts

Canon Europe Is the official grinting and imaging provider
of Bxpo 2020 Dubal, which provides ar exciting opportus
nity 1o demonstrate ibfovative technoiogies, preducts and

services,

Asia and Oceania
Sales in Asia and Gceania region amounted 10 ¥819.2 billioh,
or 22.3% of consolidated net sales,

In order to-swiftly and accurately respond to the characterls
tics and changes of the rapidiv expanding Chinese market, in
2021 we split the Canon Asia Markating Group (hitherto re-
sponsible for the entire Asian regionyinto two organizations:
Canon China and Canon-Asia Marketing. This has enabled
Us 1o engage in more market-oriented business activities
than in the past, We announced a commemeorative copy ma-
chine model ahead of the 25" anniversary of Canon China’s
founding which wewill celebrate i 2022, Through such ac-
tivities wa hope 10 eXpress our spprediation 1o our customers
andicantinue toundertake salesactivitieswhilst shorten-
ing the distance to market based-on the slogan “Closer 1o

Custormer.”
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ESG

Environment

Social

Governande

Environment:

Governance:

Cancn’s Approach

in orderto leave arich earth for the
riext-generation, Canon works together
with'its stareholders woimplement
initiztives that help reduce environmental
burdens with'a focus on the entire
product lifegyele,

SUPPOrT activities.

Canon's Approach

A5 a good corporate citlzen,
Canonworks 1o rasolve socialissues
with' technology and throlgh business
activities mainly by respecting human
tghts, ensuring fesporsible procurement
aswyell as through sodecultural

Canon's Approach

Canon maintains.sound corporate
governange as part of itseffors o
maximize profits forsharcholders
and become.a truly excellent global
corporation.

Key Initiatives Key Initiatives

#Contributing 1o 8 Carbon-Free Future

» Contributing to a Circular Economy

= Eliminating Hazardous Substances and
Preventing Pollution

= Contributing to a Socety inHarmony
writh Nature

Chain

= Respecting Human Rignts
» Responsitle Procuremient in the Supply

e Sodocultural Support Activities

Key Initiatives
# Board of Directors, Audit & Sugervisory
Board, Non-statutory Comimnittees

& Corstructive Dialogue with
Sharehoklers

For radgre infarviation, pléase refer to the Canbh Sustainability Report. L7 hittpeifigtobal canonfen/esrireportfindes himl

Since 1988, Canon has been striving to uphald our Corparate
philosophy of kyoser (iving and working together for the
common good) in order 1o contribute to worlawide prosperity
and happiness, to endeavor to make contributions notonly
through products and services, but alsorin the areas of gnvi-
ronfriental protection, sococuitural suppert, andcompliance,
fn Mav 2021, with the objective of further enhancing these
inftiatives, we established the Sustainability Headguartersat
our corperate headguarters, We expressed our approach to
sustainability and how we are committed to creating new
ratue through the power of technology and innevation,
providing world-tirst techinologies and world-l8ading prod-
ucts and services while also contributing to solutions for the
problems our-society faces: Going forward, we will undertake
numersus activities around theworld as we work towards

CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021

achieving the Sustainable Developrnent Goals (SBGs),

Apart from this, In pursuing a cotporate managemeant fo-
cused ontotal optimization, we launched our own Consolidated
Performance Evaluation System in 1997 During the periodof
rriote than 20 years since it was introduced, it hasserved @s a
marker of immprovemnent forsach of gir business operations and
Group companies. The evaluation items are reviewed annually in
accordance with our management policy and inline with current
trands. Under the system, we evaluate business operations and
Group companies notoply from thelr financial results, suchias
sales and profit, but alse from nen-financial aspects pertaining to
sUstalnability, such as activities that support environmental and
sociocultural initiatives. Through enceuraging them 1o improva
their operations, Canonaims to facillitate the sustained develop-

ment of the Group as a whole and contribute 1o sodety
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Environment

In addition 1o s-own business activities, such as developmert,

praduction, and seles, Canon monitors the CO; Ernission and other
emvironmental impact at'each stage of the product ifecydle, indud-
ing those of sLippliersand customers, and works to reduce them.

We support the recommendationsof the Financial Stabllity
Board's Task Force on Climate-related Financdial Disciosuras
(TCFD} and we constantly disclose climate-related information
irvour sustainability reparts and o oUr wepsite,
Contributing to 3 Carbon-Free Firture
We are furthering environmental activities orra Group-wida
hasis with the goal of achisving an average arinual imiprove-
ment of 3% intifegyce CO; amissions improvementindex per
product as a yardstick for reducing our environmental foot:
print across entire product ifecycles: Continuously-achieving
this target means wewill beron frack for an improvement of
about 50% in 2030 compared to 2008, As of Z021 we have
realized 2 42% impravernent versus 2008.

By working closely with saciety and implementing a numbar
of initiatives across the entire lifecycle of our products, we aim
io achieve netrero COzemissions by 205
Conmtributing W a Circular Economy
To ensure more efficient use'et limited reseurces and reduce
waste, Canoriis making products smaller and lighter, and
reusing and recycling used producisas much as possibla, In
particular, we are pursuing product-toproduct recvcling—in
otherwords, recyeling used products into new ones, including
the remanufacturing of office multifunction devices and the
closed-loop recytling of toner cartridoss.

Canon currently has five recycling centers in four regions
around the world. The Canon Eco Techriolegy Park, which

opened in 2018, strives 1o realize state-of-the-ari resource

An activity.of Canon Bird Branch
Project-at the lush-green site of
aur global headquartars.

recycling as a fronterurner in'the ¢reation of a drcular economy.
For-example, we have achieved & parts reuse rate (mass ratio)of
riore than.90% forevery imageRUNNER ADVANCEC3330F-RG
inour Refreshad seriesof office multifunction devices
Eliminating Hazardous Substances and Preventing Poliution
Canon comprehensively manages chemical substances in
products and those used i manufacturing processes topre-
vent pollution of the global ervironment and adverse effects
on people’s health. Particularly for chemical substances in
products, we have builta Group-wide environimenial assur-
ance system, and we develop products in conformity wit
standards established in-house that arein linewith the most
stringent regulations In the world.
Contributing to a Society in Harmony with Nature
Canor engages in various activities worldwide based onour
Biodiversity Policy. As part of these activities, we globally run
the Canon Bird Brench Project in an effort 1o ehgage in bladi-
yersity conservation across the Canen Group.

Lifecydle €02 Emissions Improvement Index per Product

Improvement index
100

50

20702011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Hrdexed 1020082100
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Social

Respecting Human Rights
I 2024, weexpressed the Canon Groug Human Rights Pelicy
in accordance with the United Nafions” Guiding Principles on
Busingssand Humar Rights. Guided by'this palicy, 'we éngaged
in a human rights due diligence process to identify significant
human rights risks in the Canon Group. We also put in place a
grievance rechanism, ralsed awareness about human rights,
and addressed human rghts risks in supply chaing
Promoting Diversity
Under our corporate philosonhy of kyvosel, Canor respedts global
diversity and agctively encourages the fair hiring and promotion of
employess, regardless of gender age, or disability, We make every
effort to promote the-advancement of female employees, andwe
support the intentions of male employees to participate in child
rearing, help ermployess balancewaork and ndrsing care duties,
and-encourage the active participation of sexuabminorities, in-
cluding those in the LGRT community, 35 well 35 emplovess with
disabilities’ I 2021, 1o coincide with International Wormen’s Day;
Canon Group companias in the Middle East and Africa launghed
the "Wornenwho Empower” program, aninternal campaign de:
signadto support female empoviermant in theworkplace.
Responsible Procurement in Supply Chain
Canor is committed to fulfilling socially resporsible procure-
ment in cooperation with i1s business partners. in 2019,
we joined the Responsible Business Alllance (RBA). And in
2021, weconducted self-assessments et 54 manufacturing
sites and 326 major suppliers using the RBASaif-Assessment
Questionnaira (SAQ), and Taund no miajor risks.

Wa also file anannual conflict minarals report with third-
party assurance and submit it to the U5, Securities and

Exchange Commission.
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High-resclution facsimile of the
“\Waves at Matsiishirma,” painted
by Tawaraya Sotatstrin the collee-
tior of the Freer Gallery of Art - was
donated toShourdi Ternple, which
is-2aid to have owned the orginal *

Social Contributions
Canon established The Canon'institute for Global Studiesand
The Canon Foundation in 2008 tocommemorate Canon’s
70th anniversary.

The Canon Institute-for Global Studies analyzes the sta-
tus quo in terms of how the Japanese economy fitsinto the
broader global econemy and what kind of role Japan ought to
play in‘today’s world. The Institute facilitates the undertaking
of'global activities and the exchange of knowledge between
various researchers hailing from industrial, governiment, and
academic circles. Inaddition, the Canon Foundation provides
grants to assist a broad range of science and technological
research, Starting with grantapplicationsin 2018, the Canon
Foundation’s activities are now hased on the concept of assist:
ing research studies in'cutting-edge science andtechnology
fields with the aim-of creating newwvalue for society.

Furthermore, as acompahy that contributes to the develop:
mant of vistal culture, since 2007, Canheoh and Kyoto Culture
Association (NPOyhave been workingon the Touzuri Project
{officially narmed the Cultural Heritage Inherftance Projact)
withithe aim of preserving originel cliltural assets ana utilizing
high-resolution Tacsimiles, By cormbining Canon's advanced
digital technologies, ranging from inputto image process-
ing and output, with the traditional craftsmanship of Kyoto,
wie have produced high-reselution facsimiles of important
laganese cultural assets, including folding screens, fusuma
{lapanese sliding doors), and handscrolis. These facsimiles
have beendonated to temples and shfines, focal municipall-
ties, or museumns that have aspecial connection with therm,

*Facsimiles ofworks i the collection of the Freer Gallery of Al
ingran, DUC - Gift of Chatles Lang freer F1806.231,
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Governance

Fundamental Policy

In order to establish a sound corporate: governance structure
and cortinuously raise corporate value, the Company believes
thatitis esséntial 1o improve managenient transparency and
strengthen management supervising functions.

Governance Structure

Board of Directors

While the Tocus of the organizational structure of the Board of
Diractors Is onRepresentative Directors that oversee company-
wide business strategies orexecutionsuch as'the CEO, COC,
CFO, CTO, and Representative Direciors or Executive Direclors
that oversee multiple business fields or headquarters functions,
inorder to secure sound rmanagement, at least one-third and
at Jeast two or more Independent Outside Directors are ap-
pointed. The Board of Directors, i1 accordance with laws and
regulations; makes important decisions and supervises the ex-
ecutiorvof duties by officers,

Exceptfor the above, the CEO ahd othier Representative
Directors are active in dedision making and exacution, and
under the.command and supervision.of the Representative
Directors, Bxecutive Uficers that.are elected through resolu-
ton of the Board of Directors makededisions and exectite
operations of each business field ar function. Currently,
the Board of Directors consists of fivermarmbers; three
Representative Directors from inside the Company.and two
Independent Qutside Directors,

Additionally, therewill be 42 Executive Officers, including
wofemales andone non=japanese as of April 1, 2022
Audit & Supervisory Board
As a body which isin charge of the audit of operations, under

theprinciples of autonomy, which is independent from the Board

For alt company-executive officers,
the CEO provides updateson
earnings progress.and inportant
matters 1o be implemented in the
futire-both in person and online-as
& way td share crucisl information.

of Directors, the Cornpany has full-time Audit & Supervsory
Board Mermbers that are familiar with the Company’s businesses
ar fis rnanagement structiire, and Independent Culside Auolt &
Supervisory Board Members that have extensive knowledge in
spedialized areas such aslaw, finance and accounting, and inter-
nal control, The Audit &Sugervisory Beard, which is cormposed
of these individuals, cocperates with the Company’s account-
ing auditorsand internal audit divislon, oversees the status of
duty execution of ogerations and corporate assets to secire the
sourdness of management,

The Audit & Supervisory Board consists of fve ingividuals,
three of which are Independent Outside Audit& Supervisory
Board Members.

Procedures in the Nomination of Directors etc.

The Carmpany established the "Nemination-and
Rermuneration Advisory Colrimities,” a nénsstatutory com-
mittes, which consists of the CEC, two Independent Outside
Directors, and one Independent Outside Audit & Supervisory
Board Mermben At the time Director and Audit & Supervisory
Board Memiver candidates are nominatiéd and Executive
Officers are appointed {riciudes the selegtion o3 sutcessor
for the chief executive officer position), the CEO recomrmends
candidates theregf from among individuals that have been
recognized as having met the preseribed requirements, and
the Committee checks the falrness and validity of such rec-
ammendation pricr to submission o and deliberation by the
Board of Directors,

Additionally, as for Audit & Supervisory Board Member
candidates, prior 1o deliberation of the Board of Directors,

consent of the Audit & Supervisory Board shall be acquired.

CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Corporate Strategy Committee, Risk Management established.a system In which reports are also regularly given
Committee, and Disclosure Committee to autside directors and those outside directors can regliest
The Company established the Corporate Strategy Committes, subrnission of proposals to'the Board of Directors, as neceassary.
consisting of Representative Directors and some Executive
Officers. Amonyg ferns to be decided by the CEQ, the
Cornmittes undertakes prior deliberations onimportant mat-
ters pertaintng to Canocn Group strategies. Outside Directors
and Audit & Supervisory Board miembers attend Corporate
Strategy Commmittee meetings and are able to express their
own opinions, Based on aresolution passed by the Board of
Directors, Cancnsetup the Risk Management Commities,
which formuiates policy and action proposals regarding im-
provement of the Canon Group risk management system. The
Risk Management Committee consists of three entities: the
Financial Risk Management Subcommittee, which is tasked
with improving systerns to ensure rellability of financial re-
parting; the Compliance Subcommittes, which is taskad with
promgting corporate ethics andimproving tegal compliance
sysiems;and the Business Risk Managernent Subcomimittee,
which s charged with improving systems to manags cverail
business risks, including risks related 1o product guality and-in-
formation feak. The Risk Management Committee verifies the
riske management system’s improvement and implermentation
and reports thestatus 1o the CEC and the Board of Directors.
In-addition, the DisclosureComrittes was established to
undertake deliberations pertaining todnformation disclosure,
induding contert and timing, o ensure important corporate
information will be disclosed in a timely and accurate manner
fnternal Audit Division
The Company has estabilished the Corporate Audit Center
as its internal auditing divislon, which audits, evaluates, and
makes recommendations on cormpliance and internal control
systemns etc. The Corporate Audit Center also conducts-audits
ortopics such as quality, the environment, and information
security; Audit results are reported not only to the CEQ and
CFC, but-also tothe Audit & Supervisory Board Membersand

The Audit & Supervisory Board. In addition, the Company has

Detalls of Canart Int.'s corpofete governance structure are avalable on the Comipany's wabsite under ¥ an ovérview of Corptirate Goverrance 3t Canonhe "
Lt hittpsfglobal.canon/endir/sirategies/governance. bl
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FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

GEREHAL

The following discussion and analysis provides information
that management believes to be relevant to understanding
Caron’s consolidated finardiat condition and results of opera-
tiors. References in this disclssion 1o the "Company” are g
Canoning and, unfess othenwise indicated, references to the
tinancial condition or aperating resulis of “Canon™ refer 1o
Canen e and its consslidated subsidiarnies:

OVERVIEW
Canon s ong of the worlds leading manufacturers of office
miifuniction devices ("MFDs™ ), laser printers, inlget printers,
cameras, medical equiprment and lithography squiorment
Canoh eans revenies primarily frorm the manufaciure and
sate-of these products domestically and internationally.
Canon's basic managementpolicvdsto-contribute to the
prosperity and well-being of the world while endeavering te
becorde a truly excallent global corparate group fargeting
cortinued growih and development.

Canon divides its businesses into-four segments: the Printing
Businsss Unit, the lmaghng Busitess Unit, the Medical Business
Unit and the Industrial and Others Businass Unit

Economic environment

Looking back at 2021, the global economy continued to
recover as movement restrictions were gradually eased and
the roliout of vaccines worldwide encouraged resurmption of
econormic activities. However, production-activity stagnated
due 1o a resurgence of coronavirus diseass ("COVID-187]
infactions. in addition, the giobal shortage of semiconductor
chips and the distuption inlogistic and distribution channels
due-to high demand bacame a-serious issuein the second half
of the year. In the United States; economic recovery advanced
gs & result of the increased personal constmption and expan-
sionvof caplital nvesiment through ecohomic measures, In
Europe, restrictions on economic activities were eased in sach
country, with increasing personal consumption and expansion
of capltal investment leading 1o 8 steady economic recovery. In
China, personal consumplioreand exports continued o grow
steadily despite sluggish infrastructure investment. da other
gmetging countiies, sconomic recovery was modest due to
stagnant economic activity caused by the spread of COVID-18
infections, mainly in India and Southeast Asia In lapan, eco-
nomic recovery remained moderate-due 1o the prolonged
State of Emergency:

Market environment

Apid these conditions, in the markets in which Canon cper
stes, demand for products remained selid, despie the Impact
of the shortage of semiconductor chips in the second half

of the vear, Demarid for office MFDs continuad 1o recover,
For faser grinters, demand remaired st the same jevel as

the previous year. For inkjet printers, demand in home use
rermained solid. For cameras, demand remained solid, mainly
inmirrorless cameras, For medical equigment, despite delays
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in-the instalfation of medical devices in some areas due o the
resurgence of COVID-19 infections, recovery continued thanks
tor thie return of routine examinations at medical institutions
compared with the previous year, in which COVIE-19 testing
was pricritized. For ithography éguipment, demantd for sermi-
conductor ithography equiprment continued amid favorable
market-conditions and flat panel display ("EFD™) lithegraphy
equipment mmained solid,

Thie average value of the yen for the vear was ¥1059.93
agalrst the US. doltar, a year-on-vear depreciation of approxi-
miately ¥3, and ¥129.94 against the-euro, & year-on-year
depreciation of approximately ¥8.

Summary of operations
I 2021, unit sales of office MFDs were ahove those of the
raviousyear, despite the'shortage of sermifconductor chipsin
the second half of the vear Sales of services and consumables
rrioderately recovered duete the gradual increasein employ-
ges returning to the office and resulting demand for related
sarvices and consumables, As Tor the Prosumer consisting of
faser prirters and inkjet printers, unit saleswere below thase
ot the previgus year due 16 the stagnation of production
activity resulting from a resurgence of COVID-19 infections in
Southeast Asia. However, unit of seles of laser printer consum-
ables increased significartiy compared with the previous vear,
during which dermand had decreased Forinterchangeable-
lens digital cameras, unit sales remained at arcund the same
fevel asthe previous year due to the shortage of semiconduc
tor chips, despité continued strong sales of Tull-frame mimor
less carneras. As for network cameras, which arebeing used
ina growing range of applications, salas increased due 1o the
strengthening of salas activities, For medical equipment, sales
incregsed matnly i Japaryand North Ametics dueto strony
sales of computed tomography (“CT™) systems and disgnostic
ultrasound systems-as a result of recovering demand in key
markets and government’s.suppert for medical institutions.
While unit sales for semiconductor lithography eguipment
remaingd solid, unit sales Tor FPD lithography equipment were
sighificantly above those of the previous year, whert eguip-
ment installation stagnated due to drcumstances related to
COVID=19. Under these conditions, net sales for the year
increased by 11.2% year-on-year 10 ¥3,513,357 million. Gross
profit to net sales ratio increased by 2.8 points 1o 46.3%, due
o recovery of senvices and consumables, increase in prices,
expansion of highly profitablerproducts and currency exchange
rate Huctuations, despite theincrease of cost due tohigher
prices of semicenductor chips and resin materials. Gross profit
Tor thevear increased by 18.3% year-oh-year 1o ¥1,827,792
miflion. Operating expenses increased by 6.4% year-on:year
1o ¥1,345 874 million, mainly due o the ingrease of pavroll
cost, advertising cost, forwarding costand R&D cost as a
result of 2 rebound from the previous vear, when sales activi-
ties were severaly rastricted due to the spread of COVID-19
and currency exchange rate fluctuations. However, operating

e

expens . i sighificanty fram 40.0%
expense percentage irnproved sighificanty from 40.0% to



3839% thanks to the results of strdctural reform and group-
wide improverents in productivity. As a result, operating
profitincreased by 155 0% yearon-yearto ¥281,518 miflion.
Crither income {deductions)increased by ¥ 1,055 million vear-
orryear o ¥20,788 million, dus tosuch factors ag valuation
gain on securities, while income before income taxes increased
by 132.4% year-on-year to ¥302, 706 million and net income
attributable 1o Caron ne. increased By 157.7% yEar-on-year
16 ¥214, 718 million. Basic net income attributable to Canon
Inc. shzreholders per share was ¥205.35% for the year, & year-
an-yearinceass of ¥125.98.

Totarassels Increased by ¥125,274 million 1o ¥4,750, 888
rikion at Decerber 31, 2021, comparsd with the end of
previous year, mainly due to an incease of inventories restlt-
ing from difficulty in procuring parts and recovery production
torsupplement product supply dus to reduced operating rates
at production sites, and an increase of gondwill dueg to'the
acguisition of Redlenwhich play an important role in PCCT
development. In addttion, under the new Tiveyear manage-
mient plan, Phase Vi, of the “Excellent Global Corporation
Plan™ which started from 2021, Caron regards thorough cash
flow managernent as.onhe of its priorty ftems, and 15 reinfore-
ng 18 finandal health, In 2021, under mahagement plan,
Canon s comprised of the refinancing and the repayment
atloans whichwas provided for the acgquisition of Toshiba
Wedica! Systerns Corporation (currently, Cancn Medical
Systems Corporation) resulting in the decrease of long-term
loans by ¥170.0 billon. Under these conditions, total fabili-
ties decreased by ¥188,114 million to¥1,652,459 million at
December 31, 2027, compared with the end of previous year,
rmaitily due 1o a decrease of short-term foans and current
portion of long-term debt. Total eguity increased:by ¥314,358
rritlion to ¥3,008,429 million at December 31, 2021, o
pared with the end of previous year, mainly dueé to anincrease
i retained earnings resulting fromea significant increasein
profit and an increase in accumulated other comprehansive
income due o the depragiaiion of thewyen, Under these condi-
tions, Carioh Inc. shareholders’ equily as 3 percentage of total
asselsintreasen by 4.8 points1o:80.5%.

Key performance indicators

The following are the key perfermance indicators {"KFis") that
Canon uses in managing its business. Tne changes Trom year
1o year in these KPls are seti forth in the table shown.on the
next page.

Neat sales and profit ratio
As Caripn pursiies the goal to become & truly excellant
global corporation, one indicator upon which Canon’s man-
ggement placesstrong emphasis is revenue. The following
are some of the KPls related to revenue that management
considers to be impottant.

Net sales is one such KPL Canon derives net sales primar-
iy from the sale of products and, 1o a lesser extent, provision
of services associated with its products. Sales vary depending
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orsuch factors as product demand, the rumber and size of
transactions within the reporting period, market acceptance
far new products, and changes in sales prices. Other factors
involved are market share and markel environment. o addi-
fion, management condiders the evalugtion of metsales by
product to be important for the purpose of assessing Canon’s
sales performance invarious products, taking into account
recent market trends.

Gross profit 1o net sales ratio isanother KP1 for Canon.
Under the basic nolicy of Phase VI, Canon has been consis-
tently strengthening business campetitiveness and striving to
provide Highly profitable products with price competitiveness:
Furthermore, Canon promotes cost reduction initiativer across
the Canon Group through in-house production and autorma-
tion of assembly processes which integrate thethree functions
of design, production technology and manufacturing. Canen
Wil continue 1o actively take these measuras 1o improve
Canon’s gross profit to net sales ratio.

Cperating profit o net sales ratle, income before income
taxes to net sales ratio, and R&D-expense to net sales ratio are
considered to beKPis by:-Canon. Canon is facusing on two
ateas for improvernent. Canon is stilving Yo control and reduce
its selling, general and adrrinistrative expenses as1ts first Key
point. Secondly, Canon's R&D poilcy is designed to maintain
adeyuate spending in core technology to sustain Canen’s
leatiing position in its current business areas and to exploit
opportunities in other markets. Canon belleves such ipvest:
rrerts vl create the basts Tor future success in its busimess
and operations,

Cash flow management
Canon also-places significant emphasis-on cash flow.manage-
ment. The following are the KPls relating to tash How man-
agement that Canon’s management believes to be important.
inventory turnover measured indays is-g KPl because it mea-
sures the efficiency of supply chain management. Inventorles
have-herent risks of becoming-obsolete, physically damaged
ot otherwise decreasing significantly in value, which may
adversely affect Canor's operating results; To mitigate these
risks, management believes that it iscrucial to continue reduc-
ing work-in-process inventories by decreasing production lead
times in order to promptly recover related product expenses,
while balancing risks of supply chain disruptions ov optimizing
finished goods inventories In order 1o avoid losing poetential
sales.opportunities.,

The debt o total assets ratiofs also one of the KPls. For &
manuiacturing company like Canon, it gensrally takes consid-
erable timé 1o realize profit froma bisiness due to lgad times
reguired Tor R&D, manufacturing and sales. Thersfore, man-
agement balleves that it IS important to'have sufficient finan-
cial strength. Canon will continug to reduce its dependency on
external funds for capital investments in favor of generating
thenecessary funds from s .own operations.

Canon Inc. shareholders’ equity to total assets ratio is
another KP for Canon. Canon belleves that its sharehoiders’
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enuity o total assets ratic measures its long-term sustain-
abiidy. Canon also belisves that achieving a high or rising
shiareholders' equity ratio indicates that Canorhas maintained
& strong financial position or further improved its ability to
frind debt obligations and other tnexpecied expenses. In the
fong-terrn, Canon's managerment believes a high shareholders’

equity ratic will enable Cansh to maintain a high level of
stable investments for its future operations and development.
As Canorputs strong-emphasis on its R&D activities, manage-
ment believes that itis important To mairdair a stable financial
base-and, accordingly, a high level of itsshareholders” eguity
tototal assets ratio.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

2021 2020 2019 018 2017

Net sales (Millions of ven) RBIREE7 3160243 2593289 3,951,937 4030015
Gross profit o net sales ratio 46.3% A3 5% 44.8% 46 4% A 8%
R&D expense 1o net sales ratio 8.2% B.6% B.32% 8.0% 8&.2%
Operating profit to net-sales ratio 0% 3.5% 4.9% 87% 75%
ncome before iIncome faxes to:net sales ratio 8.6% 4.1% 5.4% 9.2% 8.7%
Inventory turnover measurad in days &6 days &0 days 59 days 56 days 49 days
Debt 1o total assets ratio 65.8% 108% 0. B% 872% 10.2%
Canon Inc. sharéholders’ equity 1o total assets ratio B60.5% 55.7% 56.3% 57.5% 55.1%
Motes:; 1. Inventory turnover measured in-days is determined by Inventory divided by net sales for the previous siv. months, multiplied by 182,5.

Pk
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The increase -of the debl o total assets ratioin 2019 was prmanly due to sdopting Accounting Standards Undete (TR Mo, 2016:02, [sases (Jopic
8423 Section A, The company indudes current aperaling lease liabllity and noncurrent operating lease liability as the debisinge 2019, If this factor were
excluded, the debt to total assets ratio in 20195 8.6%.

The deécrease of the Canoiilnc: shareholders’ sguity to total asséts ratioin, 2019 was priviiarily due 1o atdopting ASU No. 2016:02, Leases (Topic 842)
Section A The company includes operating lease right-of-se asiet in total Bssetsisince 20708 W this factor wers exelided, Canon Ing. sharehnlders’
enuity o tdtal assets ratio is 57.9%.

Canon adopted ASY No, 2017-07 from the guarter beginaing Januaty 1, 2018, The adoption:of the hewe prasentation requirement of the service cost
comperent and the other components of net benefit cost resulted in reclassification from cost of sales, and selling, general and administrative expenses,
ang research and development expenses into other ingome (deductions)for thevear ended December 31, 2017,

- Cectain figures for the fiscal vears ended December 31, 2019, 20718 and 2017 presented In the table above have been revised from the versions previ

aushy disclosed. During the 'year ended Decernber 31, 2020, Canon corrected an immaterial erorin ite previously issued comsolidated financial staterpents
refated 1o accounting Tor the! Company’s and domestic subsidiaries compenzaterd absence cartyforniard asidisdosed i the previols fiscal year! For furher
detalls, please refer 1o Note 1 ) of the Notesto Consolidated Finandal Statements:

LRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES
The consolidated finandalstatements are preparsd th-actor
darice with U S, gererally accepted accounting principles
("US GAAP }and based on the selection and application of
significant accounting policies which reguire management i
make significant estimates and assumptions. These estimates
ahd-assumptions indude future market conditions, net sales
growih rate, gross margin and discount rate: Though Canon
believes that the estimales and assurmptions are reasenable,
actual future results may differ from these sstimates anc
assumptions. In addition, new waves of COVID-19 irfections
are-helng seen'in some regions, and it is still gifficult to predict
when COVID-T8 will be brought-under-control However, each
country.and region continues 1o pursue infection control.and
accelerate economic activities, Actual results and outcomes
may differ from management’s estimates and assumptions due
1o risks and dncertalnties, including uncertainty'in the clrrent
gconomic envirenment triggered by COVID-19. Canonbelieves
that the fallowing are the more critical judgment areas in the
application of it aceounting policies thatcurrently affect its
finandial-condition-and results of Sperations:
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Revenue recognition

Canon genaerates revenue through the sale of prodicts of the
Printing Business Unit, the tmaging Business Unit, the Medicsl
Business Unit and the Industrial and Others Unit, supplies and
related services under separate contractual arrangements:
Revenue is recognized when, oras; cortrol of promised goods
of services transfers 1o customers in an amount that reflects
the comsideration to which-Canon expects fo beentitled in
sxchange for transferring these goods orservices,

Revenus fromsales of products of the Printing Business
Unit, such as office MiDs, laser printers and inkjet printers,
and the Imaging Business Uniy, such as digital cameras, is pri-
marily recognized-upon shipment or delivery. depending upon
when the customer abtains controls of these products.

Revenue fromsales of equinment of the Medical Business
unit and the Industrial and Others Business Unit that are sold
with customer scceptance provisions related to their function-
ality including certain medical equipment such as CT systerns
and MR systemns, and lithography eguipment such as semicon-
ductor and FPD lithography equipment, is recognized when
the equipmentisinstalled atthe custormer site and the agreed-
upaon specifications are objectively satistied and confirmed.

Mostof Canon's service revenue’is generated frommainte-
nance servicein the progicts of the Prifting Business Unitan



the Medical Business Unit which is recognized.over time. For
the service contracts of the products of the Printing Business
Urnit, the customer typically pays a variable amount based on
usage, a stated fixed fee or arstated base fee plus a variable
amaunt which frequently indude the provision of consumables
aswell as break fix activities. The majority portion of service
revenue fromthe products ot the Printing Business Unitis rec-
ognized as billed sinice the inveiced arnount directly correlates
with the value to the customer of the undetlying performance
abligation to date, For the service contracts of the products of
the Medical Business Unit, the customer typically pays a stated
fixad fae for the stand ready maintenance service and revenue
is recoghized ratably over the contract pertod.

The majority of service arrangaments for the products of
the Printing Business Unit are executed in combination-with
related products. Transaction-pricestor products and services
need to be allocated to-each parformance obligation ona
retative standalone selling price basis where Judgernents are
required. Canon estimates the standalone selling price using a
range of prices that would meet the allocation objective based
on all the information that s reasonably available induding
market conditions and otheér observanle inputs. i transaction
prices of the produdt or service contracts are ot within thé
acceptable range, therr the revenue is subject to allocation
based on the estimated standalonesaling prices. Canon
recognizes the incremental costs of oblaining & contract as an
expense when refated products of the Printing Business Unit
are sold,

Revenue fromisales of certainindustrial eguipment which
do not have alternative use and for which Canon has enforce-
able right 10 payrent 1o the customers for the performancs
completad to.date is recognized over time with progress
iowards completion measured using the cost based input
method as the basis to recognize revenue ang an estimated
margin. Provisions for estimated losses on uncompleted con-
tracts are made in the penod in which such losses become evi-
dent, Changesin job performance, job conditions, estimated
rmargin and finat contract setilements may fesult in revisions 1o
projected costs and revenue and are recognized inthe pericd
inwhich the revisions 1o estimates are identified and the
amournts can be reasonably estimiated. Factars that may affect
future profect costs and marging include, production effiden-
cles, avallabllity and costs of laber and materdals. These fattors
can impact the accuracy of Canon's estimates and materially
impact future reported revenue and cost of sales.

The transaction prices that Canon s éntitled to receive in
exchange for transterring goods or services 1o the customer
include certain forms of variable consideration, induging prod-
uct discounts, customer promotions angvolume-based rebates
miainly Tor the ‘products of the [maging Business Uniy, which
are sold predominantly through distributors and retailers,
Canon includas sstimated dmounts in the transaction prics
only to the extent it is probable that a significant reversal of
cumilative revenue recognized will not occur when the uncer
@ity associated withthe variable consideration is résolved.
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Variable considerations are-estimated based upon historical
trends and other known factors at the time of sale, and are
subsequently adjusted in each period based on current infor
mation. in addition, Canon may provide a right of returnon its
praducts for ashert time pericd-after a sale. These rights are
accounted Tor as variable consideration when determining the
transaction price; and accordingly Canon recognizesrevenue
Based on the sstimated amount to which Caron expecitsto be
entitled after considenng expected returns.

Taxes collected from customers and remitted fo governmen-
tal authorities are excluded from revenues in the conselidated
statements of income.

Allowance for credit fosses

Mlowance for credit losses for trade and finance receivables
is maintained Tor all customers based on ASC 326 "Financial
Insteurments — Credit Losses,” considering various factors,
including aging analysis, rmacroecoriomic conditions and
historical experlence. An additional reserve Tor indvidual
accounts is recorded when Canon becames-awara of a cus-
tomers inabllity to mest its financial obligations, such as in the
case of bankriuptcy tings. If drcurnstances relatéd to cus-
tomers change, estimates of the recoverabillty of recelvables
would-be further adjusted. When all collection: cptions are
axnausted incduding fegal recourse, the accounts of portions
thereot are doemed 16 be uncollectable and charged againgt
the allowance:

Valuation of inventories

Irventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable
value, Costis determinad by the average method for domes«
tic inventories and prindipally the firstin, first-out method

Tor overseas inventories. Net realizable value Is the estimated
selfing price in the ordinary cotirse of business fess the esti-
matec costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
tomakea sale. Canon routinely reviews its inventories for
their salability and for indications of obsclescence to deter
mine i inventories should be wiitten down to market velus.
Judgiments and estimates must-be made and used in Con-
pection weith establishing such-allowances in any accounting
pefiogh In estimating the net realizable value of His nventories;
Canon considers the age of the inventories and the Tkelihood
of spoilage or changesin market demand Tor its Inventgries,

impairment of long-lived assets

Long-lived assets, such as property, plant and equipment,
and scquired intangibles subject to amortization, are
reviewed for imparment whenever events-or-changes in
circurmstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset
may not be recoverable. If the carrying amount of the asset
exceeds ity estimated sum of undiscounted future cash flows,
an impairment charge is recognized in the amount by which
thecarrying amount of the asset excesds the fair valus of the
asset. Determining the fair value of the asset involves the use
of estimiates and assumptions,
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Property, plant and eguipment

~mbeﬁy plant end-equipment are stated at cost. Deprediation
is calculated principally by the declining-balance method,
except for certain assets which are depreciated by the straight-
line methiod over the estimated dseful fives of the asset

Lease

Asforlessoraccourting, Caron provides leasing arrangs-
fment to s custormers prirnarily Tor the sale of office products,
Revanue from the saleof these products under sales-type
leases i3 recognized-at the inception of the lease. Interest
income on salesstype leases and direct-finanding leases is
recognized overthe life of each respective lease Using the
interest methed. Leases not qualifying as sales-type leases of
direct-financing leases are-accounted for as-operating leases
and related revenue is recognized ratably overthe lease term.
When product leases are bundled with maintenance contracts,
revenue Is alfocated basad upon the sstimated standalone
selling prices of the lease and non-lease components. Lease
componants generally include product and financing while
not-igase camponents generally consist of maintenance
contracts and supplies. Sorne of the contracts include ontions
to extend of 16 terminate the lease. Canon takes such options
Into-accourt to determine the lease termywhert it is reasons
sbly cartaln that' the customerswill exercise these options, The
rrajority of Canon’ lease contracts do not contain bargain
purchase options for thelr customers,

As forlessee accou mmg, Canon-has operating anddinance
leases for varlous assets including office buildings, ware-
hiouses, employees’ aacommodat,@nsf and vehicles, Canen
deterrnines if an arrangerment is 8 lease at the incaption
of sach contract. Some of the comtracis.inciude options to
sxtend or 1o terminate the lease. Canon takes such options
into accounts 1o determine the lease term whern it is reasan-
ahly certain that it will exerclse these options. Canon's lease
arrangaments do not contain material residual value guar-

antees or material restrictive covenants. As a rate implicit in
most of Canons leases cannot be determined, Canon uses
incremetal bortowing rate based on the information available
at commencement to determine the present values of lease
payrmienits Canon has lease contracts with lease and rion-lease
components, which are accounted for separately. Canon alio-
cates the consideration in the lease contract 1o the lease and
non-lease components based upon the estimated standalone
prices. Costs associated with operating lease assets are recoy-
nized on a‘straight-line basls over the term of the lease,
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Business combinations

Acquisitions are accounted for using the acquisition method of
gecounting. The acguisition method of accounting requires the
identification and measurement of all acquired tangible and
irtangibie dssets and assurmed-liabifities at their respective fair
values, as of the acquisition date. The determination of the fair
value of net assets acquired involves sygmﬂcant judgmentand
estrnates, such as future cash flow projections, appropriate
discount and capitalization rates and other estimates based oa
available market information. Estimates of future cash flows
are based on anumberof factors induding operating results,
knownand anticipated treénds, aswellas market and ego-
normic conditions,

Goodwill and other intangible assets

Goodwill and otherintangible assets with indefinite useful
lives are not amortized, but are instead tested for impairment
ahnually i the fourth auarter of sach vear, or more freguently
it indicators of potential impairment exist. All goodwll is
assigned to the reporting unit or units that benefit from the
synergles arising fromrsach business combination. If the
carying amount assigned 1o the feporting Unit exceeds the
Tait vaiue of the reporting unit, Canhon recognizes an impair-
ment-charge in anamounitequal 1 that excess, imited to
thetotal amountof goudwill aliocated to that reporting anit,
Faur value of & reporting Unit is determined primarily based on
the discounted cash flow analysis which inwolves estimates of
projected future cash-flows and discountrates. Estimates of
projectad future tash flows are-primarily based on Canon's
Tordcast of {utureigrowth rates. Estimates of diseounttates arg
determined based on theweighted average cost of capital,
wnich consi iders primarily-market andiindusiry data as well

a5 specific risk-factors, Canonhas completed its impairment
test i the fourth quarter of 2021 and determinad that thers
ware 1o reporting units thatwere 2t risk of falling the impair-
rment. test as the Tair value of each reporting unitsubstantially
exceeded its respective carrying amount. However, with regard
1o goodwill attributed 1o -the Medical Reporting Unit, fair
valuies in excess of reported canrying values as a percentage is
jower than other reporting units. As a result, & future reduc-
Honirvcash flows of the related business, could trigger an
impairment. The goodwill refated to this reporting unit as of
December 37, 20271 is ¥537, 183 million. Future cash flows for
the-Medical Reporting Unit were based on-a mid-term man-
agement plan that considerad the future market growth of
medical equipment and growth ingeographies where Canon
operates its medical business, intangible assets with finite
usefullives consist primarily of software, frademarks, patents
and developed ‘zecbn@ logy, ficense fees and customer refation-
ships, which are amortized using the straighi-ine method. The
astimated useful lives of software arefrom 3 years t0: S years,
trademarks are 15 years, patents and developed technology
are from 5 yearsto 21 years, license fees are B years, and cus-
tomer relationships are from 7 years to 15 years, respectively.




income tax uncertainties

Canon xonsiders many-Tactors when evaluating and estimat-
ing income tax uncertainties. These factors include anevalu-
ation of the technical mgrits of the tax positons as well as
the amounts and probabifities of the outcomes that could
be realized Upon settlement. The actual resclutions of those
uncertainties will inevitably aiffer from those estimates, and
such differerices may ba mztenial to the Tnancial staternents,

Valuation of deferred tax assets

Canon currently has significant deferred tax assets, which
are'subject fo periodic recoverability assessments. Realization
of Tanon's deferred tax assels I8 principally dependent upon
its achievemeant of projected future taxanle income. Canon’s
iudgraents regarding future profitability may change dusto
futare market conditions, its:ability to continus 16 successfully
axecute 8 operating activities and other factars. Any changes
irthese factors miay reguire possible récoonition of significant
valuation allowances to reduce the net carrying value of these
deferred tax asset balances. When Canon determines that cer-
tain deferred tax assets may riot be recoverable, the amounts,
which may not be realized, are charged o income tax expense
ahd will adversely affect net income.

Employes retirement and severance benefit plans
Canon has significant émployee retirement ard severarice
benefit obligations that are recognized based on actuarial
yaluations. Inherent in these valuations are key assumptions,
including-discount rates and-expected returr on plan assets.
Management must consider current market condtions, indlud-
ing changes In interest rates, in sefecting these assumptions,
Dither assumptions include assumeae rate of increase:in come
pensation levels, mortalityrate, and withdrawal rate: Changes
in assumotions inherent in the valuation ‘are reasanably likely
to occurfrom pericd 1o period. Actual results that differ
from the assumptions are accumulated and armertized over
future periads and, therefore, generally affect future pension
gxperises. While managerent believes that the assumptions
used-areappropriale, the differences may affect ermployee
retirerment and severance benefit costs in the Tuture.

in preparing He financial statements for 2021, Canon esti-
mated 2 weighied-average discount rate used 1o determine
benefit obligaticns of §.5% for lapanese plans and 1.5% for
foreign plans and a weighted-average expected long-term rate
of return on plan assets of 3.0% for Japanese plans ant 4.4%
for forelgn plans. Inestimating the discount rate, Canon uses
available information ahout rates of return ot high-quality
fixed-income govetnment and corporate bonds currently
svailable and expected to be available during the perlod to
the maturity of the pension benefits. Canon establishes the
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axpecied longaterm rate of returm on plar assets based on
management’s expectations of the long-tarmreturn of the
various plar assel categories inwhich itdnvests. Maragement
develops expectations with respect to'each plan esset category
based on actbal historical retirns and its corrent expectations
for future returns,

Decreases in discount rates lead to increases in actuarial
pension benefit obligations which, 1 furn, could lead 1o an
increase In service costand amortization cost through amer
Hzation of actuarial gain or loss, adecrease In intarest cost,
and vice versa. For 2021, a decrease of 50 basis pointsin the
discountrate increases the projected benefit obilgation by
approximately ¥98,008 million, The et etfect of changesin
the discount rate, as well as the net effect of other changes in
actuatial assurnptions and experience; is-geferred until subse-
quent periods.

Decraases in expected returns oy plan assets mayingraase
net perfodic benefit cost by decrsasing the expectedreturn
arnounts, white differences betweer sxpected value and actual
fairvalue of those assets could affect pension expense ir the
following vears, and vice versa. For 2021, a-decradse of 50
basis points In the expected lohd-termn rate of return on plan
assets would Increase approxifately ¥5,758 million in net peri-
odic benefit cost: Canon multiplies management’s expected
long-term rate of returm onplan agsers by the value of its plan
assets to arrive at the expected return on plan-assets thatis
included in perision expense. Canon defets recognition of the
difference between this expected return on plan assets and
the actushreturn on plan assets. The net deferred amount
affects future pension expense,

Canorrrecognizes the Tunded status Ge., the difference
between the falr value of plan assets.and the projected.benefit
obligations) of its pension plans in s consolidated balance
sheets, with a corresponding adiustment to an accumulated
other comprehensive Income (loss), net of 1ax,

Environmental Liabilities

Liabllities for environimental remediation and other environ-
fental costs are acorued wihien enwironimiental asséssmients or
remedial efforts-are probable and the costscan be reasonably
estimated and areincluded in other noncurrent labilities in
the consolidated balance sheets. Such liabilities are adjusted
as Turther information develops or circumsiances change.
Costs of future obligations. are not discounted 1o their pres-
entvalues.

Recently Issued Accounting Guidance

Please refer to Mote 1 of the Notes to-Consolideted Finangial
Statements,
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CONSOLIDATED RESULTE OF OPERATIONS
SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS

Wiions of yen

20349 change 2020 change 2019
Met sales 3,513,357 «TL3% 3060243 1271% 3,593,299
Products and Eguipment ZE0AEB0 +12.6% 2488829 -12.2% 2,835,478
Services 708677 +5.7% 570,414 -115% 757871
Cperating profit 281,218 +1550% 110,547 -366% 174,420
Income before income taxes 2706 +132.4% 130,280 -234% 195,453
Net income attributable to Canon Inc AT #1517 % 83,318 -33.3% 124 964

Note: See note to-KEY FERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Sales

I the current busingss term, on a-global basis, the economic
recovery continuad. In such an environment, although pro-
duction activity stagnated dueto a resurgence of COVID-19
infections and a shortage of semiconductor chips, Canon's
consolidated net sales in 2021 totaled ¥3,513.357 million,
arvincreaseol 11.2% from the previols year latgely due te
zrecovery of demandin gach segment. Net'saies of prod-
ucts and equipment totaled ¥2,804,680 million, a yearon-
year increase of 126%, while net sales of services totaled
¥708,677 milion, a vear-on-year increase of 5.7%,

Owverseas operations are significant to- Canon’s operating
results and generated 76 4% of total net sates in 2021, Such
sales.are denominated in the applicable local currencies and
are subject to fluctuations in the valug of the yen relative 1o
those currencies. Despite efforts to reduce the impact of cur-
rency fiuctuations o operating results, including locslization
ol marufacturing in some regions along:with procuring parts
and materials from oversess suppliers, Canor believes such
fluctuations have had and will continge 1o have a significant
effect onits results of operations.

The average value of the ven during the year was ¥109,93
against the US, dallar, a year-orsyear-depreciation of aparoxi-
rately ¥2, and ¥125.94 against the eurg, a year-on-year

Return on Sales (%)

¢

&
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depreciation-of approximately ¥8. The effects of foreign
axchange rate fluctuations positively affectedinet sales by
approximately ¥ 110,830 millioriin 2021, This favorableimnpact
conslstad of approximately ¥38 624 million of favorabls
impact for the LS. dollar denominaled sales and favorable
irmpact of ¥47.967 million for the eurg-denominated sales,
angd favorable impactof ¥24, 235 millien for other foraign cue
rency denominated sales.

Cost of sales

Costot sales principally reflects thecost of raw materials, paris
and labor used by Caron in the manufacture of i1 products.
A portion of the raw materials used by Canen is imported or
includes imported materials. Many-of these raw materials are
subject tofluctustions inowerld market prices accormpanied by
Tluctuations in foreign exchange rates that may affect Canon's
cost of sales. Other components of rost of sales inchude
deprecialion expensas, mainienance expenses, light and

fuel expenses, and rent expenses, in20271, Canen prormioted
cost reduction such as & common platform of office MFDs,
although Canon was affected by rising prices of parts and
materisls, mainly semiconductor chips:and resin materials, as
wellas by rising transportation costs due to the high demand
Tot internationa: Trelght transpert. Under these conditions,
the ratios of cost of sales to netsales for 2021 and 2020 wete
53.7% and 56.5%. respectively. Cost-of sales as a:percentage
of net sales decreased hy 7.8 points.

Gross profit

Canon's gross profit in 2021 dncreased by 183% to
¥1.627,792 million frorm 2020, The gross profit tonet sales
ratio also increased by 2.8 points 1o 46.3%. The Increase in
the gross profit and gross profit o net sales ratio were mainly
dile tothe cost reduction mentioned above, recovery of ser-
vices and consumables due to a recovery in office ocoupancy
rates, maintained devels of sales volumes and price’levels for
the EOS RS and FOS RE full-frame mirrorless cameras, expan-
sion of the lineup t0 26 lenses through the addition of 8
new products of RF-serias interchangeable lenses whichis a
dedicated lens for tull-frame rmirrorless.cameras and carrency
exchange rate fluctuations.



Operating expenses

The major components-of operating expenses are payroll,
R&D3, advertising expenses and other marketing expenses.
Operating expénses in 2021 increasad by 6.4% year on year
10 ¥1,345,874 million, mainly due to'a rebound from the pre-
sious year, when sales activities were seversly restricted dueto
the spread of COVID-18 infections and currency exchange rate
fluctuations. However, operating expenses as 2 percentage of
fiet'sales cecredsed by 1.7 points to 38 3% due to the mro-
motion of structural reform of sales organizations, as well as
reducing business trips through the use of video conferencing
systerns. As 2 result, Canon managed to appropriately control
g¥penias I response to the growth In net sales and to control
tha growth of expenses.

Operating profit

Operating profitin 2027 increased by 155.0% from 2020 1o
atotal of ¥281,918 million, The ogerating profit to rfiet sales
ratioincreased by 4.5 points 10.8.0% from 2020,

Other income {deductions)

Other incare [deductionsy for 207 T was ¥20,788 million, an
increase of ¥1,055 million Trom 2020 mainly due to such fac-
tors-asvaluation gain on securities.

ncome before income taxes

income beforeincome taxes in 2021 was ¥302,708 milion,
arvinerease of 132.4% from 2020, and-consiiuted 8.6% of
netsales.

Income taxes

Income taxes in 2027 Increased by ¥37,529 million from 2020,
The effective tax rate for 2021 was 23.7%, which was lover
thian the statutory tax rate inJapan. This resulted froma come
bination of factors such as the Increase intax credits.of R&D
expenses, the lower effectivedax rates at foreign subsidiaries
compared to the statutory tax rate in Japan and the reversal
of the valuation allowances recognized by foreign subsidiaries
owing 10 the improvement-of the enlities’ profitability.

Net income attributable o Canon Inc

Asaa result, net income atiributable to Canon ing.in 2021
increased by 157 7% 10¥214,718 million, which repfesents
6. 1% of net sales. Nevincome atiributable to Canening as
& percentage of net sales increased by 2.6 points from 2019
before COVID-1S infactions dug to the structural reform and
measires {o improve profitability.

FINANCIAL SECTION

Segment information

Canon eperates four segments: the Printing Business Unit,
the Imaging Business-Unit; the Medical Business Unit and the
Industrial and Others Business Unit,

« The Printing Business Unit mainly includes Office MEDsS /
Docurment solutions £ Laser MFPs / Laser printers /

Inkjet printers / Image scanners / Calculators /

Digital continugus feed presses./ Digital sheetfed presses /
Large format printers

The Imaging Business Unit mainly inciudes
Interchangeable-lens digital cameras /

Interchangeable lenses./ Digital compact cameras /
Compact photo orinters / Metwork cameras /

Video management software /

Video content analytics software 7 Digital camcorders /
Digital dnema cameras / Broadcast equinment /
Multimedia projectors

The Medical Business Unit mainly includes €7 systems /
Diagnostic ultrasound systems 7 Diagnostic X-ray systems /
MR! systerms / Clindcal chemistry analyzers /
Dightal-radiography systems /. Gphthalmic sguipment

The industrial and Others Business Unit mainly ingludes
Semiconductor thegraphy equipment 7 FPD lithography
equiprment / QLED display manutacturing equipment /
Vacuum thin-film deposition eguipment / Die borders /
Handy terminals 7 Docurnent scanners

&

&

L3

Operating results by segment
Please refar to the table'of sales by segment inNote 23 ot the
Notes to Corisclidated Finantial Statemerits.

Within the Prinding Business Unit, unft sales of office MFDs
increased compared with theprevious year:as the imageRUN-
NER ADVANCE DX series saw solid dermand and dernand for
WAFDs continued to recover despite the shortage of semicon-
ductor chips, Sales of services and consumables increased
due to a recovery in office vccupancy rates. For equipment
in-the production printing rmarket, the varioPRINT iX seriesof
high-speed sheet-fed color inkjet presses earned favorable
reviews, and sales of senvices ahd corsurmables ingreased dug
to-the recovery. As for laser printers, unitsales decreased
compared with the previous year due 1o stagnation of pro-
duciion activity resulting from the resurgence of COVID-19
infections in SoutheastAsia. However, sales-of consumables
increased significantly compared-with the previous yeat, dur-
ing which tima demand had decreased. For inkjet printers,
unit sales were below these of the previous year due to stag-
nation of production activity in Southeast Asia. Howevear, unit
sales of refillable ink tank printers were ahove those of the
previous year due to solid global demand. Total sales were
above those of the previous year due to afocus on higher-
priced models, In addition, profitability improved dusto a
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cost reduction as a rasult of common platformization and
product milx as a result ofincrease of service profitdue to a
racovery in office occupancy rates, although operating costs
increased tueto a refiound from the previous year, when
sales.activities were severaly restricted due 16 the spread of
COMID-19. These factors resulted intotal sales for the busi-
ness unit of ¥1,538,847 million, a year-on-year increase

of 7.4%, while inctrie before inconia taxes increased by
53 1% year-ofyear to ¥232,952 million,

As for the Imnaging Businass Unit, unit sales of interchangeable-

lens dightal carneras were the same level as the previous year,
tlespite the shortage of semiconductar chips. The price level
wiag malntained even after more than a yedr since the ECS
RS and £OS RE full-frame mirrorless cameras were relegsed.
In addition, unit sales of RF-series interchangeable lenses
increased sianificantly dug1o the synergistic eftacts with the
carmeras. As for netwaork camaeras, desplie the continusd
irmpact of COVID-1G, sales Increased mainly a5 grasult of
strangthening sales activities for such diversified applications
as manitoring of congested and eonfined spaces a5 well a3
corventional marketnesds including cime grevention andd
disaster monitoring tools. In addition, profitability improved
due to the accelerated shift to highly profitable progucts
such as EOS Rogystemn cameras and interchangeablelenses,
slthough operating costs Ingreased dueto g rebound from
the previous year, when sales activities wera severely restricted
due to the spread oF COVID-18. These tactors resulted in total
salesfor the business unit of ¥653,582 milllon, ayear-on-
yearincrease of 20,7%, while incorie belfare iIncorme taxes
increased by 1,484.5% year-on-year to ¥78,4e2 million.

As for the Medical Business Unit, although the resurgence

Salas by Ssgment Giliens ol yer)
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ofCOVID-18 infections.and the:shortage ol sermiconductor
chips and shipping containers had an impact on production
and installation, sales remained solid due to returring routine
examinations at medical institutions. Sales of CT systemns and
diagnostic ulfrasound systerns increased mainly due to-capl-
talizing on opportunities with medical institutions in Japan
supported by the government and recovering demand in the
Narth Americs, In addition, profitaiiilty improved dus 1o & cast
reduction as g result of volurne discount Based on busingss
expansion. These factors resulted in total sales for the business
unit.of ¥480,362 million, a year-on-year increass of 10.2%,
while income before incorne taxes increased by 34.3% vyear-
ofyear to ¥34, 296 million, recording highs for both sales and
income before income taxgs for the Medical Business Unit

Asfor-the industrial and Dthers Business Unit, regarding
sermiconductor ithography eguiprment, unit sales Increased
corrparad with the previous year due to strong demand ina
widde range of products such 83 sensors and memory, For FPD
Hthography equiprment, demand for panels used in devices
including laptops, tablets and:-high-resolution display panels
remained strong. As a rasult, unit saies increased significantly
compared with the previous vear, when eqUipmient installation
staghated gus 1o drodmstances related to COVID-19. In addi-
tion, these products are mostly manufactured at the domestic
rrianyTacturiny faciites where impacts of COVID-19 related
production disruption were very lirmifed resulting in continuous
production activities with better cost reduction. These Tactors
resuited intotalsales for the business unft of ¥545, 742 mil:
llon, & year-on=year increase of 18.2%,while income before
income taxes totaled ¥44,650 million, & year-on-yest increase
of 1055%,

Sales by Geographic Area Billions of ysh)
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SALES BY SEGMENT

FINANCIAL SECTION

Millions of yen

2021 change 2020 change 2019
Printing 1,938,847 w7 A% 1,804,427 S138%  2,082.464
frnaging 653532 4230.7% 541,31 -182% 861,706
Medical 480362  +10.2% 436,074 6% 438,525
Industrial and Othiers 545742  +183% 461,522 £5.5% 493,784
Eliminations {105,126} e {83,094) — (43,180
Total 3513957 VE2% 396024%  121% 35837299

Note: Based on the realignment of Canon’s internal reporting and management structure, from 2021, Canonchas changed the name and structure of segments
from -Office Busingss Uriit, Imaging. System Business Unit, Medical System Business Unit and industry and: Cthers Business Linit to Printing Business. Unit,

Imaging Business Unit,

Medical Business Unit, and tridustial and Gthers Business binit. Major changes indude moving Inkjet printérs fromy Imaging System

Business Unit 1o the Printing Business Unit, the same busingss unit a3 Office MFDs ard Laser MFPs, and moving Netwiork sameras from Industry snid Others
Busingss Uit 1o the Imaging Business Unit, the samg busingss unit as interchangeable-lens digiial damerds. Net sales by sediments Tor the fiscal vedrs ended

December 31, 2020 and 2019 also have been redassified.

SALES BY GEQGRAPHIC AREA

fillions ot ven

2021 change 2020 change 2519
Japan 830,378 +3.0% 806,305 -7.6% 872,534
Ammeric 268,838 213.0% 852,451 7.2% 1,028,078
aurupe 884,898 +125% 7856016 -9.8% 282,480
Asig and Teeania 219242 #16.1% 705,871 -12.8% 809,207
Total 3513357 411.2% 3,160,243 1249 3,593,788

Mote: This summary-of net sales by geographic area is determined by the locationwhere the product s shipped 1o the customers,

Sales by geocgraphic area
Please refer to-the 1ableof sales'by geographic area in Note 23
of the Motes to Corsolidated Fnanicial Statements.

i Japan, net sales increasad by 3.0% from the previous

ear mainly owing To-an ingrease.in sates of C7 systerns and
diagnostic ultrasound sys,fems mainty due 1o capitalizing on
opportuniteswith medical instituticns,

In the Americas, netsales inaeased by 13 7% from the
pravious year malrdy owing to arvinerease in sales of most
products mainly due 1o the recovery from the decline of the
dermand caused by COVID-19.

In Eurape, et sales ingreased by 12 5% from e previous
yearmainly owing to.an increase i sales of most products
riainly die to the recovery from the dedine of the dermand
caused by COVID-19.

i Asia and Oceania, net sales increased by 16.1% from
the previous year maiply owing to-an increase in sales of most
praducts mainly dueto the recovery from the decline of the
dermand caysed by COVID-19,

FOREIGHN DPERATIONS AND FOREIGN CURRENCY
TRANSACTIONS

Canon'’s martketing activities are performed by subsidiaries in
various regions inlocal currencies, while the cost of sales is
generally in yen. Given Canon's current operating structurs,
appreciation of the yenrhas a negative impact-on net sales and
the gross profit to net sales ratio. Toreduce the Tinancial risks

fromechanges in foreign-exchange rates, Canon utilizes derive-
tive financial instruments, which consist orincipally offorwarg
cuTency exchange centracts,
The oparating profit on Toreign operation salesis usually
lovver than that from domestic operations because foreign
cansist mainly of marketing activities. Marketing

operations
aciivities are generally less

profitable than production activi-

tes, which are mainly conducted by the Company and its

domestic subsidiaries. Please

refer 1o the table of geo-

graphic information i Note 23 of the Notes o Consolidated

Financial Statements.

PIGLHDNTY AND CAPITAL RERQURCES
Canon's basic policy for financial sivategies is tomaintain a
sound financial position through consistent cash flow manage-
ment, and the twe basic principles of cash flow management
are as follows:
» Canon strives to improve a highly profitable structure by
further improving the profitabilityof existing businesses and
accalerating the growth of new busiresses,
+ Canonstrives to maintain financial soundness by Keaping
total capital investments for mediurm-term business expan-
sion and growth within the range of depreciation and amor-
tization experses, Howeyer, Canon plans 1o actively engade
in largé-scale MEA for growth strategies, and alse raises
axternal funds as needed
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Ralsing Funds {Cash-in)

Canon is basically funded by net cash provided by operating
activities. tn procuring funds, Canor considers tenms, currencies
ang mathods indight of fimancial market conditions, and selects
the most appropriate instrument fromm avaristy of options:

Use of Funds {Cash-0Out)
The principal use 'of cashis determined in accordance with the
fallowing priorities.

« investment for growth such as capital investment, B&D,

MEA, el

Canonvalues M&A as an option for early developrment and
xpansion of new businesses. Theselection of investment

targets is based on the growth potential and size-of the

rparket, and-on the market balng highly compatible wiith the

Canon's busingss domains and tachnologies:

Return 1o shareholders:

Canon returns profits to shareholders stably-and aggres-

sively, matnly in the form-of a-dividend, taking into consid-

eration-medium- 1o long-term business prospects, planned

future thvestments, cash flow and other factors.

= Repavrnent of borrewings:
Cancrn nas been repaying borowings inrecent years, follow-
ing fnvestment Tor growth and return 1o shareholders, in-fiscal
20271, in particdler, Canon frade stéady progress in fepayrment
of borrowings by utilizing net cash provided by cperating
activities, which fncreased from the previous fiscal year dug to
signiticantly improved business performance:

&

Cash and cash equivalents decreased by ¥6,789 million

1o ¥401,395 milllon in fiscal 20271 compared 1o the pravious
yaar, Canon’s cash and cash equivalants are primarily denomi-
rated i lapanese yen andin LS, dollars, weith the remainider
denominated in other currencles.

Cash flows (Billions of ven)
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Net cash provided by operating activities increased by
¥117,223-million to ¥451,028 million infiscal 2021 compared
to the previous year due to a significant increase inprofit. The
major cormponent of Cancn’s cash inflovy is cash received from
custorners, and the major components of Canon’s cash out-
flow are payments for parts and materials, selling, general and
administrative expenses, R&D expenses and income taxes.

Forfiscal 2027, cash inflow fromycash tecewed from cus-
tomers increased due 16 sales improvement, Thers were 1o
significant changes in Canon's collection rates. Cash outflow
for payments for parts and materials increased duetoan
increase of inventory compared with the inventory in fiscal
2020 55 g resuit of the global shottade of semiconductor chips
and the-disruption in logistic and distribution channals. Cash
outflow for payments for income taxes increased due 1o an
increase ir taxable income,

Net cash used Ininvesting activities increased by ¥51,817
rriflion 1o ¥207, 256 million in fiscal 2021 mainly duetoan
increase in acguisitions of business and in payroer for pur-
chases of fixed assets. Acguisitions.of business incraasad by
¥31,624 million 10 ¥31,75 1 million i fiscal 2021 mainly dusta
theacquisition of Redlen that play ah important fole in PCCT
development. Purchases of fixed assets increased by ¥12,631
rriftion to ¥177,350 milllon in fiscal 20271 mainly gue tocapi-
al investimien? T enhance production capadtyand etiicency.
Major purchases of fixed assets in fheal 2027 included constrite-
fon of new production base for consolidation and renovation
at Canon Mold Co., Lid. and capital invastments to.increase
Complementary Metal Oxide Serniconductor ("CMOS ") sensor
production capadity at Canon Inc., Hiratsuka Plant, efc.

Caron defines “free cash flow” as cash flows from operat-
ing activities fesscash flows from investing activities. For fiscal
2027, frew cash flow increased by ¥65,406 miliion. to ¥243,772
mitlion as compared with ¥178,366 million for fiscal 2020,
Mete: "Free dash floswr™ s a non-GAALR meature. Refer 15 the “Non-GARE

Firancial Measures™ section Tor the -explanatiot and the raconciligtion o the
reportet] GALP measuirg

Chtstanding balances of loans for the acguisition of

Toshiba Medical- Systems Corporation

{Cusrently, Canon Medical Systems Corporation) (Billions of yer)
KO
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Canon'’s managerent places imporiance on cash flow
management and fraguently monitors thisindicator.
Furthermaere, Canon's management believes that this indica-
tor is sighificant inunderstanding Caron's current liquidity
and the alternatives of bse in financing activities because it
takes inte consideration its operating and investing activities
and believes that such indicator s beneficial To Investors,
Canon refers to this indicator together with relevant Us,
SAAP financial measures showriin its consolidated state-
ments of cash flows and consolidated balance sheets for
cash availability analysis.

Net £ashused In ﬁﬂaﬁc‘ng activities totaled ¥267,366

mikioriin fiscal 2027, mainly due To &' decredse of long-tetin
l. Gans by ¥ 170,000 million as & result-of the refinandng and
the repavment -of loans which was provided forthe acguisition
of Toshiba Medical Systems Corporation feurrently, Canon
Medical Systems Corpatation) and the dividend payaut of
¥&38 891 million. The Company paid dividends in fistst 2021 of
¥85.00 per share.

To the extent Canon relies on-external funding Tor its liguid-
ity and capital reguirernents, it generally has access to various
funding sources, Incduding theissuance of additional share
capital, ssuance of corporate bond or loans. While Canon
has been able to obtain funding from its tragitional financing
sources and Trorn thie capital markets, and belleves itwill con-
tinue to be able to doso in the future, there can be ne assur
ance that adverse economic-or other conditions will not affect
Caron's liquidity or fong-term-funding inthe future.

Canonrepaid ¥344,000 millior of loans dusin December
2027, which was provided fof the acquisiti@n of Toshiba
Medical Systems Corporation {currently, Canon Madical
Systems Corporation). In-addition, on December 28, 2021,
GCanon enterad Into'a borrowing agreerment of ¥174,000
miiion with Mizuho Bank, Ltd, and MUFG Bank, Ltd: For
further information, please refer to Note 9 of the Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements. As a result, short-
term loans (includingthe current portion of long: Lerm
debt} dQCf&:SE*’“ Dy ¥347 244 million 1o ¥44,85 1 million at
December 31, 2021 compama with ¥392,.235 million at
December31, 202 Long-termidelt lexchading the current
portion} increased by ¥174,916 million to ¥179,750 miflion
at'Decemnber 31, 2021 comparec with ¥4,834 million at
December 31, 2020,

FINANCIAL SECTION

Canon'stong-term debtmainly consists of bank borrowings
and finance lease obligations.

in-order 1o facilitate access 1o global capital markets, Canon
obtaing & credit rating from S&P Global Ratings (“S&P*). In
addition, Canon mgintains a rating fron Rating and fnvestment
Information, Inc {"R&I"), @ rating agency i Japan, for access to
the lapanese capital market:

As of February 28, 2022, Canon's delitratings argr 5&F A
Uong-termil, A-1 (short-terml; and R&I AA (onig-term). Canon
does niot have any rating downgrade triggers that would
accelerate the maturity of a material amount of its debt A
downgrade i Canom's.credit ratings of outlook colild, how-
aver, increase the cost o ils borrowings.

As part of its ongoirg busingss, Canon does not participate
indransactions that create relationships with unconsolidated
antities or financial parinershins, such as entities often raferrsg
to-as stryctured finance or special purpose entities established
for the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet arrangerments
or other contractually narrow or limited purposes.

Canon provides guarantses for s employess, affillates
and other companies. The guaranizes for the employess are
principally made for their housmg loans. The guarantees for
affiliates and other companies are made for thelr lease obliga-
tionsand pank loans 1o ensure that those companies cperate
VAt fess financial rsk

Canjon would have to perform tnder a gquarantee if the
borrower defaulls on a payment within the contract terms.
The contract terms are Tyear to 15 years In case of employ-
eas with housing leans, and 1 yearto b vearsin case of
affiliates and other corpanies with lease obligations and
bark loans. T‘ze mazimurn armount of undiscounted payments
Canon would have had to make in the event of defaull’is
¥2,078 million at December 31, 2021, The carrying smaunts
of the liabilities recognized for Canon’s obligations as a guar-
ahtor under those guaraniees at Decernber 31, 2021 were
nat significant,
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CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND COMMERCIAL COMMITMENTS

The following table summarizes Canon's contractual obligations et December 37, 2021

Payments dus-by perdod

Milliors of ven Total Less than 1 vear 1-3 years 3-5 yesrs More than § years
Contractual obiligations:
Long-terry debt:
Loan from the banks 174,000 - 174000 - -
Other debt 7,040 1,280 1,529 &54 3,567
Operating lease obligations 104,519 32,941 37,738 12,648 11,192
Purchase commitmen‘tg for:
Property, plart and equipment 6,229 76,229 — —
Parts and raw materials 249,509 249905 o — -
Cther long-term Habilities:
Contribution to defined benefit pension plans 34,107 34,107 — e —
Total 641,804 354,476 213,267 19,302 14,758

Note:See Note 9, 11, 18 and. 20/ in.the Notes 1o Conzolidated Finandal Statements for further details. The table does not include provisions for uncertain tax. pogi-
tions and related scorued Interest ahd penalties, 85 the specfictming of foture payrents related 1o these obligations cannct be projected with reasonable
certainty. See Note 12, Income Taxes in the Notesto Consolidated Finangial Statements for further details.

Canon proviges warrantles of generally less-than one year
zgainst defects invmaterials and workmanship-on most of
its consumer products. Estimated product warranty related
costs are recorged at the time revenue is recognized and
sreincjuded inselling, generaland sdministrative expenses.
Estimates for accrued product warranty costs are orimarily
based on historical experience,; and are aftected by ongoing
product failure rates, specificproduct class Taltures outside of
the baseline experierice, material usage and serwice-delivery
costs incurred in correcting a product fallure, As of December
31, 2021 accrued product warranty costs are included in
accrued sxpenses and amounted 1o ¥16,949 million,

Canon’s managerment bielieves that cutrent financial
respurces, cash generated from operations and Canaon's poten-
tial capadity for additional debt andfor equity Tinandng will be
sufficient to fund current and future capital requirements.

Canor’s management policy in recent periods to optimize
inventory levels is intended to-mainiain an appropriate balance
ameng relevant imperatives, including minimizing woerking
capital, avciding undue expeosure totherisk of inventory obse-
lescenee, and mairtaining the ability to sustain sales despite
the oocurrence of unexpecied disasters,

{anon’s total nventory turnover measured in days were 66,
6, and 59-days at the end of the fiscal vears 20271, 2020, and
2018, E‘Psgectivesiy The inventory turnoyer in 2021 increased
due 1o anvincreass Ininventories of products in process-at
plantsand in transit to dealers, In orderio focus.on retover-
ing Breduction from praduct supply shortages resulting from
parts procurement difficuities and reduced operating rates at
prodiction sites,

Canon s commitiad to.cash flow managernent in order
tostrengthen its financial base, While actively investing to
expand its business performance, Canon is also ensuring
stable free cash flow by keeping total capital investments
within the range of depreciation and amortization.
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Increase in property, plant and equipment ofvan accrual
basis in 2021 ameunted 10 ¥ 151,914 milllon comparad with
¥132,307 milllon In 2020 and ¥178,088 million in 2019, F&r
2022, Canon projects s increasain props:rty plant and equip-
rrient will be approximately ¥180,000 million

Employer contributions 1o Canon’s worldwide defined
benefit pension plans were ¥43 787 million in 20271, ¥26,955
riflicn in 2020 and ¥30,383 milior in 2019, Employer con-
trinutions-to Canon’s worldwide defined contribution pension
plans were ¥22,660 million in 2021, ¥16,334 million in 2020,
and ¥17,414 milion.in 2634, Inaddition, employer contribus
Hong 1o the multiernployer pension plan of certain subsidlar
ieswere ¥4,827 million in 2021, ¥4,224 million in 2020 and
¥4,321 million in 2013,

Working capital in 2027 ingreased by ¥354, 558 million o
¥&17, 512 miflion, compared with ¥462,954 million in 2020
and ¥873,967 millior in 2019, The increase was prirarily due
toa decrease in short-termiioans (nduding the current nor-
Honof long-term debt) and an increase in invenitories. Canon
believes its working capital will be suffident for its require-
ments for the foreseeable future. Canon’s capital reguirerments
are primarily dependent on management’s business plans
regarding the levels.and timing of purchases of fixed assets
and investments, Tha working capital ratio fratio of current
assets 1o current Habilities) for 2021 was 1.77 compared to
1,35 for 2020 and 1o 1.90 for 2018,

Heturn on assets (net income attributable to Canon Inc,
divided by the average of total assets) was 4.6% in 2021,
compared to 1.8% in 2020 and 2. 6% in 2012 It improved
from the previous fiscal year due to an increase In net income
asa result of improved business performance.



Return on Canon ing. shareholders” equity (net income
attributable to Canorving. divided by the average of total
Canor inc. shareholders” equityy was 7.9% in 2021 com-
pared with 3 2% in 2020-and 4.5% in 2079, fUimproved
from the previous fiseal vear due toa significantly increase
innet income as a result of improved business performance,
althoughr shareholders” eguity increased due o an increase in
retained sarnings resulting from an increase in profit and an
increase In Toreigh currency translation adjustrnents resulting
from the deprediation of the yen,

In Phiase VI, one of Canons management polidies is to
theroughlyimplement cash flow management, and Canon is
restrengthening s financial base,

In fiscal 2071, loans decreased by ¥ 170,000 millicn due
to-the refinancing and the repayment of loans which was
provided for the scquisition of Toshiba Medical-Systems
Corporation (Currently, Canon Madical Systerms Corporation).
Asg resuit, the debtto total assets ratios weare ©.8%,
10.9% and 16.8% as of December 31, 2027, 2020 and
2018, respectively, Canon had short-term oans, current
operating lease labilities, long-terrnodebt, and noncurrent
opetating lease liabilities of ¥320,5771 million a5 of December
31, 2021, ¥506,177 rellion a5 of December 31, 2020 and
¥514,946 million-as of December 31, 2018

FREE CASH FLOW

FINANCIAL SECTION

Canon inc. shareholders” equity to total assets vatios
were 60.5%, 55.7% and 56.3% as of Decernber 31, 2021,
2020 and 2018, respectively Canon strengthened its financial
base by reducing debt through en increase in-cther retained
earnings due to an increase in profit and a.decrease in long-
term debt due Yo strict cash-flow manmagement.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures
Canon has reported I8 financial results I accordante with
U5, GAAP in addition, Canon has discussed its results using
the combination of two GAAP cash flow measutes, Net cash
provided by onsrating.activities and Net cash Used for invest-
ing activities, which Canon tefers to-a5 *Frae Cash Flow"
whichis a non-GAAP measure. Canon believes this measura is
herneficial to aninvestors understanding of its current liouidity
ang the alternatives-of uses o financing activities because it
takes into considerationits operating andinvesting attivities,
Araconciliation of this non-GAAR finandial meastre and the
rnost directly comparable measure calculated and presented in
accordarce with GAAP iz set forth onthe following table.

Milliors of yen

o

bl

15¢

T0g

50

282 2020
Net cash provided by operating activities 451,028 333,805
Net cash wsad in Investing activities {207 2586} (155,439
Free cash flow 343,772 178 366

Increase in Property,
Plant and Equipment Bilions of yer
2 Lj

017 2018

2019

0

I
far)

17 2018

Working Capital Ratio (%)

Return on-Canon Inc.
Shareholders” Equity o)

ote o 2028
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HESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT,

PATENTS AND LICENSES

Since its founding, Canornhas diversified its business and

increased its competitiveness by developing and diversifying

core competence management that comprises various core

competence technologies {("core technologies ™) fo create

Industry-leading core products, fundamental technologies

that form the basis of tedhnology dccumulation and basic

technglogies for value which are technology and expertise

that supportthe Canon brand accumulated during the com-

pany’s growth ard the basis of commercialization technology.

Canor's key RRD strategies are as follows:

s Relnforce fundamental techniologies and valde creation
technologies

» {reate future businesses based on strong core technologiss
and fundamental technologies

e Enhance inhovation-type R&D in response tothe demands of
the current age

Canon strives-to implement the above R&D strategies as
follows:
s Reinforce fundamental technologies and value creation
tachnofogies:
Contribute 1o higher efficiency of existing businesses by
further evelving vaiue creation technolonies. Alongside tis,
exiract the sssence of 2 wide range ¢f core technologies nos-
sessed by existing businesses, deepen fundamersal technolo-
gles and inject thern into core techniologies of new businesses.
In doing so, Canon will further strengthen the competitive-
riess of existing businesses and growing fiew businesses.

*» Create future busingsses hased on.strong core
technologies and fundamental technologies
Prornote development of new business areas through tech-
nology diversification. For example, Canon will develop
devices that utilize materials technology —the foundation of
ink and torer materfals— as well as materialswith unique
properties, andwork on develdoment & next-genaration
techinologies that lead to business creation

RE&D Expenses Bilions of yenj
i

340

208

27 2018 2019 2020
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«Enhance innovation-type RE&D inresponse to the
demands of the current age:
Build upen trends such as DX and carbon neutrality, promote
Ré&Drthat 'sads o corporate value improvement. In particu-
lar, focus onocyber-physical systems that closely integrate
cyberspace, which enables the combination of various
services, with physical {real world) space, the point-of con-
tectwith people. Create various rinovations by develaping
cyberphysical business models ang products that stay one
stepabead through developing advanced cyber technology
with utilizing world-class core technologles inthe physical
field and business alliances:

R&D expentedwere ¥2B7 338 million i Hiscal 20271 and
¥272,312 miflion in fiscal 2020, The R&D expenses to net sales
ratics were 8,.2% in fiscal 2027 and 8.6% in fiscal 2020,

Canon belisves that new products protected by a robust
patent portfolio will not easily alfow competitors 16 surpass
them, andwill give the company an.advaniage inestablishing
standards in the market and Industey.

Canon obtalned the third greatest number of patents in the
United Statesin 20271, acdording to the annusl rankinglist,
released by IFFCEAIMS® Patent Services,

MARKET RISK EXPOSURES

Canon is exposad 10 marketrisks, including changes in foreign
currency exchange rates, interest rates and prizes of rarket-
able securities and investments, I order 1o hedge the risk

of chaniges in foreign Currency exchange rates, Caner tses
derivative finandal instruments,

Equity price visk
Canon holds marketable securities induded incurrent assets,
witich consist generally of highly-liquid and low-tisk instru-
ments. Investrnents included In noncurrent assets are held
as long-term investments. Canondoes not hold marketable
securites and investments for trading purzoses.

WMaturities and fair valoes ol such miarketable securities
and irnvestments with original maturities of more than three
months were as follows at December 31, 2021

Millions of yen

Fair valye

Fund trusts and others &09
Equity securities 28,640
29,249




Foreign currency exchange rate and
interest rate risk
Canor operates internationally, exposing it-1o the risk of
changes in foremgn curfency exchange rates. Derivative finan-
cial instruments are comprised principally of foreign curency
exchange contracts utilized by the Company and certain of s
subsidiaries to reduce the risk. Canon assesses forsign cur-
rency exchangs rate risk by continually monitoring changes
i thie exposures and by svaluating hedging opportunities,
Canon does not hold o issue derivative financial instruments
for trading purposes. Caneon is-also exposed-fo creditrelated
losses inthe event ofnon-performance by counterparties to
derivative financial instriments, but it is not expected that any
counterparties will fail 1o meet their cbligations Most of the
ounterparties are internationally recagnized financdial institu-
ons.and selected by Canon taking into accourd thelr financial
ondition, andcontracts are diver 5 3‘ ed-across a numberof
ma}cr financial irstitations.

FINANCIAL SECTION

Caron’s intertiational operations expose Canory to the risk
of changes in foreign currency exchange rates. Canon uses
Toreign exchange contracts 1o manage certain Torelgn currency
exchiznge expostres principally from the exchange of .5, dok
lars anid edrosinto Japanese yen. Thesecontracts are prirarly
used 1o hedge the foreign currency exposure of forecasted
intercompany sales and infercompany trade recelvableswhich
are dencriinated in forsign currencies, Inaceordancs with
Canon's policy, & specific portion of foreign currenty exposure
resulting from forecasted intercompany sales are hedged usling
foreign exchange contracts which principaily mature within
three months.

The following table wrovides iInforiation about Canons
major detivative finandal instrumeants related to foreign cur
rency-exchange transactions.existing as of December 31,

20271, Allof.the foreign exchange contrasts described in the
Tollowing table have a contractual maturitydatein 2022

Milons of yen U.5% Euro Others Total
Forwards to sell foreign currencies; - ‘
Contract afnounts 78,776 B0,B47 G 769 165,392
Estimated fair value {1,014; {5453 {63 {1,652)
Forwards to buy foreign currencies:
Contract amounts 18,550 Bay/ 7,006 27,453
Ectimated Talr value 59 3 {504} {4072}

Canon expects that fair valtie changes and cash fleivs resuit-
ing from reasonable nesr-ierm changes ininterest rates will
beimmateral. Accordingly, Canon beliaves Interest rate risk
is insignificant, See also Note 9of the Motes to Consolidated
Financial Statermients.

Changes in the fair value of derivative financial Instruments
designatad as cash flove hadges, induding foreign exchange
contracts associated with forecasted irtercompany sales,

are reported in accumulated other comprebhiensive income
{lossy, These amounts ate subseguently redassified nto earrs
ings i the same period as the hedged ftems affectearnings.
Substantially all amounts recorded in accumulated other
comprehensive income (oss) as of Decermnber 37, 20271 are
expected to be recognized in net sales over the ﬂexz welve
months. Changes.in the fair value of a forsign exchange
contract Tor the period between the date thatthe forecasted
intercampany sales gocur-and ity maturity date are recognized
in-earnings.

Canon has entered into certain foreign currency exchange
contracts to manage s forelgn currency exposures. These
farelgn currency exchange contracts have not-been designated
a5 hadges, Accordingly, the changes i falr valugs of these
contracts are recorded in earnings immediately.

LOOHING FORWARD
Under the corparate philosophy oF kyosel—living and working

together for the commen gaod—{Canon's basic managément
po"'c;y is to contribute 10 the prosperity andwellheing of the
vorld while endeavoring o become a truly excelient globel
uO!’pOl’aT on targeting continued growth ard dexe.omment
Based on this baslc management pelicy, Canon launched
the Excellent Giobal Corporation Plan in 1956 and, from Fhase
[ to Phase ¥, has worked 1o strengthen its management base
and improve torporate value, In 2021, Canon started Phase
Yiofthe “Exceilent Global Corporatmn Plan:™ and undertt
basic policy 1o "accelerate our corporate porifolio 'zransforma~
Hor by imeroving productivity and creating new businesses,”
Canon reargariized our business divisions and group compa-
nies into four industry-oriented business groups of “Printing,”
“imaging,” “Medical” and “ndustrial” in arder 1o further
promote the Transformation of the business portfolio whose
foundation was established i Phase V trom 2016 10 2020).
Canon alsolaunched & new organization to accelerate the
commercialization of, among others, materials busipess and
sales-of components such as sensors to-outside businesses,
During 2021, which was the first year of Phase V1, many
production sites of Canon dlosed temporarily due to lock-
dawrsas the global spread of COVID-19 Infections continued
without being contained. Canon was also forcad 1o reduce
production due fo shartages of materials, mainty for semicon
ductors, and logistics-disruptions. However, because sconomic
activities resumed with Increased availability of vaccinations,
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Canon was able 1o adhieve an increase in both sales and prof-
its through responding to a recovery in demand.

i 20722, although there are still no projections as to
when COVID-19 will ge brought urider centrol and disrup-
tiens in pr(}dt.:ttmn and logistics are expected to continue,
Canon believes that the fundamentals of its busipess
environment are sound and have notchanged from 2021,
Accordingly, under the basic policy of Phase Vi that has
been carried out singe 20271, Carnon will focus on the folb
lowing measures,

1. Further strengthen competitiveness of industry-
oriented bBusiness groups
While creating new businesses by tombining technclogies,
regrouping the husiness domains, and utilizing M&A and
other measures foreach industry-orisnted business groug;
as well'as by strengthening the functions of developmeant,
production, and sales framework, Canon wall thoroughly
enhance business competitiveness.

(1) Printing Group

Iy theage of DX, altholgh the shift to naperiess docu-
ments will continue in the future given the fact the volume
of printed pages at offices is being reduced asmuch as
possible, printing demiand is expectedtoremain based on
the neets to share tdeas and work results on hard copies.
Due 10 the spread of COVID-18, the adoption of hybrid
working stytes that combine office work with telework-
ing is accelerating and there are demands torutllize doud
computing, etc. for'providing printing efwironments and
services not imited to a-ceriain workplace, Capen aims to
be global No. 1 in the office and home printing field by
utihzing two digitab prrting techhivlogies, namely slectro-
photogranhic technology as well asinkiet technology, and
the strengths of s worldwide sales and-service netwiork,
and by focusing onproviding printing solutions that meet
thenigeds of the DX era,

in-addition, in the flelds of catalog printing and other
commercial printingand label printing, package prnt-
ing and other industriabprintingwhere there is sxpected
ta be a furiher shift from analog to digital in the future,
Canon will take this opportunity 1o enhance workflow
software that contribuies 1o workload savings and sup-
portsincreases in added valug, as wellas to introduce new
competitive products 1o themarket continuously utilizing
the callective strengths of the entire group and establish a
strong position.

{2) Imaging Group
Atthough theoverall maret for digital cameras has shrunk
significantly due to the widespread use of smartphones,
sales of mirrorless catneras equipped with full-frame sen-
5013 ware strongeven during the spread of COWDR-19
infections and demand for high image guality photos was
steady. Asa company with the world's leading optical
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technology, Canon wilbcontinue 1o Introdiuce cameras
and interchangeable lenses to the market continuously

in response to this demand, and establish its posttion as
glebal Mo, 1 for mirrerass cameras by Tocusing on profes-
sicnal phistographers-and advanced amateurs who valie
“high image quality.” in-addition, giveri the increasing use
and application of virtual reality images, 3D images and
360% images i various fields recently, Canon is'working to
capture these new video-experienice markets using the Free
Viewpoint Video Systern, the EOS VR Syster, which was
introduced in 2021, and MREAL, etc., in order to expand
the business.

I the fielg of broadcasting and vides production, Canon
will strencthen #5 lineup of high imsge quality remaote
camera-systems in line with the continuing increase i (P
strazming demand.

iy the fleld of network carmeras, Canon will strengthen
its prasence in'the security domaln, including for smart
chiles, wtilizing the collective strength of the entire groug,
which inclides Axds, one of theworld's leading manufac-
trers of network carmeras, Milestone Systems, avideo
fnanagement software vendor, and BrietCam, & video
atalytics software vendor. At the same time, for quality
assurance work at production sites, out-of-stock detection
atdistribution centers, crowd level detection at shops ang
extibition sites and other such Uses which goes beyond the
ofiginal scope of security, Canon s working on developing
products end services that provide DX solutions. using video
for various operations.

In the field of mobility which is Undergeing rermendaus
changes, such ag the ermergenice of self-driving vehidas,
Canon isworking:on entering the car camera.and traffic
infrastruetyre businesses by Teveraging the opticaland nst-
work technology that Canon has besn develoging through
its long histary, and will contribute 1o the widespread use
of driving support and other mobility services.

(3} Medical Group

in order to respond-tosnedical treatments:that sre bgcom-
ing more advanced, Canon will expand the business
domains winclude hiealtheare 1T and in vitro diagnostics
with the dlagnostic imaging business'as.the core, aiimingto
contribute to medical treatrments around the world.

Inthe diagnostic imaging business, Cancnwill fialse with
Redlien, which was acquiredin 20271, in orderto promete
development of PCCT technology that makes it possible
to achieve both unprecedented diagnostic functions and a
significant reduction in radiation exposure, and are focused
on eatly commercialization. Inaddition, by using:Quaiity
Electrodyramics’s RE colltechnelogy, whichis s core tech-
nology for MR systems, and other original technologies
of the group companies, as well & by applying image-
arocessing technalogies, ete. that utilize AL Canon will
develop the next-generation high-performance MRI sys-
termns. In diagnestic ultrasound systems, Canon will wark 1o



reduce costs by standardizing platforms, bringing produc-
tion in-house and utilizing Canon'’s production technology.
Furthermoere, by strengthening the sales network, withia
particular focus onthe Linited States, Canon aims to have
the No. Tglebal market share for-CT systerss and becoma
one of the glchal leading companies for other diagnostic
imaging systems

Fy il Healthcare 1T field, by enabling medical instity:
tions torintearate image and non-imagedats collected in
climical seflings, analyze snd process the data utilizing Al
and othertechnologies and provide the data worldwide,
Canen aims to offer high-quality diagnestic supportand
facilitate efficient medical treatiments, In addition, in the
in vitro diagnostics field, Canon will expand the portfolic
into domalns related todiagnostic equipment, such as test
regdents for COVID-19, and expand the busingss.

Intha componeant business, Canon willexpand the
sxisting business by capturing hew customers, cansolidat-
ing sates functions etc., and while alsolooking at growth
opportunities through M&A, Canon will offer multi-layered
sottions, comprised of finished goods, modules, pro-
casses, services efe,, aiming to expand the BoB bisiness,
whose sales account for 10% or more of the total sales of
the Medical Group.

{4} Industrial Group
Giverithe widespread use of the 5G communications
standard and cloud computing, demand fersemicon-
ductors; suchi-gs 1€ and rnemory chips, is expected 1o
continue growing in the Tuture, In addition, due to the
increase inindividualized listening, viewing and lgarn-
ing wsing online districution and the shift to images with
higher resolution, demand for LCD paneis and OLED
pariels is expected 1o be strong, Production of Canon’s
serniconduictor manufacturing equipment, FFD lithogra-
phy equipment.and OLED display manufacturing equip-
ment is continuing at almostfull capacity. Recognizing
that our ability 1o respond Tlexibly to increased demand
is an importantissue, Canenwill enhande the production
systern-utiizing the collective strength of the entire group
and strengthen our customer support systemn: In addition,
Carion will improve the products by raising the perfor-
mance of those products ang intreduce additional Tunc-
tions that contribute 1o improving customer proguctivity,
arch work to expand s rrarket share,

Concurrently, Canon wil accelerate the technological
developments with a view 1o sxpanding the application of
nanioimprint fthography technalogy, aiming for eatly come=
mercialization, and focus on-establishing next-genaration
ranutacturing technology for QLED panels. Furthermore,
Canon will create new products and services that combine
core technotogies'in the.group, siich as Ultra-predision posh-
tioning, wltra-precision processing and vacuum systems,
and aim to expand the busingss domains by providing its
custormers with new values.

FINANCIAL SECTION

2. fmprove group-wide productivity through extensive
reinforcement of Canon's global headguarter
funictions
Canorwtll reaffiern its commitment to befully focused
o cash Tiow maragement.atross the entite group 8nd
further strengthen its financial base. In Japan, Canon will
improve the productivity of its employees including admin-
strative stafl by reafiocating Headcounts to growithargas
i response to the changes in the business portfolio arid
promote highly streamiined work using DX and other mea-
sures. inaddition, inorder to rebuild the produchion system
to create g resilient systermintegrated across the group,
Canon is warking to further increase automation and in
hotse production in.all businesses through collaborative
measures to expand production technologies, and will core
tinue striving 1o achieve thorough cost reductions.

Forward looking statements

The foregoing discussion and other disclosure in this report
contains forward-looking staterments thatreflect manage-
fment’s current views with respect to certain future svents and
financlat performance. Actisal results may differ materially
Trom those projected or implied inthe forward-looking state-
merits. Further, certain forwerd-looking staternents are based
upion assurapiions of future svents thatmay not prove (o be
accurate, The following important factors could cause actual
results to differ materially from these projected or implied in
any forward-looking statements: foreign currency exchangs
rate fluctuations; the uncerlainty of Canon's ability 1o imple-
ment its plans to localize production and other measures (o
reduce the impact of forsign currency exchange rate Tiutiug-
Tions; uncertainty as o economic conditions in Canon'’s major
miarkets, uncertainty of continued demand for Canon’s high-
value-added products; Canon's ability to continue to develop
praducts and to market products that incorporate new tech-
nology o 2 timely basis, are competitively priced, and achieve
market acceplance; the possibility of losses resulting from
Totelgn curréngy transactions designed to reduce Tinancial risks
fromchanges infereigncurienty exchangetates and inven-
tory risk due 1o shifts in market demand. Despite the resur-
gerice of COVID19 infections due to new variants, economic
activities have resumed and continued 1o recover due 1o the
progress of vaccination pragrams. However, i the transmission
further expands and is prolonged, it could fead to a slowdown
of the world economy and the business-of Camon, a:slow-
down i1 the business.of Canon'’s customers, suppifers and
partriers and lower investment sentiment for those parties. A
detailed description of these and ather rigk factorsisindluded
ircour annuatreport on Form 26-F, which is on-file with the
United States Securities and Bxchange Commission,
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TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

hdillioms of yer {except per share amourds)

2021 2020 2018 2018
Met sales:
Domestic B30,378 806,305 872,534 869,577
Overseas 2,882,379 7,353,838 2,720,765 3,082,360
Total 3,513,357 3,160,243 3,583,299 3,951,937
Percentage of previous.year 1112% 87.9% S0.9% $6.9%
Met Income attributable 1o Canon Inc 214,718 23,318 124,564 252,441
Percentage-of sales 6.1% 26% 35% 6.4%
Advertising A& 87 31,273 46665 58,7249
Research and development expenses 287,338 272,312 798,503 315,842
Depreciation and amortization 221,246 227,825 237,327 251,554
Capital expenditure 178,000 161,727 211,228 200,504
Long-term debt, excluding current Instaliments 178,750 4.834 387,340 361,962
Canon Inc. shareholders” equity 2873773 2,575,037 2,685,486 2,820644
Total assets 4,750,888 4625614 4,771,818 4,902,855
FPer share data:
Net inceme attributable 1o Canon lnc.
sharehalders per share:
Basie 28535 78,37 11649 233.80
Diturted 285.2% 78.35 11647 233,78
Dividend per share WHLO0 80.00 160,00 160.00
Stock price:
High 2538 3,088 3,338 4,355
Low 1876 1,627 2,688 2877
Ayverage nurmber of common shares in thousands 1.045.633 1,049,802 1,069,957 1,079,753
Number of employess 184,034 181,887 187,041 185,056
Common Stock Price Range (Tolgyo Stock Exchange) (ven)
8000
¥ {#H)
B304
5,060
000
s IT
J060 =
B S (31
LO00
V‘ 2012 2013 204 2015 e 207 2018 28 2043 2021
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Thotsands of 1S, dollars

{except per share anouris

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 FAU A
884 878 706,579 714,280 724317 715,862 720,286 5 70678
3,195,187 2,694,508 3,085,997 3,002,935 3,015,517 2,758,507 33.730,253
4,080,015 3,401,487 3,800,271 3,727,252 3,731,380 3,479,788 30,550,930
119.9% 89.5% 102.0% 99.9% 107:2% 97.8% 111.2%
242,081 150,334 218,943 254,627 229,829 224,854 1887113
5.9% 4.:4% 58% 5.8% 6.2% 6.5% £.1%
61,207 58,707 80,907 79,765 86,358 83,134 320104
333,371 306,537 332,678 311,896 307,500 296,281 2,458,581
261,881 250,096 273,327 263,480 275173 258,133 1923878
181,389 208,379 243 130 224,760 227,478 306,661 1,586,522
493,238 611,289 881 1,148 1,448 2,117 % 1.563.043
2,865,986 2,776,327 2,859,829 2,971,983 2,804,212 2,592,630 24,589.330
5201,626 5,142,279 4,431,728 4,464,854 4,248 796 3,958,547 41,312.670
22303 13766 201.4% 228.88 200.21 13155 g 178
273.03 13765 20140 Z228.88 200.21 197.58 1.7%
160.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 130.00 13000 0.87
4472 3,655 4,539 4,045 4,115 4,015 2555
3,218 2,780 3,402 7,885 2,913 2,308 16:.31
1,085,439 1,092,671 1,092,018 1,412,510 1,147,834 1,173,648
197,778 197,673 185,571 191,889 194,151 196,968

Notes: 1. U5, dollar-amounts are translated from yen at the rate of U551 = JPY 115, the approximate exchange rate on the Tokyo Foreitn Bxchange Market as
of Decermber 30, 2021.

2. Capon adopted Adcounting Standands Undate ("ASU™) No, 200707 from the quarter beginning January 1, 2018 The adoption o the new presenta-
tion reguirement of the service cost component and the other components of net bepefit cost resultsd in reclassification fromicost ot sales, and-sefling,
general and administrative expensés, and research and development éxgenses into-other indone {deductions) foi the years ended December 31 from
201716 201 2 respedtively.

. Certaln Tigures forthe fiscal years ended Degamber 31, 2012, 2015 and 2007 presented inthe table above have besn revised from the versions
praviously disclosedt. During the yeg erded December 31,2020, Canon corracted animmatenial error iy it previously Bsued consolidated finandal
staternents related to accounting for the Company's and domestic subsidiaries’ compensated absence carrviorward as disdossd in the previous fiscal
year For further details, please refer 1o ote 1 fy)of the Notes 10 Consclidated Finandal Statements

4. Deprediation-and amoriization and Capital expenditlive are the total of tangible and intangible assets.

a0
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Canan Ine, and Subsidiaries
December 31, 2027 and 2020

Witliors.of ven

ASSETS 2021 2020
Cugrent assels:

Cash and cash eguivalents (Note 1) 441,395 457,684

Shert-termy investments (Note 23 3,377 71

Trade receivables (Note 3) 524,437 546,771

Inventories (Note 4) 550,568 Gz, 807

Frepaid expenses and other current assels (Notes 6, 15 and 18} 314,488 284,556

Atlowatice for credit losses INotes 3 ang 6} {13,916} {12,746}
Total current assets 1,878,345 1,789,143

Noncuirent receivables (Note 20) 16,588 7,276
investments {(Notes 7 and 22 80,967 45064
Property, plant and equipment, net {Notes 5 and ) 1041408 1,037 680
Operating lease right-of-Use assets (Note 19) a5 704 107,361
intangible assets, net (Notes 7 and 8} 391,793 318,457
Goodwill (Notes 7 and 8) 953,850 915,564
Other assets (Notes €, 17 and 12) 404,730 3582 065
Allowance for credit losses (Note &) {2,369} (1,967
Total assets 4,750,888 4,625,674
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Short-term Joans nd current portion of long-term debt (Notes 1.and 9) 44,891 382,238
Short-terin ioans related to fnandial sarvices 42,300 45000
Other shart-term loars ang curent porticn of lorg-term debt 2,591 347,235

Trade payables (Note 10) 338,604 303,809

Accrued income taxes (Note 12) #3081 18,761

Accrued expenses (Motes 17 and 20} 323,978 37716

Current operating lease liabilitles (Nots 19) 30,845 32,307

Other current-liabilities iNotes 5, 15 and 18} 278,383 261,361
Total current abilities 1,060,833 1,326,789

Long-term delt, excluding current instaliments (Notes @ and 21) 178,750 4,834

Accryed pensionand severance cost (Note 11} 248,467 345,897

Nongurrent operating lease fiabilities (Note 19) &5.98% 76,796

Other noncarrent Habilides (Notes 12 and 1% 45024 87 857
Total liabilities 1,652,458 1,841,573

ECuity

Canon.iric. shareholders’ equity:

Comman stock
Authorized 3,000,000.000 shares; issued 1,333,763,464 shares in- 2021 ang 2020 174,762 174,762

Additional paid-in capital (Note 13) 403,119 404,620

Legal reserve (Note 13 68,0158 59,436

Retained earmings (Note 133 3538037 3,409,371

Accumuiated other comprehensive income (oss) (Nots 14) {151,794} (324,785}

Treasury stock, at-cost; 287,991,705 shares in 20271 and 287,989,819 shares in 2020 £1,158,3686) (1,158,369
Total Canen the shareholders” equity 2873773 2,575,037

Noncontrolling interests 224 654 206,010
Total eguity 5,098,428 2,784 047
Total llabilitles and equity 4,750,888 4825614

See. accompanying Notes to Consaolidated Finandal Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Canon'inc and Subsidiaries
Years ended December 31, 20271, 2020 and 2018

tillions of yen

202% 2020 2018
Met sales (Netes 6, 15 and 18)
Products and Equipment 2,804 680 2489 879 2,835,428
Services 708,677 670,414 757,871
2,513,357 3,160,743 2,583,299
Costof sales (Notes 5, 8, 11 and 19}
Praducts and Equiprment 1,552,766 1,465,637 1,627,858
Services 332,798 320,738 355,408
1,885, 565 1,784,375 1,983,266
Gross profit 1.627,792 1,375 868 15610033
Operating expenses (Notes 1, 5, 8, 11,16, 18 and 20}
Selling, general and administrative expenses 058,536 §93,002 1,137,110
Ressarch and development expenses 287,338 272,312 298,503
1,345 874 1,265,321 1435613
Operating profif 281,818 110,547 174,420
Other income {deductionsh:
Interest andg dividend income 2,232 2,873 5 825
Interest expense (GATT 8h4) {1,038)
Other, net (Notes 1, 2, 7, 11, 14 and 18 16,203 17,664 16,585
20,788 19,733 21,073
Income belore Income taxes 302,706 136,280 14k 493
income taxes (Note 12} 11 BaE 34,337 56,146
Consolidated net income 236,840 85,843 136,347
Less: Net incorme attributable to nencontroliing interests 15,122 12,62 14,383
Net income atiributable o Canoning, 214,718 83,31 124 964
Yen
Net income attributable 1o Canon Inc. shareholders per share Note 17)
Basic 285,35 78.37 116.79
Diluted 208 28 79.35 T16.77
See accompanying Netes to Conselidated Finencial Statements.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Canon Inc. and Subsidiaries
Years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019
Wiifions of Ven
2027 2020 2018
Comsolidated net income 236,840 95 843 139,347
Other coraprehensive income {loss), netof % (Note 14);
Forsign currency transiation adjustments 124,438 (17,354 {22,157
Nat gains and losses on derivative instruments {o72: 970 (1,068)
Pension liability adiustmeants 56,508 1,382 (3,630
175,875 {15,002) {36,855
Comprehensive income Joss; 406,815 80,941 102,492
Less: Comprehensive income afitibutable 1o noncontroliing Interests 19,102 3,961 16,353
Comprehensive Incorme Jossy atidbutable to Canoniine, 387,712 66,980 86,139

See. accompanying Notes to Consaolidated Finandal Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY

Canon Ine, and Subsidiaries

Yearsended December 31, 2029, 2020 and 2019

Foillicing of yen

" >

o 5 e

¥

Balance at December 31, 2018

174,763 404,389

3501850 3560066

3,010,145

Cumilative gifects of acdounting standsrd

vpdste—atpption of ASU Mo, 207712 122 122 122 — - —
Equity trargactions with noncaniraliing
interests. and other &41 @24y 217 {1,813} {1.596)
Dividends.to Canon. Inc. sharshiclders
{16000 very per share) {171,487 (171,487 (71,487 F171,48T)
Dividerds fo nofcanrolling terests {5,557} {5:557)
rarsfers todegal reserve 456 456} — — —
Comprehensive’ ncome:
Metl income 124,964 124964 124,964 14,385 138,347
Other comprahansive income (loss),
netof tad (Note 14):
Farsgv cumency translation adiustments {37,043 32,04% {114} BAI5R
Met gains and fosses on
dedvative instruments (1,073 HA75 g {10658
Pension liability adjustments {5, 709) 5,708 2079 {3,630
Tatal comprehenswe income Hoss) 86135 16,353 162,492
Repurchases and reissuance of treasury stodk ()] HH {10y (A8.9043 (G001 R EQOT7
Balance at Decernber 31, 2018 174762 405017 67577 3455033 RG5Z2655 (308A4Z) (1708495, 2.6854596 198484 2883580
Cumidative sffects of gccounting standared
dprate—adoption of ASU No. 2016413 (158 {155) (55 - {158}
Equity tramsacticns with ngncontrofling
iterests and other {316 {9y {15 134403 1,061 751
Dividends ¥ Ganor ne, shareholders
(120,00 yerrper share) {126,938y {126,838 (126938 126,938)
Dividends to nongontrofling interasts {4576) [4,526)
Transfers to fegal fesarve 1,868 {1 864} e st o
Comprehensive income;
Wet inoome 83,318 83,318 B3.318 12,625 95,943
Other comprehensive ncome Joss),
mat of tax (Note. 14),
Fopaldgr cirrenty transiation adigstments 117,355 {17 355; 1 {17354}
Net gains and iosses on
detivative instruments 587 987 {17} 970
Pension-liability. adjustments 30 30 1,352 1,382
Total comprehensive income (oss) &6 980 13,967 80:941
Repuichases. and reisstiance.of treasury stock (81 {65y B9 {49 8358} 50,008} {50,008
Balance at December 31, 2020 174,767 404,620 69456 34098717 3478807 (324789 41158368 2575031 200000 2784041
Equity transactions with
noncortroliing. interests and other L{7y] [11¥4] 1L 1,663
Dividends to Canon In¢. shareholders
(85.00 yen per share) @80T (BRE0Y) {88801y (88,401
Dividends 1o roncentroling interasts {5,181 {5,180
Transters 1o legal reserve {1,425 {14211 FA5G 1428 e -
Comprehensive.income;
Met incame a3 #3478 285,748 16122 230,840
Othér comprahansive iricome (oss),
riet of tak (Note 14
Fargign curfency transiation adjustiments 115185 149,185 1214 120458
Net gains and Tosses ofy
dervative instruments 8543 {8443 22 {803
Pansicn llability adjustments E4.324 54,824 1682 56,508
Tetal comprehensive income Hoss BT R 19102 406,815
Bepurchases and relssuancs of treasty stock 1 {1 {11} - {18y 14}
Balance gt Dicember 31, 2021 LNy 403,118 SB0%%  FRIL0IY 3608052  [IRLIGN (1IRREEE) 2873713 F2AE5E 1088428

Seeaccompanying Notes to Consolidated Finandal Staternents.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Canon'inc and Subsidiaries
Years ended December 31, 20271, 2020 and 2018

iflichs of yen

202% 2020 2019

Cash flows from operating activities;
Consolidated net income 230,840 4%, 943 139,347

Adiustiments to. reconcile consolidated net income to net cash provided by
operaling activities;

Depreciation and amoertization 221,246 227,825 237,327
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 7,745 4,326 5891
Deferred income taxes {9,826} {15,542} (6,523)
Decrease in trade receivables 44,678 15 120 43 504
(ncroase} decrease in inventories {61,019 16.075 18,885
Increass {decreasel in trade payables 52,9138 14,636} {35,509
Increase (decrease) in acorued incorme taxes 24,817 43 (22,279
(Degease) inwrease in accrued expenses {8.8673) {16,413} 9735
Decrease wv-accrued pension and severance cost (41,4773 {16,601} {13,722
Other, net {Note 8) {8,543) 21,665 {19,308
Met cash provided by operating activities 451,028 333,805 358,461
Cash flows frominvesting activities:
Purchases of fixed asséts (Note &) {177,350} {164,719} (215,671
Proceeds Tram sale of fixed assats (Note 5) 3,756 7,815 825
Purchases of heldto-rmaturity securities {2,216} P -
Purchases of securities {2,160 (552 (4,807
Procseds from sale and maturity of securities 1,714 558 828
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired {Note 73 {31,750 {127 {8.880)
Cther, nat 713 1626 823
Net cash used In investing activities £207,256) {155,439} (228,568)
£ash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt (Note ) 175,300 2,100 o
Repayments of long-term debt (Note' g {347,029} {11.085) (8,678)
(izzrz&sgﬂ 1;;;{@5155 in-short-termy loans related 1o finandal services, (2,700) 5,100 5,200
Dividends paid {88.881) {126,938} 171,487
Repurchases and relssuance of treasury stock, net {173 (50,008; {50,012
Cther, net {3.32% (2,608 WESE)
Netcash used In finandng activities {267,366} {183, 4457 (232,590
Effect of sxchange rate changes off cash and casheequivalents 17,305 a7 (5,134
Net change In cash-and cash eguivalents {6,289 5,139 (107,831
Cash and cashr equivalents at beginning of year 407,684 412,814 520,645
Cash and cash equivalents at end of yesr 401,395 AT B84 412,814

Supplernental disclosure for cash Hove irdormation:
Cash paid during the year for:
frrterest 599 1,028 828
Income taxes 71573 45,471 77,654

See accompanying Notes to. Consolidated Finandal Statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Canon Ing. and Subsidiaries

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

{a) Description of Business
Canor inc, (the "Company "} and its subsidiaries (collectively
"Canon™y is one of the world’s leading manufacturers of
office multi-function devices {7 MFDs "), laser printers, inkiet
printers, cameras, medical equipment and Ethography equip-
marit. Products of the Printing Business Unit consist miainky of
office MEDs, document solutians, laser multifunction print-
ers ("MFPSYY, laser printers, inkjet printers, image scanners,
caleulators, digital continuous feed presses, digital sheet-fed
presses and large format primters. Products of thelmaging
BusinessUnitconsist mainly of interchangeable-lens digital
cameras, interchangeable lenses, digital compact cameras,
cormpact photo printers, network cameras, video managerment
software, videg content analytics software, digital carncorders,
digital ciriema carmeras, broadoast aguipmant and multime-
dia projectors, Products of the Medical Business Unit consist
malnly of computed tomography ("CT") systems, diagnostic
ultrasound systems, diagnostic X-ray systems, magnetic reso-
nanceirhaging {"MRI" ) systems, dinical chemistry analyz-
ers, dightal ragiography systerms and ophthalmic egquibment,
Produets of theindustrial and Others Business Unit consist
mainly of semiiconauctor ithography equipment, Flat Panel
Display ("FRD "7 lithography equipment, Organic Light Bmitting
Diode ("OLED ™) display manufacturing equipment, vaclum
thin-film deposition eguipment, die bonders, handy terminals
and-document scanners. Sales are'made principally under the
Canen-brand name; almost entirely through sales:subsidiaries.
These subsidiaries are responsible for marketing and distribu-
Hor, and primarily sell 1o retail deslers in thelr geographic
area. Further segment information is described in Note 23,
Canon sells laser printers ort an OFEM basisto HP Ing.; such
sales constituted 11.6%, 11.4% and 13.0% of consolidated net
sales for the years ended Decemnber 31, 2021, 2020 and 2018,
respectively, and are included in the Printing Business Unit.
Canon’s manufacturing operations are conducted primarily
2t 29 plants in Japan and 13 overseas plants which are iocated
in countries and regions such as the United States, Germany,
Franice, theNetherlands, Taiwan, China, Malaysia, Thailand,
Vietnam and Philippines.

(b} Basis of Presentation

The Company-and 115 dormestic subsidiaries maintain-their
books of accountin-conformity with finanga! accounting
standards of Japan. Forglgn subsidiaries maintain their books
ofaccount in conformity with financial accounting standards
of the countries of their damicile.

Certalradjustments and reclassifications have been incorpo-
rated in the accompanying consolidated financial staterments
to conformawith U.S. generally accepted sccounting principles
LS GAAP™Y. These adjustiments wers:hot recorded i the
statutory books of account,

Canon has separated the presentation of allowance for
credit losses from the related recelvable balahces which are

CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021

included in trade receivables, prepaid expenses and other
current assets, and othier assets inthe accempanying cop-
solidated balance sheels, from 2071, Consolidated halance
sheet for the year snded DRecember 31, 2020 has alse been
reclassified.

Canorn has also changed the presertation of ”Short-term
loans related to financial services” separated from “Shert:
term loans and current-portion of long-term debt” in the
cansolidated balance shests frem 2021, Further, Canon
has separated the preseniation of "{Decréass) increase.in
shiort-term loans related 1o financial services, net” from
“{Decrease) increase inshort-term leans, net” and included
the presentation of “(Decreass) increase’in short-term loans,
net” w “Cash flows fromitinancing activities: Gther, net”
inthe consolidated statements of cash fiows from 2021,
These changes were made 1o enhiance the prasentation of
the Company’s short-term borrowings for the users of the
consolidated financial statements, To conform with the cur
rentyear-chiange in the presentation, the consolidated bal-
ahce sheetfor the year ended December37, 2020 and the
consolidated staterment of cash flows Tor the years ended
December 31, 2020 and 20798 have been reclassified.

{c} Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated finandal statements indude the accounts of
the Company, Its majority cwned subsidiaries and those vari-
able interest entities where the Company or its consolidated
subsidiaries are the primary bensficiaries. All significent mter

corfpany balances and transactions have been elirminated,

(d) Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in
conformity with LS. GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported ameunts
of assets and fiabilittes and the disclosure of contingent assets
ang liabilities at the date of the consolidated Tinancial state-
ments and the reported amolmnts of Teverives and expenses
during the period. Significant estimates and assumptions are
reflected invaluationand disdlosure of accounts including:
revenue recognition, aliowance for creditlosses, inventories,
long-ived assets, leases, gocawill and other intangible assets
with indefinite useful fives, ervironmental liabiiities, deferred
tax assels, unceriain tax positions, employes retirement and
severance benefit obligations and business combinations.
Actuairesults could differ materially from those estimates. In
addition, nevi-wayes of COVIDS infections are being seen
in some regions, and it s still difficult to predict when COVID-
19 will be brought under control, However, each country and
regior continues 16 pursue both theinfection control and sco-
norric activities. Actual results and outcornes may differ from
management’s estimates and assumptions due to risks and
uncertainties, including uncertainty in the current ecenomic
environment tiggered by COVID-18



{e) Translation of Foreign Currencies

Assets and lebilities of the Company’s subsidiaries locatad
outside Japan with functional currencies oiher thar Japanese
yen ate transiated into-Japanese yen at the rates of exchange
irveffectat the balancesheet date. Income and experse iterms
are translated at the average exchange rates prevailing during
the yean Gains and losses resulting from translation of finan-
cial staternents are excluded from earrings and are reportediin
ather cormprehensive incoms (loss).

Gains and losses resulting from foreign currency transac-
tionsand translation of asseis and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencles are Included In other income (deductions)
inthe consolidated statements of income, Foralgn currendy
exchandge gains and losses were net losses of ¥21,748 mil-
lion, ¥4,4571 million and ¥£,236 milllon Tor the years ended
Pecember31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, respactively.

{f} Cash Equivaients

Al highly liquid Investrents acouired with original maturities
of-three months orless are considered to be cash equivalents.
Cartdin debtsecurities with original maturities of less than
three manths, cdassified as svallable-forsale securities of ¥500
miliior-at both December 37, 2021 and 2020, sreincluded in
cash andicashrequivalentsin the consolidated balance sheets,

{g} investmenis

Investments consist primarily of time deposits with original
maturities of more thar three months, debit and equity securl-
fies-ang Irvestrents.in affiliated companiss,

Canon classifies investments in debt securities as held-to-
raturity debt securities and avallable-forsale securities. Canon
does nothold-any trading securities which are bought and
held primarily Tar the purpose of sals in the nesr term. Canon
feports investaents with: maturities of 1ess than one vear as
shori-termy investments.

Availabie-forsale debt securities and equily securities with
readily determinable fair value that are rot accourted for
under the equity method are recorded at fair valtie whicn is
determined based on guoted market prices, projected diss
counted cash-flows or other valuation technigues as approgri-
ate The charigesin fair value for equity securities are included
imother, net in the consolidated stataments of income. The
changes in Talr value for available-for-sale debi securities are
included in net unrealized gains and losses on securities-inthe
consolidated statements of comprehensive incoma,

Held-to-maturity debt securities are recorded at amortized
cost. The fair values of equity securities are mainly measured
at the guoted market price.

Available-forsale debt securities are regularly reviewed
for other-than-temporary declines in the carrying amount
based on griteriz that indude the length of timg and the
axtant to which the market value hes been less than cost,
the financial condition and near-ferm prospects of the issuer
and Canon's interit and abliity 1o retain the Investment for 2
petiod of tirne sufficient to-allow for any anticipated recovery

FINANCIAL SECTION

inmarket value. For available-forsale securities for which
the declines are desrned 1o be other-than-temporary and
there is no intent to'sell, the impairment is separated into the
amount related to credit loss, which is recognized in earn-
ings-and the amotint refated ta-all otherfactors 5 recognized
irv other comprehensive income (fossy. Tor available-for-sale
securities for which the declines are deemed to be other-
than-temporaty andthers s an intent to sell, the impairment
i it entirety is recognized i earnings. Canoh recognizes

an impairment loss 1o the extent the cost basis of the invest:
ment excaeds the fair value of the investment,

Canon measures non-marketable aguity securities without
readily determinable fair value at cost, minus impairment, if
ahy, plus ar minus changes resulting from observable price
changesin orderly transactions for an identical ora similar
investment of the same iSsuer

Realized gains and losses arg determined by the average
costmethod and reflected Insarnings

irvestments in affiliated companies overwhich Canon
has the ability to exercise significant influence, byt does not
haold 2 controlling fimandel interest, are accounted for by the
aouity method.,

{h} Allowance for credit losses

Allowance forcredit tosses for trade and finance raceivanles
is maintained Torall custermers based on ASC 326 "Rinancial
Instruments — Credit Losses,” considering various factors,
including aging analysis, macroeconomic conditions and
historicalexperience. An additional reserve {or Individual
accounts is recorded when Canon becormes aware of 2 tus-
tamers inability 1o meet its Tinancial obligations, such asin the
case of bankruptoy filings. f drcumstances refated tocus
tomers change, estirates of the recoverability of receivables
viould be further adivsted. When all collection ontions are
exhaustad including legal recourse, the accounts of portions
thereof are deermed 1o be uncollectable and charged against
theallowanice,

{i} Inventories
Inventories are stated atthe lower of cost or et realizable
valtie. Cost is determined by the average method for domiestic

inventories and principally by the first-in; first-out method for
oyerseas inventories.

{i) Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets, such as progerty, plant and squipment,

and acquired intangible assets subject to amortization, are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changssin
circumstances.indicate that the carrying amount of an asset
may 1ot be recoverable. Recoverabilily of assets to be held
and used is measured bya comparisonof the carming amount
of the dsset and the estimated undiscounted future cash Hows
sxpected to he generated by the asset if the carrying amount
of the asset exceeds its estimated sum of undiscounted

futbre cash flows, anvimpalement charge is recognized in the
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NMOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

amaount by which the carrving amount of the asset exceads
the fair value of the asset. Assels to be disposed of by sale are
reporfed at the lower of the carrying ameunt or fair value less
costs tosell, and are no lenger depreciated.

{k} Property, Plant and Equipment, net
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumu-
lated depreciation. Degrediation s caltulated principally by thie
dedlining-balance migthod, except for tertain assets which are
depreciated by the stralght-ine method over the estimated
usefullives of the assets,

The degreciation perlod renges from 3 vears to 60 vears for
buildings and 1 year to 20 years for machihery and equipment,

(i} Leases

s torlessor accounting, Canon provides leasing arrange-
mentsio s custamers primarily for the sale of oftice-products.
Revanle from the sale of these products under sales-type
leases is recognized al the inception of the lease. Interest
incorme on sales-type leases and direct-finandng leases is rec-
ogrized overthe life of sach respectivetease Lsing the interest
mathod, Leases not gualifying as sales-type teases or direct-
financing leases are accounted for as operating feases and
related revenue is recognized ratably over the lease terrm. When
proguct legses are bundled with malrtenance contracts, rev-
anue s allocated based upen the estimated standalone seling
prices of the lease ahd non-lease components. Lease compo-
nerts generally include product and financing while non-lease
corhpenerits.ganerally consist of maintenance contracts and
supplies. Someof the contracts indude options to-extend or
o terminate the lease. Canon tekes such options into accoun
io-determing the lease termywhersil is reasonably certain that
customers will exercise thess options. The majority o Zanon’s
lease contracts do notcontain bargain purchase cotions for
thelr customers. Assels leased 1o others under operating leases
are stated al.cost and depredated fo the estimated residual
value of the assets by the straight-Jine method over the lease
term, generally from 2 years 1o 50 years

As Tor lessee accounting, Canen has operating and finance
leases for various assets induding office buildings, warehouses,
gmployees” accornmaodations, and venicles. Canon determines
it an arrangement Is & lease at the inception of each contract
Seme of the contracts Include options to extend of to ter-
minate the lease. Canon takes such.options into accelnt 1o
determing theleaseterm whenitis reasonably certainthat it
will exercise these options. Canon’s lease arrangernents do not
contain material residual value guarantees or material restric-
tive.covenants. As atate implict in the mostof Canan'’s leases
carnot'be determined, Canon uses incremenial borrowing
rates based on the information available 4t commencerment
todetermine the presentvalues of lease payrments. Canon has
lease contracis with lease and non-lease componants, which
are accounted for separately. Canon allocates the consideration
iy the lease contract to the lease and non-lease companents
based upon the estimated standalope prices. Costs associated
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with operating lease assels-are fecognized on & sizaight-line
basis over the term of the lease.

{m} Goodwill and other intangible assets
Goodwill and other infangible assets with indefinite useful
lives are not amaortized, butare instead tested for impairment
annually In the fourth quarter of each vear, or more frequently
itindhicators of potential impairmentexist, Allgoodwiilis
assighed to the reporting unit or gnits that benefit from the
syniergles arising from sach business combination. If the car-
rying.amount assigned to the reporting unit exceeds the fair
vatue of thereporfingunit, Canon retognizes an Impairment
chiarge I an amount sousl tothal excess, limmited 1o the total
amount of goodwill allocated to that reporting unit.
intangible assets with-finite useiul lives.consist primarily
of sottware, trademarks, paterts and developed technology,
licanse feas and customer relationships, which dre amortized
using the straight-line method, The estimated useful fives of
saftware are Trom 3 years to 8 years, trademarks are 15 years,
paterrs and developed technology are from 5 years to 21
years, lcense fees are Syears, and customer relationships dre
frome7 years 1o 15 vears, Certain costs inclfred in connec-
tion with developing or obtaining internal-use softwere are
capitalized. These costs.consist primarily of payments made o
third parties. and the salaries of employees working on such
software development. Costs incurred in connection with
developing internal-use software are capitalized at the appii-
cation development stage, in addition, Canon capitalizesth
costwhich was incarred subsequent 1o the stage of assuring
the technological Teastbility of the software for marketing
purposes sither developsd or acguired,

{n) Environmental Liabilities

Lispilitles for environmental remediation and otherenviron-
miental costs are accrued when ervironmental assessments or
remedial efferis are probable and the costs ean be reasonably
esfimated, and arednduded inother noncurrent liabiiifiesin
the consolidates halance sheets. Such liabiities are adiusted a8
further information develops or dreumstanices change, Costs of
future obligations are not-discounted to their presentvalues:

{o} Intome Taxes

Defarrad tax assets and Habilities are recognized for the
estimated future tax consequences attributable 1o differences
between the financial statementcartying amounis of existing
assets and liabiities and thelr respective tax bases and oper-
ating loss and tax credit carryforwards, Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are measured using snacted tax rates expectsd
to-apply to-taxable income inthe years iInwhich those tem-
porary differences are expected to be recoveraed or setfled,
The effect on deferred tax assets ard liabilities of s changein
tax rates s recognized in income In the period that includas
theenactment date: Canon records & valuation allowance

1o reduce the deferred tax assets to the amount that s mors
likely than not realizable.



Canan recoghizes the financial staternent effects of fax
positions-when it is more Hkely than not, based on the
technical merits, that the tax positions will be sustained
ypon examination by the texauthorities; Benefits fromriax
positions that mest the more-likely-thar-not fecognition
threshold are measured at the fargest amount of benefit that
Is greater than 50% likely of being realized upon settiement.
friterest. and panaltios acorued related to unrecognized tax
benefits areincluded in ntome taxesdn theconsolidated
statements of Income.

{p} Stock-Based Compensation

Canon measured stock-based compenisation cost at the grant
date, hased on the fair value of the award, and recognizes the
cost o a straight-line basis over the requisite service period,
which fs-the vesting period.

{g} Net Income Attributable to Canon Inc.
Shareholders per Share
Basic net income attributable to Canon Inc. shareholders
persharé s computed by dividing net incorme attrbutable
toCanon inc. by the weaighted-average number of common
shares outstanding during each year. Diluted net income
atrributable 1o Caron inc shareholders per share includes the
eftect from potential issuances of comimor stock based on tha
assumptions that all stock options were sxercised.

{r} Revenue Recognition

Canon gensrates revenue through the sale of products.of the
Printing Business Unit, the Imaging Business Unit, the Medical
Business Unit and the Industrial and Others Business Uniy, sup-
nhies and related services-underseparate contractual arrange-
rrents. Revenueis recognized when, of as, control of prom-
ised goods or services transfers to fustomers In an amount
that reflecis the consideration to which Canon-expects to be
entitledin exchange for ransferring these goods or services.
For further information, please referto Note 15,

{s} Research and Development Cosis
Hesearch and development costs are expensed-as incurred.

{t) Advertising Costs

Adveriising costs are expensed as incurred, Adveriising
expenses were ¥36 812 million, ¥31,273 million and ¥45.665
miliion for the years ended Decernber 31, 2021,.2020.and
2019, respectively.

{u} Shipping and Handling Costs

Shipping and handiing costs totaled ¥52 347 million, ¥47,721
miliion and ¥51,718 million for the years ended December 31,
2021, 2020 and 2019, respaciively, andare included inselling,
general and administrative expenses in the consolidated state-
ments of income

FINANCIAL SECTION

{¥} Derivative Financial Instruments

All derivatives are recognized at fair value and are included in
prepaid expenses and other current assets, or other current
ligbilities in the consolidated balance sheets,

Caron tses and-designates certain derivatives 352 bedge
of a forecasted transaction or the variability of cash flows 1o
be received or paid related to a recognized asset or lability
{"cash flow” hedge). Canorformally documents all relation-
ships between hedging nstruments and hedged items, as well
as.its rislk-management objective and strateqy for undertaking
various hedge transactions Canon also formally assesses, both
at the hedgesinception and on an ongeing basis, whether
thiz derlvatives that are Wsedin hedaing transactions are highly
effective in offsetting changes in cash flows of hedged items.
When it is determined that a derivative is nothighly-effective
35 #hedge or that it has cegsed 1o e & highly effective hiedge,
Canoh discontinues hedge accounting prospectively Changes
i the falrvaive of & derivative that s designated and qualifies
as a cash flow hedge are recorded in other comprehensive
incorme (ossy, until earmings are affected by thevariability in
cash flows of the hedged item, and reclassified in the same
incorne statement line tterm in which the earnings effect of the
hedged tterm s reported.

Canon also uses certaln gerivative financial instruments
which are not gesignated as hedges. The changes in tairval-
ves af these dervative financial instruments are immediately
recorded irr garnings.

Canon classifies cash. flows from dervatives as cash tlows
Tromyoperating activities inthe consolidated staternents of
cash Hows,

{w) Guarantees

Caron recognizes, atthe incephion of & guaranies, & Hability
for the fair value of the obligation it has undertaken inissu-
ing guarantees

{x} Recent Accounting Guidance

Canon evaluates gl recently Issled accounting pronounce-
ments applicable toits consolidated finandial statements. No
pew accounting pronouncement issued-or effective has had,
or s expected 1o have, a material impact o Canon’s cansoli-
dated financal statements,

{v} Correction of an Immaterial Ervor
During the year ended December 31, 2020, Canon corrected
anerror inits previously Issued consolidated financial state-
rents rafated 1o accounting for the Campany and dormestic
tibsidiaries” compensated absence carryforward inaccordance
with 85C 710 "Compensation.” in evaluating whether the
previously issued consalidated financial statements were mate-
rially misstated for the anriual periods privrto December 371,
2020, Canon applied the quidance of ASC 250, "Atcounting
Changes and Error Cofrections,” SEC Staff Accounting Bulledin
{"SAR") Topic 1.0 " Assessing Materiality” and SAB Topic
1N “Considering the Effects of Prior Perfod Misstaternents
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whiern Quantifying Misstatementsin Current Year Finanicial
Statements,” and concluded that the effect of the error on
prior period financial statements was immaterial; however, the
cumudative effect of correcting the prior period misstatements

Consolidated statement of income as revised in 2020

inthe year ended December 31, 2020 would have been mate-
rial to the December 34, 2020 conselidated financial state-
ments. As.a resuli, Canon previously revised its consolidated
firiancial statements as Toliows;

Year anded Decerabar 31

Millions of yen

2019
As mevised As previously reported
Selling, general and adminisirative expenses 1,137,110 1,136,853
Cperating profit 174,420 174,667
income before income taxes 185,493 185,740
Income taxes 56,146 56,223
Corsolidated net Income 139,347 138,517
Less: Net income attributable to noncontroliing interests 14,383 14,412
Net inceme stiributable to Canon fnc 124,964 125,105
Yers
Mt income attributshle to Canon inc. shateholders per share:
Basic 116,79 11683
Diluted 118.77 116.91

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income as revised in 2020

Year ended Décernber 31

Millire of yen

019

As revised ‘ A5 &Ev&au&& repdﬁed
Consolidated netincome 139,347 139,517
Less: Comprenensive income attributable to noncontralling interests 16,353 16,382
Comprehensive incorpe {loss) attributable 1o Canonaing, 86,132 85,280

Consclidated statement of cash flows as revised in 2020

Year ended December 31

Millions. of ven

2018

His svised As previausly reported
Consolidated net income 139,347 139,517
Increase in accrued expenses 9,738 9,491
Deferred income faxes 652%) {6,448)

The consolidated statement of equity has been revised, accordingly
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2. INVESTMENTS

FINANCIAL SECTION

Held-to-maturity debt securities included 1 shott-term investments inthe. accompanying consolidated balance sheet were
¥7, 164 milliorrat December 31, 2021, There vware no held-to-maturity debt securities as-of December 31, 2020

Held-to-maturity deit securities included in shortterm investments at Recamber 31, 2021 areas follows:

Mithons of yen

Carwing ariount Estitated fairialue Difference

i

Due within one vear

2,164 2,164 3

There were no avallable-for-sale debt securities Induded inrshort-term investments and investments at December 31, 2021 and

2620, respectively.

The-unrealized and realized gains and losses related To equity securities for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2028.2nd

2019 are as follows:

Years erded December 31

Miliens of yen

2821 2020 2019
Met gains and (osses) recognized during the pericd on eguity securities 8,958 1,959 7148
Lessy Met gains and-ilossesy recognized during the period on
equity securities sold during the petiod 467 477 {76
Worealized gains and {losses) recoghized during the patiod on
equity securities stitl held at December 37 8.491% 1,482 2224

The carrying amount of non-marketable eguity securitiss
without readily determinable Talr value totaled ¥6,661 millian
and ¥8.559 million at Becember 31, 20271 and 2020, respec-
tively. The impairment or other adjustments resulting from
ohservable price changes recorded during the vears ended

December 31, 20271 and 2020 were not significant,

Time depositswith atiginal maturities of more than three
months are ¥1,213 million and ¥ 71 million at Decernber 37,
2021 and 2020, respectively, and are included in shorttérm
investments in the actompanying censolidated balance sheets,

investrments i affiliated companies accountad for by the souity method are a3 follows;

Years etded Decembigr 31

Millions of yen, except-percemtage data

Fary
Owinership 201 2020
percentags
Canon Korea inc. % 11,8627 715
Others e 1398 88915
s 24,025 19,634

The ditference petween the cartying amount of investment in
each affiliate and Canon’s share of s net.assets is immaterial,
Canon's share of the netearningsin affiliated companies
accounted for by the squity mathod, included in other income

{deductions), were earnings of ¥1,356 million for the year
ended Decernber 31, 2021, and losses of ¥984 milllorrand
Y311 millfon forthe years ended Decermber 31,2020 and
2018, respactively.
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NMOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. TRADE RECEIVABIES

Trade receivables are summarized as follows:

December 37

Milhiors of ver

2821 2024
Motes 28878 34,922
Accounts 453,816 511,849
Trade recelvahbles 522432 E46. 771
Less allowance Tor aedit losses {12,494} {11,645)
509438 535,126

4. INVENTORIES

Inventories are summarized as follows:

Dacember 31 Millions of ven
2021 2020
Firished goods 395,381 352,513
Workiin process 198,153 160,696
Raw matarials 56,034 45 598
650,568 562,807

E. PROPERTY, PLANYT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and eqliptent are stated at cost Igss accumulated deprediation and are summarized a8 follows:

Decemilier 31 Mlliors of ven
2021 2020

Land 276,306 270,308
Budldings 1. 72881 1 B87 824
Machinery and eguipment 1,849,271 1,806,185
Construction in progress 43,283 37,324
Finance lease right-of-use assets &.533 5,048
Cost 3,904,204 3,807,786
Less accumulated depreciation (2,862,807 (2,770,708}
Property, plant and equipment, net 1,041,403 1037 680

Depredlation expenses for the years ended December 31,
20271, 2020'and 2018 were ¥156,333 million, ¥162,733 mil-
fion and ¥170,418 million, respectivaly.

Arnounts due for purchases of property, plant and squip-
rment were ¥29 562 million:and ¥27,688 million at December
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31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, and are inciuded in other
current liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets. Fixed assets presented in the consolidated statements
of cash tlows indude property, plant and equipment ana
intangible assets.



&, LERBSOR ACCOUNTING

FINANCIAL SECTION

Lease income is included in Products and Bguipment sales in the accompanying consolidated statements of income. Supplerental

incorme staterment information is as follows;

Years ended December 31

Millions of ven

2821 72020
Lease Income ~ sales-type ang direct financing leases
Revenue at lease commencement &4, 855 92, 133
Interest income on lease receivabiles 18,351 18,594
103,246 110,727
Lease income ~ operating fesses 2722 23,874
Varlable lease income 5.277 5,343
135,645 135,948

Finance Receivables and Operating Leases

Finance receivabley reprasent financing leases, which consist
ot sales-type leases and direct financing leases. These recely-
ables typically have terms ranging from 1 year to 8 years. The

cormponents of the finance receivables, which aredncluded In
prapaldexpenses and other current assets, and otherasseis in
the accormpanying consolidated balance sheets, are as foliows:

Cecember 31

Wilions of yen

2021 208

Total minimurm lease payments recefvable 366,051 237,265
binguaranteed residual values 12,192 11459
Executory costs - —_
Linearnad income 31,619} 175, 541)
346,624 318,183

Less allowance for credit losses {3,791} 3,068)
342833 316,115

Less current portion {115,802} (108.837)
‘ ' 222,931 207,278

Alowance for Credit Losses
The activities inthe alfowance for credit tosses are as follows:

Years ended December 31

Millions of ven

2027 20240
Balance st beginning of year 3,068 2627
Charge-offs (2157 (2,199
Frovision 2,33 2,351
Franstation adjustments and other 545 289
Balance at-end of vear 3,791 3,068

Canorhas policiesin place to ensure that its products arg
sold to custorners with an-appropriate credit history and con-
tinuously monitors ifs custormers” credit quality based on infor-
mation including length of period in arrears, macroeconomic
conditions, initiation of legal proceedings against customers
and bankruptey filings. The allowance for credit losses of
finance receivables is evaluated collectively based on historical

experiences of creditiosses An additional resgrve Torindi-
vidual accounts is recorded when Canen becomes sware of a
customer’s inability to meet its financial obligations, such asin
theicase of bankruptey filings. Finance receivables which are
pastidue of individually evaluated for impalirment at December
31, 2021 and Dacerrber 31, 2020 arenot significant.
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NMOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Equipment leased to customers

The cost of eguiprment leased to customers under oparat-
ing leasesincluded i property, plant and-eguipment, netat
Decermber 27, 2021 and 2020 was ¥143, 160 million and

Maturity Analysis

¥132,763 million, respectively. Accumulated depreciation on
equipment under operating leases at December 37, 2027 and
2070 was ¥87,87% million-and ¥81,345 million, respectively

The following is a schedule by year of the futureminimum lease pavments to be received under finance leases andnon-cancellable

operating leases at Decomnber 31, 20271

Year endifg Dedember 3%

BAhons of ver

Fiancing leasss Operating beases

2022 131,118 11,6578
2023 99,168 7,168
7024 68,741 4,914
2025 41,600 2,972
2026 18,550 1,471
Thereafter 7,379 1,402

366,051 29,505

Information about transferring finance receivables
Canor has syndication arrangements 10 sall tg entire interests
indinance receivables to the third-party finandal institutions.
Thie transactions under thegrrangements are acounted

tor assales in accordance with ASC 860 Transters and
Servicing.” The transfers of finance receivables Tor the year
ended Decernber 31, 2020 and 2079 were ¥15,185 million
and ¥ 15,710 millen while there were nagsignificant transfers
of finance recelvables for the vear ended December 371, 2021,
The armount that remained uncollected was ¥23,984 million

7. ACUNSITIONS

On September 28, 2021, Canonaccuired 87.0% of the issued
shares of Redlen Technologies Inc. ("Redlen™), a Canada-based
company, for the cash consideration of ¥31,640 millicn, mak-
ing it a-wholly ovined subsidiary of Canon.

Redien possesses advanced techrologies of radiation detec-
tion and imaging solutions of Cadmium Zine Teliuride ("UZ2T7)
serriiconductor detector modules which play an important role
in the development of photon-counting C7 systems ("FCLOT™)
This technology will enable Canon 10 accelerate the develop-
ment of competitive PCET systerns, and strengthen s.CT
systernis and the miedical systems business. In addition, Canon
will provide TZT serniconductor detactor modules 1o medical
eguiprment manutaciurers around the world, thus helping to
strengthen Canon's medical component business. In this way,
Canon will continue to contribute o the advancemant of
global diagnostic imaging.

The acquisition was accounted for using the acguisi-
tionmethod of accounting, Acquisition-relzted costs were
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and ¥36,339 million at Decermbear 33, 20271 ahd 2020, respec-
tvely Cash-proceeds from the transactions are included in
gther, netunder the cash flow from operating activities in the
corisoiidated staterments of ¢ash flows, Canon cortinues 1o
provide collection and administrative semvices Tor the finandal
institutions. The-amount associated with the servicing liability
rreasured at Talr value was not significant at December 31,
2027 and 2020. Canon alsorelains imited recourse obliga-
Hioris Which covercradit defatlls) Theracolrse vbligations
were not significant at December 31, 20271 and 2020,

expensed as incurred and were not matertal. Pricr to the
acquisition date, Canon held ar investment in Redlen at &
valie of ¥1,257 million. Using step acquisition accounting,
Canon remeasured the acquisition-date carrying value of its
previously held-equity investment toitsfair valueof ¥5,273
ilfion using the fairvalue of Rediers issued shares on the
acquisition date, which resulted in a gain ol approximately
¥2.97 1 million, recorded in ather, net of other income {deduc
tions)in the consolidated stateme nts ofincome.

The consideration for the acquisiion was provisionally
vatued at the acquisition date based on the Share Purchase
Agresment, and subsequently, an adiustment was mads 1o
the acquisition price within the measurement perlod aftar the
sequisition date and determined as of Decernber 21, 20271, As
a result, the fair value of the previously held eguity investment
betore the acguisition date and the gain on the step-acauisi-
fion have been aditsted.



FINANCIAL SECTION

The tinal allocation of the purchase price 1o the asséts acguired and the liabilities assumed on the acquisition date was as follows:

Witlions of yen

Cutrent assets 4,043
Intangible assets 8,955
Goodwill 28828
Others 389
Assets acquired 42,213
Liabilities assumed 5350
Net gssels gequired 36,863

The intangible assets acquired are composed by ¥28 526
miflion of technical assets-and ¥28 million of other intangibla
asssts, and issublect 1o amortization. The usetul life of the
technical assets and the ather intangible assets are 21 vears
ard & years, respectively. The weighted average useful Hfe of
the total intangible assats is approximately 21 years,

Goodwill is composed of the synergy effectsof merging
Redien and Canon which s.not tax deductible. The ltems i3
allocated tothe Medical Business Unit when condutting the

8, QUODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets subject 1o amortization acquired during the
year ended December 31, 2021, intluding those recorded
from businesses-acquired as stated in-Note 7, tolaled ¥36,015
miliion, which primarily consist of software of ¥25,965 mil-
tior, The waighted average amortization periods for intangible
assets intotal acquired during the year-ended Decernber 31,
2027 are approdimately 9 vears, The walghted average amor-
tization period for software acquired during the year ended
BDecember 31, 2021 15 approximately 5 years.

impairment test of goodwill Net sales and nat income of
Redlen generated from the acauizition date which is reflected
iy the consolidatad staterment of incomie for the yaar ended
December 31, 2027 was not material,

The operating results with the assumption of including the
financial statements of Redlen in Canon’s consolidated finans
cial staterments for the year ended December 31, 2020 and
the year beginning o January 1, 202 B weranot disclosed
because the impact was not matetial,

intangible assets sublect 1o amottization acguired dur-
ing the yesr ended Decernber 3%, 2020, Induding those
recorded from businesses-acquired, totaled ¥31,4%3 million;
which priciarily consist of solflvwvare of ¥29,137 million. The
weighted average amortization periads Tor intangible assets
intotat acouired during the year ended December 31, 2020
are approximately 6 years, The weighted average amortization
period for sottware acguired during the year ended December
34, 2020 is aporoximately 5 years.

The cornponents of intangible assets subject toamortization at December 31, 2021 and 2020 were as Tollows:

Decermiber 21

Millions of yen

2021 2026

Giosscanying Accurnulated Gross carriing Accurnulated

amount amaortization amaunt amortization

Software 399,331 300,805 379,504 215,372
Customer relationships 158,512 59,455 155,648 46613
Fatents end developed technology 133,823 L 7es 124,315 549,328
Trademarks 45 726 21,350 44,214 17.800
License fess 16,881 10,008 13,651 & 065
Othier 18,765 13,521 17063 G235
Fiz 138 473,134 735,195 418,412
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Aggregate amortization exgernse for the years ended
December 37, 2021, 2020 and 2019 was ¥64.513 million,
¥65,082 million and ¥66,509 million, respectively. Estimated
amortization expense for iritarigible assets currently heid for
the next five years ending Decernber 31 1 ¥55,921 miflion
in 2022, ¥47 476 million in 2023, ¥38,534 million in 2024,

¥31,577 million in 2025, ang ¥28,302 million in 2026,
intangible assets not subect to amortization other than

goodwill-at December 31, 2021 and 2020 were not significant.
For management reporting purposes, goodwill is not alio-

cated tothe reporting unit. Goodwill has been allovated to i3

respective reporting unit for impairment testing.

The changes.inthe carrying armount ot goodwill by segment Tor the years ended Decermber 31, 2021 and 2020 werg a5 fullows:

Year ended Décémber 31

Billions of ver

2021
trchastrisl and
Prifiting imating Medical ihers Total
Goodwill - gross 142,185 288,508 506,513 89 283 BAT DR
Sccumulated inpairment losses A2 A16Y i P - 324161
Balance at beginning of year 109, 76% 788,959 506513 9,283 915,564
Goodwilt acquired during the vear S - 28,826 i 28,826
Transliation agjusiments and other 2931 3750 1,844 435 9.450
Goodwill - gross 146,025 283,749 527,183 10218 987175
Accumulated impalrment lossas {33,325} i - i {832,925}
Balance atend of year 112,700 293,748 537,183 10,218 853,850
Yearernded December 3] Millions of ven
2020
Industrial and
Printing imacing Medical Othets Tatal

Goodwill - gross 134,036 272,241 508,907 8,767 929,951
Accumulated impairment losses {31,280) — e e 31,290
Balance at beginning of year 107,746 272,244 508,907 9 767 298 661
Goodwill acquired during the year - i e s .
Translation adjustments and other 2,023 17,758 {2.394) (484) 16,903
Goodwill - gross 142,185 289,999 506,513 9,283 947,980
Accumulated Irnpairrnent losses 52 416} - i e (32 416}
Balance stend of year 109,768 289,599 506,513 9,283 915,564

* Based on the realignment of Canon internal reporting and roanagement structure, fram the beginring of 2021, Canon has changed the name and structure of
segmants 1o Prirting Business Unit, imaging Busingss Unit, Madical Business Unit, and Industrial and Others Business Unit. Chinges inthe careying amiounts of
aocdwil by segment for the fiscal vear ended Dedember 37,2020 glsi have béer reclassified.
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9. SHORTTERM LOANS AND LONG-TERM DEBY

Shori-term loans related to financial services are external loans
held by Canon's lease subsidiaties Tor the purpose of financ-
ing #s cystomers throtigh ioans. Short-termloans related 1o
financial services consisting of bank borrowings at Decernber
21,2027 and 2020 wers ¥42 300 million and ¥45,000- mil-

lion, and gther short-term loans corsisting of Bank borfewirgs

Long-term debt consisted of the following:

FINANCIAL SECTION

vere ¥1,307 million and ¥1,461 million respectively. The
weighted average interest raté on short-term borrowings out-
stanging al Decembar 31, 202 Tang 2020were D, 19%.and
0.26%, respectively. Unused overdraft facilities at December
34, 2021 were ¥750,000 millon. The overdratt facilitiesbear
interest &t a rate equal toa base rate plus a spread

December 31

Mitlions of ven

2021 26020
boar from banks; bearing interest of 0.21% at December 31, 2021
and 0.09% a1 Decermnber 31, 2020 % §74.000 344,000
Other dept *7 7,040 5,608
181,040 350:608
Lesscurrant portion {1,290} (345.774)
179,750 4,834

“1.Canon prepaid ¥170.000 milfion of the auftstanding loan under tha unsecured revalving credit facility contracts on Detember 78, 2027 before s die date. The
rematving balsnce of ¥174,000 milliornwias refinanced with a new expiration date in December 2079 under the tredit facilities, The outstariding Toans under
the credit facilities. are ¥174,000 milllion &t g fldating intérest of 0021% and Canon has no unused dedit Tacilities as.6f Detember 31, 2027,

2 Other debt consisted of termtloans. and finarce fease obligations as:of December 31, 2021 and 2020,

Year ending Decernber 31

willions of ven

2022 1,280
2022 174,926
2024 509
2025 417
2025 237
Thereafter 3,567
181,040
Both short-term ang tong-terty bank fozns are primarily the right to offsetcash deposits againstabligations that have
made under generat agreements which provide that:security become due or, in the event of default, against all obligations
and guarantees for present and futurs indebladress will be due tothe hank.
given upon request of the bank, end that the bank shall have
10, TRADE BAYABLES
Trade payables are sumnmarized as Tollovs:
December 31 Millicrs of yen
2021 20620
Motes 82,243 83,468
Accounts 256,361 220,341
338,604 303,809
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11 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT AND SEVERANCE BENEFITS

The Company and-certain of s subsidiaries have contributory
and noncontributory defined benefit pension plans covering
substartially all of thelr employess. Benefits payable under the
plans are based on employes earnings and years of service.
The Company and certain of its subsidiaries also have defined
conthibution pension planscovering subttantiaiiy allof thay
smployees. Canon Medical Systems Corporation ("CMSC”)
temporarily participated in Toshiba Corporate Pension Funds
(“Toshiba Funds”) after Toshiba Medical Systems Corporation
{currently, Canon Medical Systerns Corporationy was acqulred
by Canon i 2016, In Aprdl 2018, CWSC established a new
pension provision which provides participants an equivalent
level of benefits as comnpared fo the Toshiba Funds. Asof

Obligations and funded status

Decamber 31, 2018, a majority of plan particpants had been
transferred fromthe Toshiba Funds into the new perision pro-
vision. Canon calculated the projectes benefit ohifgiations for
the remaining participants within the Toshiba Funds based on
the benefit level of the Toshiba Funds and included the pro-
porticnal share of the nlan assets tgwhich C NS0 had alegal
right i the following tables for the rersalring participants as
of December 31, 2018, In March 2019, CMSC settled the pen-
sion-obligations attributed to the remaining participants withir
the Tashiba Funds, The loss recognized dus 1o the settlermant
irthe donsolidated statémant of ircome for the yéar ahded
December 31, 2019 was not significant.

Reconciigtions of beginning and ending balances of the projectad benefit obligations and the fairvalue of the plan assets are

as follows:

Decembet 31

Millions of ven

Japaniese plans Foreign plans

Fitra 2020 021 2020
Change i benetit obligations:
Projected benefit obligations at heginning of yaar 911,121 425,390 477,337 439,674
SErice cost 31194 30,604 3.827 5,303
interest cost 4,815 4064 5,965 5,087
Plan participants” contributions e e 658 860
Actuarial {gain) loss 2,435 {11,432} {21,433} 43,202
Benefits paid {35,390} (36,646) {13,471} (12,351
Plan amendments {41} {88} {18,815 {1,463}
Cyrtallments and settlements B st BEZY {6,004)
Forelgn currency exchange rate changess oo — 24,345 2,078
Projfecied benefit obligations ot énd of vear 905,634 911,121 476,230 477,337
Change in plan assets’
Fair vaiue of plan assets at beginning of year 724,039 704,169 321,713 754 829
Actial return ohiplar assets 52,688 36,060 24,024 23,912
Bnployer contributions 11652 13,360 32,130 13,605
Plan participants’ contributions e — 658 860
Benefits. paid {31,636} {29.550) {13,471 {12,257
Settlerments - e 1.743% (BO5)
Foreign cutrency sxchange rate changes s — 28,115 1,663
Fair value of plan assets at end of vear 756,743 724 635 394 812 271,743
Funded'status at end of year {152,891y (187,080 (91,318) [155.624)

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 20271 and 2020 are as follows:

Decémiber 31

Willians of yeri

lapariese plans Foreign plans

2033 2020 2021 2020
Other assets 2,911 2,684 13,506 2,236
Accrued expenses {1,208 {791y {1,041 o138
Acerued pension and severance cost {154 584 (188,975} {93,873 (156,822
{152,891y (187,082 {81,218y  (155624)
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Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income {oss) at Decembér 31, 2021 and 2020 before the effect of
income taxes are-as follows:

Dacermber 31 hMiicing of ven

lapanese’ plans Foreign plans
2621 2020 2 2070
Actuarial toss 156,028 192,531 104,647 142,455
Prior service credit (20,3713 28.533) {16,319 (5209
125,657 164,298 24 328 141,835
The sccumulated berefit obligation for all defined benefit plans was a5 follows:
December 31 hitlions of yen
Japznese plans Forelgn plans
2627 2020 2021 2020
Accurnulated benefit obligation 883,467 875136 %253@‘5 460,536

The projected benefit obligations and the falr value of nlan assets Tor the pension plans with projected benefit obligations in
excass of plancassets, and the accumulated benefit ahligations and the fair value of plan assets for the pension plans with accu-
miviated benghit obligations’in excess of plarr assets are as follows:

December 31 hiions of yen
Japanese plams Foreinn plans
22T 2020 2321 2020

Plans with projected benefit ¢bligations in excess of plan assets;

Projected benefit obligations H95 808 897 669 473 BB 475,137

Fair vaiue of plan. assels 739,581 707,708 381,054 378,079
Flans with accumulated-benelit obiigations in excess of plan assety;

Accumuiated benetit obligations 870,314 874,327 455,164 453 120

Fair value of plan assets 38,581 707,708 366,223 372 748

Components of net perfodic benefit cost and other amounts recognized in other comprehensive income (loss)
Net periodic benefit cost for Canon's employee retiremernt and severance defined benefit plans forthe years ended Becember 371,
2021, 2020 and 2019 consisted of the following components:

Yeurs ended December 31 Millionsof ven
Japaness plans Foreign.plans
224 2024 2018 2024 2020 2018

Service cost 30,184 30,604 30,903 3827 5303 6,264
interest cost 4,895 4064 5,074 5,965 6087 2,643
Expected raturny on plan essets 21.818) (21013 (15553 05221 (12,008 (11,219)
Arnortization of prior service credit {g3e3y (87327 (VL8777 {818} 675) (133
Amortization of actuarial loss &768 12,401 15,247 7.241 6,122 4,345
{Gain foss on curtailments and settlements . e (363 e 236 (2,197}

13,856 17324 19,758 1084 5,087 5,003

Servics cost comiponent of net periodic bensfit cost for consolidated staternents of income. The components other than
Canon's employee retirement and severance defined benefit the service cost component are included in other, net of other
plans is included in cost of sales and operating expenses in the income (deduciions) in the consclidated staterpents of income

CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Othier changes in olan assets and benstit obligations recognized in other comprehensive incorne {oss; for the years ended
December 37, 2021, 2020 and 2019 are summarized as Tollows:

Yesrsended December 31

Millions of ven

Japanese plars Foreign plans

2621 2026 2018 PiivE 2020 2018
Current year actuarial (gaing ioss {28,135) (26479 (19,328 {25936 31296 28882
Current year grior service credit 41 (8R4Y — BTy (1463 367
Amortization of actuarial loss {B788) (12400 (15247 {3347y (B122) {4345
Arnortization of pricr service cradit B.303 8,737 11,877 &8 575 133
Curtallments and setilements e e Qe 531} {Gee) (141D
(28,641 (31007) (23,6587 47s0ly 23420 23629

Assumptions

Weighted-average assumptions Used to determing benefit obligations sreas follows:

Decembear 31 lapanese plans Foreigri-plans
2021 2020 2021 2020
Discount rate 5% 0:5% 15% 15%
Assumed rate ofincrease iniuture compensation levels 26% 26% 7% 0.9%
interest crediting rate for cash balance plans 1.9% 1.9% 1.0% 1.0%
Weighted-average assumptions:used to determine net periedic benefit cost are-as-follows:
Years ended Decamber 31 Japanese plans Foreigr plans
2021 2020 2014 2021 2025 2019
Piscount rate 3.5% 05% 0.6% 1.5% 1.6% 24%
Assumed rate of increase i future compensation levels 25% 2.6% 2.6% (9% 1.0% 1.5%
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 3.8% 3.0% 3.0% A4% 4.8% 5.2%
interest-crediting rate Tor cash balance plans 1.8% 1.9% 1.5% 10% 1.0% 1 0%

Canon deterrnines the expected longterm rateal retirn
based on the expected long-term return of the various asset
categories inwhich it invests. Canon considers the current

Plan assets
Cangh's invastinent policies are designed 1o ensure adeguate
plari-assets are available to provide futlre payments of pen-
sior-bensfitsto gligible participants, laking inte-account the
expected long-term rate of return onplan assets, Canon for-
mulates a “model” portfolio comprised of the optimal com-
bination of equity securities and debt securities. Plan assets
are invested-in individual equifty and debt securities using the
guidelinesof the "model” portfolio in order 1o produce-a total
retyrn-that will match the expectad returmona mid-term to
forig-termy basis, Canon svaluates the gap betwesn sxpecied
returnand actual return of invested plar assets on anannusl
basis to determine if such differences necessitate a revision In
the formulation of the “model” portfolio. Canon revises the
"model” portfolio whenrand to tre extént considered nacessary
to achieve the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets.
Canon's model parifolio for Japanese plans consists of
three major componenis: approximately 25% is invested
irvequity securities, approximately 50%. 1s invested in debt

CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021

expectations for futurg returns and the actual histarical returns
of pach plan asset category

securities, and approximately 25% is invested in other prod-
ucts, stich as investments ininsutance contracts including life
insurande company general gccounts,

Outside Japan, investment policies vary by country, but
Canan's riodel portfolio Tor foreign plans corsists of three
major compeonants: approximately 20% is invested in eguity
securities, approximately 30% s investad In aebt securities,
and approximately 50%-Is invested in other products, such as
investrnents in real estate assets.

Thetarget allocation percentages of plan assets set hy
Canon's investment policles anproximate the actual aliocation
parcentages of plan assets at Decermber 31, 2021 and 2020,

The equity securities are selected prirmarily from stocks that
are listed on securities exchanges. Prior to investing, Canon
investigates the business condition of the investee comipanies,
and appropriately diversifies investments by type of industry
and other relevant factors. The debt securities are selected pri-
resarily from government bonds, public debtinstruments, and
corporate bonds, Prior to Investing, Canon investigates the
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and return of capital, and insured pension slans which cover
future designated contractual benefit payments 1o covered
participants. With respect toinvestments in Toreign financial
products, Capon investigates the stability of the underiying
governiments and sconamies, the market characteristics such
as settlement systerns and the taxation systems. For each such
investment, Canonselects the appropriate investment country
and currenty.

guality of the issug, including rating, interest rate, and repay-
ment dates, and appropristely diversifies the investments.
Pooled funds are selected using strategies consistent with
the equity and debt securities degcribed-abiove. As for insur-
ance contracts, there areseveral fypes of instrance contracts
between Canonand the life insurance companies induding
life insurance company genetal accounts which guarantee
the payrnents of interest based on expected intersst rates

The three levels of input used to measure Talr valug are more fully gescribed in Note 22, The falr values of Canen'’s pension
plan assets at Decernber 3%, 20271 and 2020, by asset category, are as follows:

Degember 31 hillions of ven

2021
lapanese plars Fareign plans
Level 1 Lavel 2 Level 3 Tatal Level 1 Love! 2 Level 3 Total

Equity securities:

lapanese companies (a) 95,688 e ~— 95688 e e o o

Foreign companies 12,746 e 13 TAE 11,628 e - PLBIB

Poated funds () — 180,286 - 180,288 - 43,026 - 43,026
Debt securities:

Government bonds () 133,691 - 133,691 — s e s

Municipal bonds o 1,264 e 1,264 e 1.88% o 2,829

Corpotate bohds — 18,373 - 18,373 e 7823 - 7831

Pooled funds-{d) — 145348 — 5,348 —  i38.687 —  13B.887

Mortgage backed securities

{and other gsset backed sacurities) 19,448 e 4Y,448 — 5,826 s 6,828
Insurance contracts e 14624 w1624 - G287 395338 454685
Other assets — 28481 366 28547 - {36,657 532 7189
nvestment rmeastred at net asset valie . e — 337 . o L N

242.13% 580,538 366 756,743 11,638 312,203 39,530 394,912
Decembar 31 WMillions of yen
2020
Japanese plars Foreign plans
Level1 Level 2 Level 2 Total Leval 1 tevel 2 Level 3 Total

Equity securities

lapanese companies {e) B0, 200 e e 80, 201 e s o e

Foreign companias 9,807 s e, 9,807 10,267 e — 10,267

Pooled Tunds {f) — 188745 — B8 745 — 27538 — 37,538
Debt securities:

Govarnment bonds () 136 771 i - 136,771 - o - -

Municipal bonds e 1,126 e 1,126 . 2,324 e 2,324

Corporate bends — 15617 — 15617 - 6,375 — 6,375

Poclad funds (hy — 14,825 — 140,825 — 108,499 - 108439

Morigage backed securities

{and other asset backed securities) — 8,308 — 8,308 — 2,646 — 2,596
Life insurance company general accounts — VT2 — VT2 — 21853 —  Z#853
Other assets — 28737 1,356 30,087 — 102,159 — 102, 15%
nvestment moasurad at net asset value — e = 14,790 e — - 23,902

226,779 481114 1,356 724,039 10,267 287 544 — 321,713
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{ay The plan’ equity securities include common stock of the
Company and certain of ifs subsidiaries in the-amournts of
¥234 million.

{0 These funds invest in listed equity securities congisting of
approximately-30% Japanese campanies and 70% foreign
companies for lapanese plans, and mainly foreign compas
nies tor forelgn plans.

(¢} This class inzludes- appraxiniately 80% laganese gover:
mient bonds and 20% foreign goverriment bonds Tor
Japanese plans,

{cli These funds invest in approximately 25% Japanese gov-
ernment bonds, 55% forelgn government bonds, 5%
lapangse raunicipal boneds, and 15% cornorate bonds for
lapanese plans. These funds nvest in approximately 75%
foreign governmentbonds and 25% corporate bonds for
Japanese-plans.

{a} The plan’ equity securitiesinciude comman stock of the
Company and certain of its subsidiaries in the amounts of
¥282 miliion.

{1 These funds invest in listed equity securities consisting of
approximately: 30% japanese companies-and 70% foreign
corfipanies tor Japanase plans, and malnly foreign compa-
rifes for foreign plans.

{0y This class includes spproximately 85% Japanese govern-
ment bonds and 15% tgreign-government bonds for
Japanese plars, and mainly foreign government bonds for
foreign plans.

{r} These funds investin approximately. Z5% Japanese gov-
erniment bonds, 55% forelgn governiment bonds, 5%

Contributions

i

Canor-expects o contribute ¥15,242 million 1o #s Japanesed
defined henefit pension plaris for the year ending December 3

Estimated future benefit payments

Japanese municipal bonds, and 15% corporate bonds for
lapanese plans. These funds invest in-approximately 650%
toreign government bonds and 40% corporate bonds:for
foreigi plans,

Each fevel into which assets are categorized is based on
inouts used to measure the fair value of the assets, and does
riot pecessarily ndicate the risks or ratings of the assets

Level 1 assets are comprised principally of equity securities
and government bonds, which are valued using unadjusted
auoted market pricss in active markets with-sufficient velume
and freguency of trafsactions.

Level 7 assets are comprised prificipally of posled funds
that invest in equityand debt securities, corporate bonds,
irvestments in life insurance.company general accounts-and
other assets. Pooled funds are valued at their net asset valugs
that are caleulated by the sponsorof the tundand have daily
Hautidity, Corporate bonds are-valued using quoted prices for
identical assets in markets that are not active. Investments in
life insurance company general accounts are valued at conver-
siony value, Other assets are-cormprised principally of interest
bearing cash and hadgefunds.

The tair valies of Level 3 asset, consisting of investments in
insured pension plansand hedge funds, were ¥ 40,295 million
and ¥1,556 million at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respec-
tvely. Amourits of actual returns on, purchases and sales of
these assets during the years ended December 31, 2027 and
2020 were notsignificant.

fined benefit.pension plansand ¥18,165 million todts Terelgn

The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, 25 appropriate, are expected to be paid:

Year ending Decernber 34

Millions of yen

lzpanese plars Foreigri: plans

44 169 15,228
44,772 15,887
44,699 17,151
45,715 18,145
44479 19,158
228,342 116,447

Multiemployer pension plans

The amounts of cost recognized for the multiemployer pen-
siort plans primarily inthe Metherlands tor the years ended
December 31, 2021, 2020-and 2019 wers ¥4,822 million,
¥4,224 million and ¥4,321 million, respectively. The mul:
tiemplover pension plan inwhich.the subsidiaries in the

CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Netherlands participated was 97 8% funded as-of December
3%,.2020. The terms of the collective bargaining agresments
are fMegotiated on 2 regularbasis batween the local isbar
uhions and participating employers. Canon is hot liable for
other participating employers” obligations under the ferms and
conditions of the agreements.
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far the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2018
were ¥27,660 million, ¥16,334 mifliorvand ¥17,414 million,
respectively:

Defined contribution plans
The amounts of cost recogrized for the defined contribution
pension plans of the Company and certain of its subsidiaries

12, INCOME TAKES

Domestic and Toreign components of incoma beforeincome taxes and the current and deferred incoms tax expense attributable
1o such income are surrnarized as Tollows;

Years ended Decernber 21

fditlicns of yen

2024
Japaness Foréign Total
Income before income taxes T65 827 155,770 22,706
Income taxes:
Cyrrent #7.45% 34,201 #1,892
Deferred 6,883 {i§,709; {8,826}
54,374 17,4582 71,868
Years efided December 31 Tithons of very
2020
Japarese Foreign Toital
income before income taxes 48,186 82,094 130,280
Income taxes:
Current 24,063 25,818 49,879
Deferred {B,00/) 9,535) {15,542}
18,056 16,281 34,337
Years grded December 31 Millions of yen
2019
Japaness Forelan Total
Income before income taxes 107,082 8411 165,452
Incarme taxes:
Current 38,483 23,186 32,662
Deferred (4.2 76) {2,247} (6,523}
25,207 20,829 5k, 146

statutory incorne 13y rate of approximately 31% for the years
ended December 31, 2021,.2020 and 2018,

The Company and its dormestic subsidiaries are subjectto s
number of income taxes, whiich, iy the aggregate, répresent a

CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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A reconciliation of the Japanese statutory income tax rate and the effective income tax rate as'd percentage of intome before
incorne taxes is as Tollows:

Yesrs ended December 31 2021 2020 2013
Japanese statutory Income tax rate 21.0% 31.0% 31.0%
Increase {reduction} inincome taxes resulting from:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 8.7 2.3 1.7
Erztfyme of foreign subsidiaries taxed at'lower than Jaganese statutory {3.9) (5.8) (2.8
tax rate
Tax-credit-for research and develooment expensss 3.2 1.7) 23
Chanye in valuation allowanteg {3.5) 2.4 (1.6}
Deferred tax Labilities o undistibuted earnings of foreign subsidiaries 4.5 25 24
Tax crecit at Torsign subsidiaries 0.3} {1.3) (L1
Effect of enacted changes in tax laws (1.0 (1.5 0.2
ther .23 {1.8) 1.7
Effective income tagrate 23.7% 26.4% 28.7%

Net deferred incorne tax assets and labilites are induded in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets under the follow-
ing captions:

Decerber 31 Millions of yen
2021 20720
Uther assets 138,507 154,226
Othar nioncurrent habilities {43403 (48,247)
95,108 108,979

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise 10 the deferred 1zx assets and deferred tax lisbilities at Decemnber 31,
2027 and 2020 are presented below:

December 31 Millions of ven
it 2020
Deferrad tax assets:
invertories 11,263 10,551
Avcried business Tax 3,387 1,629
Accrued pension and severance cost B8Y,752 95,388
Researchrand development —costs capitalized for tax purposes 5004 4,989
Property, plant and equiptnent 35,658 34,923
Operating fease liskilities 17,328 20,163
Aceriied expenses 28,331 28,243
Net cperating losses carried forward 34,873 28,581
Other 48,621 472,141
252,237 268,216
Less valuation allowance {18,073} {30,752)
Total deferred tax assets 233,144 237 464
Deferred tax labilities
Undistributed earrinigs of Torelgn subsidiaries {18,877} 8.147
Tax deductible resarye {2,007 {4,040
Financing lease revenue {14,802} {15,041)
Operating lease right-of-use assets {17,066} {18 425}
Intanginle assels {51,173} {54.948)
Other (31,5143 (28,884
Total deferred tax fiabilities {138,039 (121,485)
Ket deferred tax assets 48,108 105,979
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Trienetchanges in the total valuation allowarice were a
decrease of ¥11,67% million, an increase of ¥3,074 million and
a decrease of ¥3,056 million for the years ended December
31,:202%,:2020 and 2019, respectively

Based on the level of historical taxable incorme and

FINANCIAL SECTION

projections for future taxable income over the periods which
the net deductible temporary differences are expected to
reverse, managerment beliaves it is more likely than not that
Canon will realize the benetits of these deferred tax assets, net
of the valuation allowance, at December 31, 2021,

At December 31, 20271, Canonhad net operating losses which can be cartied forward forincome tax purposes of ¥175,581
rotbien 10 redues future taxable Income. Periots available to reduts Tuture taxabla income vary miesch tay-unsdiction and goher-

ally range from one yelr o an indefinite perioy as follows:

Willions of yen

Within one year 1,206
After one vear through five years 13,869
After Tiie years through ten vears 44,216
After ten years through twenty years 8,223
Indefinite period 107,567

175,581

Income taxes have not been acerued on undistributed earn-
ings of domestic subsidhiaries as the tax lew provides ameans
by which the dividends from & domestic sibsidiary can be
received tax Tree.

Canon has not recognized deferred tax llabilities of ¥16,162
mililon tor a portion of undistributed earnings of Toreign

Areconciliation of the beginnin

subsidiaries of ¥875,208 million as of December 31, 2021
bacause Canon intends to permanently relnvest such undis-
tributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries. Defefred tax liabilities
will be recognized when such undistributed earnings are o
longer perrmanently reinvested,

and ending amount of unrecogrized tax benefits s as follows:

Years ended December 31

fhlions ofyen

2821 2020 2019
Balance ot beginning of vear 8572 8,120 B.649
Bddditions for tax positions of the current year 1,188 — o
Additions for tax positions of prior years 216 208 204
Reductions for tex positions of-prior years g {493 A
Settlements with tax authorities {62} — (A0
Other e 293 287)
Balance at end of year* 8,812 §572 8,120

* Thie unrecognized tax banefits were offset by deferred 1ax assets inthe amoumt of ¥ 71,895 million, ¥1.412 milion and ¥223 million & of December 31, 2021,
2020 and 2019, fespactively, and reporied ander "Sther nionturent iabiides” on the consolidated balande sheets

The total amounts of unrecognized tax benefits that would
reduce the effectiveiax rate, If recognized, were ¥9,813
millionand ¥8,572 millfory at December 31, 2021 and 2020,
raspectively,

Although Canon belleves its sstimates and assumptions of
unrecognized tax berefits are reasanable, uncertainty regarding
the fingl determination of fax exarnination settlements and any
related litigation could affect the effective tax rate in a future
period, Based on each of the iterms of which Canon s aware
at Decemnber 31, 2021, no significant changes 16 the unrecog-
nized 1ax benefifs are expected within the pext twelve months.

Canon recognizes interest and penalties acorued related
10 unrecognized tax benefits i income taxes. Both interest

and penalties accrued at December 31, 2021 and 2020,
and interest and penalties included in income taxes for the
years ended December 31, 2021,.2020 and 2079 were not
significant.

Caron files income tax returns in japan and various for-
sign tax junsdictions: In Japan, Canon is nolonger subject 1o
regular income tax examinations by the tax suthority for years
betore 2021, Canor s also no longer sublect to a transfer
pricing examination by the fax authority for vears before 20271,
In gther major foreign tax jurisdictions, including the United
States and the Nethetlands, Canon s nolenger subject to
incorne tax examinations by tax authorities Tor years before
20 b with few exceptions:

CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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13. LEGAL RESERVE AND HETAINED EARNINGS

The Corporation Lavy of lapan provides-that an amount equal
to W% of distributions from retained sarrings paid by the
Company and 15 Japanese subsidiaries he appropriated as 3
legal reserve. No further appropriations are required when the
total amount of the additional paid-in capital and the legal
resarve eguals 25% of their respiective stated capital, The
Corporation Lavwol lapan also provides that additional paid-
I capital and tegal reserve are avallable for appropriations by
resoiution of the shareholders. Certain foreign subsidiaries are
alsorenuired to approoriate thelr earnings todegal reserves
Undder the lawws of thelr respective courttias.

Cash dividends and appropriations to the legal reserve
chargedo retained sarnings for-the vears ended Decamber
31, 2027, 2020 and 2079 regrésent dividends pald out during

14, OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME {10S8)

those years and the related appropriations 1o the legal reserve.
Retained earnings at Decermber 31, 2021 did not reflect
current yearend dividends in the amount of ¥57,517 million
which were approved by the shareholders in March 2022

The amount available for dividends under the Corporation
Law of Japan is based on the amount recorded in the
Comparny's noncansolidated books of dccount in accordance
with finandal accounting standards of Japan. Such amount
was ¥B58,455 miliion at Decamber 31, 2021

Retained eamnings at December 37, 20271 induded Canon’s
equity In undistriblted earnings of affiliated companies
accounted for by the equity method in the amount of
¥17,858 million:

Changes in sccumulated other comprahensive income {oss Tor the years ended December 31, 2024, 2020 and 2019 are a3 Tollows:

Millions of yen

Foreign currency Pension
translation Gaing and losses on liability
adjustments derivative instrumernis adiustments Total
Balance at December 31, 2018 {£3,815) 308 (205,564) (269,070
Cumulative effects of accounting standard update
—adoption of ASU Ne. 2017-32 s 32 e (122}
Equity transactions with noncontroliing interests and other A24; s e 424
Other comprehensive income {oss) before reclassifications {371,888} {1,722} {12,763 {46,375)
Armounts redassified from asccurmulated other
comprehensive income fdoss) {154 B850 7,054 7,550
Net change during the vear (32,467; {1.073) (5, 7059; {39 249}
Balance at December 31, 2019 {56 782 (887} {211,273 {308,447}
Equity transactions with noncontrolling interests and other ) e — 9}
Other comprenensive income {oss) before reclassifications {17,355 {1,198 {7,530 (26,0843
Ameunts reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive income (oss) — 2,186 7,560 5. 746
Net change during the vear {17,364 ag7 30 {16,347}
Balance at December 31, 2020 (113 648} 100 {211,243} {324,789)
Cther comprehensive Income (ossy before redassifications 119,689 {3.3300 49,755 166,118
Aricunts recassified friom atclmulsted other
comprehensive incorme {loss) {524 2,338 5,065 & 877
Met change during the year 119,168 {304} B4.824 172,985
Balance at Decermnber 37, 2021 5,518 &4 {156,419 {151,784
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Reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 an

20416 are as follows:

FINANCIAL SECTION

3

Years endad December 31

Aot reclassified from

accurntilated other comprebiersive intome (oss) ©

WMillions of yen

frected fineitems In consolidated

statemiarts of incoms

2021 2020 2015
Foreign curreney translation adjustments (759) . . bgi&gﬁsgfn@ra! and administrative
— — (184}  Other, net
235 = e Income taxes
{534) —— {1543 Consolidated netincome
Net income atiributable 1o
i — — noncontrolling interests
{5243 e (154)  Netincome atirbutable to Canan Inc.
Gains and losses on derivative instruments 3,285 3,034 551 Net Sales
{859} {775) {2y income taxes
2,326 2,258 654 Consolidated netincome
Met income attributabie to
10 {73) Sy noncontraliing interests
2,338 2,186 550 MNet income attributable 1o Canoncine,
Pension liability adjustments 519 10,082 9,953 ther net
{1,625} (2,484) (2,523}  Income taxes
5,804 7,588 7.430 Consolidated net income
Net income attributable 1o
{829} (38) (376} noncontrolling interests
5,065 7,560 7,054 Net ricome attributable to Canon Inc.
Total arnount reclassifled,
niet of tawe and noncontrolling interests 5,877 G746 7,550

¥ dmounts In parentheses indicate gains i consclidated statements of incame
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Tax effects allocated to each component of other ¢comprehensive income Uoss) and reclassification adjustments, including

amounts attributable o noncontroliing interests, are-as follows:

Yesrsended December 31

Mitions of yen

Balore-tay Tax {expens) Met-of-tax
armount o banefit anount
2041
Forelgn currency transtation adjustrments
Amount arising during the year 122,075 1,112 120,963
Reclassification adjustments for gains and losses realized In net income {758] 235 {524}
Net change during the vear 121,316 877} 120,439
Net gains and losses on derivative instruments:
Arnount arising during the vear {4,5%8) $.258 {3,258}
Reclassification adjustrments Tor-gains and losses realized in net income 3,285 {8555 2,326
Net ¢hange duning the year 1311 339 {972}
Pension Hiability adjustrments:
Amount atising duting the year 58,724 {18,115} 50,614
Reclassification.adiustments Tor gains and losses realized innet income 7518 {9.625) 58584
Net changs - during the year 75,248 {19,740} 56,508
Other comprehensive income {loss) 196,253 {20,278} 175,975
2040
Foreign currancy transtation adjustrments
Arpount arising during the year {17 583) 270 {17,354}
Reclassification.adjustments for gaihs and losses realized in niet incorme — — —
Net zhangs during the year {17,583) 2259 {17,354;
Net gains. and losses on: derivative Instruments:
Armount arising during the year {1,737 447 {1,289}
Reclassification adjustments for gains and losses realized in net income 3034 (775} 2,259
Met change:during the yesr 1,303 (333 970
Pepsion lability adiustinents:
Armaunt arising during the year {7,495%) (3,721} {£,216)
Reclassification adjustments for gains and losses realized In net income 10,082 {2,484} 7. 558
Net change during the year 7,587 6,205) 1,382
Other corprahensive income {loss) (& ,693) {6.309) {15,002)
2019;
Fareign ‘currency transiation adjustments
Arnount ansing during the year (32,396) 363 {32,003)
Radassification adjustrents Tor gains and losses realized in net income {154) —_ {154)
Net change during the vear (32.550) 393 32157}
Net gains and losses on derlvative instrurments;
Amount arising during the year {2,180) 453 {1,727
Reclassification adjustments for galns and losses realized In net Income 681 {Z) 659
Net change during the vear {1,519) A5 (1,068)
Persion lability adjustrents:
Amount arising during the year 5,916} o, 1443 {41, 060)
Reclassification adjustments for gains and losses realized in'net income $.953 (2,523} 7430
MNet change during the vear 37 {3,667} (3,630
Other comprehensive income (loss) (34,032} 12,823} {36,855}
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15. REVENLE

Reverue from sales of products of the Printing Business Unit,
such.gs office MFDs, laser printers and inkjet printers; and the
imaging Business Unit, such as digital cameras, is primarily
recognized upon shipment ordelivery, depending upon when
the customer obtains controls of these products.

Revenus fromsales of eguipment of the Medical Business
thit and ths industral and Others Business Unitthat are sold
with customer acceptance provisions related to their function-
ality, including certaln medical equipment such as OT systemns
and MR systems, and lithography sgulpment suich as semicon-
ductor and FPDY fithoaraphy equipment, s recognized when
the equipment isinstalled at the ciistorner site and the agréesd-
upon specifications are obiectively satisfied and confirmed.

host of Canon's service revenue is.generated from main-
tenance service in the products of the Printing Business Uinit
and the Medical Business Uit which s recognized over time.
For the service contracts of the Printing Business Unit, the
custorner typically pays a varable amount based on ysage, 8
stated fixed Tee ora stated base Tee plus averiable amount
which freguently inciude the provision of consumables as well
as break fix activities. The rajority portion of service revénie
from the products of the Printing Business Unit is recognized
ssbiflled since the nveleed amount directly correlates withrthe
value to the customer of the underlying performance cblige-
tiori 1o date. For the service contracts of the Medical Business
Unit, the customertypically paysa stated fixed feefor the
stendhready maintenance service and revenue is recognized
ratably over the cortract periad.

The majority of service arrangements Tor the produdis are
execuled in combination with related products. Transaction
prices for preducts and services nieed to be allocated to each
performance obligation on a relative standalone selling price
hasls where Judgementis are reguired,. Canon estimates the
standalone selling price using a range of prices that would
meet the allocation objective based-on all the information
that 15 reasonably avaiiable including market conditions and
other observablednpuls, If fransaction prices of the product
or service contracts are not within the acceptalle range then
the revenie is subject to allocation based on the estimated

FINANCIAL SECTION

standalone selling prices. Canon recognizes the incrermental
costs of-obtaining a contract as an expense whernrelated
praducts of the Printing Business Unit are sold.

Revenue from sales of certain industrial equiprnent which
do.net-have alternative use and for which Canon has-enforce:
abile right to payment 1o the customners for the performance
completed to dateds recognized over time with progress
towards completion measured using the cost based input
miethod as the basis to recognize revenue and an estimated
rmargire Provisions for estimated losses on-uncomplated con-
tracts-are made in the period in which such losses become evi-
dent Changes in job perfarmance, ob conditions, estimated
margin and final contract settlements may result in revisions 1o
prajected costs and revenue and.are recognized inthe pericd
inwhich the revisions 1o estimates ate.identified and the
armounts can be reasonably estirvated, Factors that miay affect
Tuture project costs and margins include, production efficiens
cles, availability and costs of tabor and materials. These factors
canimpact the accuracy-of Canon’s estimates and materially
impact future reported revenue and cost of sales.

The transaction prices that Canon I8 entitied 1o receive In
exchange for vansterring goods or senvices to the custorner
inciude cartaln forms of variable consideration, including prog-
uet discolnts, custorner promotions and volume-based rebates
rrainly for the products of the Imaging Business Unit, which
are sold predorrinantly through distributors and retailers.
Cangn includes estimated amounts in the transaction price
only To'the extent itis probable that a significant reversal of
curmiilative revenue recognized will not ocour when the uncer
tainty associated with the variable consideration is resolved.
Variable considerations are-astimated based upon historical
trends and other known factors at the time of sale, and are
subsequently adjusted In each perfod based on current infor-
ration. in addition, Canon may provide g right of relurmon s
products for @ short time period aftera sale. These rights are
atccUnted for asvariable consideration wher determining the
transaction price; and accordingly Canion recognizes revenus
based on the estimated amournt towhich Canorexpecisto be
erititledafter considering expected returns,
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Disaggregeted réevenue by timirg is as follows, Disaggregated revenue by business unit, product and gecgraphic area are

described inNote 23

Bliliors of veny

indusirial angl Corporate-and

Privting Imaging Medical Others eliminations Consolidated

2021
Revenue recognized at a pointin time 1.4189.043 545 848 328,323 435914 {195,126 2,730,003
Ravenue recognized over time E19.804 6,683 151,035 105,828 — ¥83,354
Total 1,538,847 653,532 480,362 Ld5, 742 {185,128} 3,513,357

2020
Revenue recognized at a point in time 1,318,555 534685 287 849 336,235 83,004y 2392237
Revenue recognized over time A&7 871 5629 148 2725 125,287 — 768012
Total 1,804,427 541,314 436,074 481,522 {83,084y 3,960,243

2049
Favenue recognized ata pointin time 1,520,393 551,629 250,702 391,272 {©2,1800 2,760,816
Revenue recognized over time 72,071 10077 147,823 102512 — 832 483
Total 2,092,464 561,70 438,525 453 784 (93,180) 3,593,299

* Based on the reslignment of Canon'sintersal reporting and ranagement structure, from the beginning of 2021, Canon-has changed the name and structure: of
segments 1o Printing Business Unit, Imaging Business Unit, Medical Business Unit, and Industrial and Others Business Unit: Changes ‘in the dissggregated revenue
v Timing and by segrment for the fiscal yearended December 31, 2020 and 20719 also have been reclassified.

Revenue recagnized over Ume includes primarily revenue
from maintenance service inthe products of the Printing
Business Unit and the Medical Business Unit and sales of
certain equiprnent of the Industrial and Others Unit which do
not have alternative use and for which Canon has enforceable
rightto payment 1o the customers for the performante come-
nleted to date,

Camon récognizes contract assets primarily for unbilled
receivables mainly arising fror services contracts for the
products of the Printing Busipess Unit. Contract assels are
reclassified 1o trade receivables when they are billed under the
terms of the contract. The difference between the opening
ahd closing balances of contract assets primarily rasults from
the timing difference of Cancn'’s performance and billing to
customers. Contract assets at December 31, 2027 and 2020
were ¥44,722 miliion and ¥42. 752 million, respectively, and
areincluded inprepaid expenses and other current assets in
the consolidated baiance sheets.

Canon typically bils 1o the customer when the performance
obligation is satisfied and collects the paymentin relatively
short tarmeaxcept for certain mairtenance senvice of the prod-
ugtsof the Printing BusinessUnit and the Medical Business
Unitand certain industrial equipment forwhich Canen
occasionally receives the payment in advance from custorm-
ers. The amount received in excess of revenue recognized is
racoidled as deferred revenie untll the performance obligation
for distinict goods or services are satisfied . Defarred revenue

CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021

at Decermnber 31, 2021 and 2020 were ¥132, 087 milion and
¥135,455 million, respectively, and are included in other cur-
rerit-labilities and other non-currert Habilftes in the accom-
panying conselidated balance shesats. Revenue recognized for
the year ended December 31, 2021, which Had beeh indiuded
in the deferred ravenue balance at December 31, 2020, was
¥112,232 million,

Remaining performance obligations Tor products and equip-
ment at December 21, 2021 primarily arlse from the ‘sales of
certain industrial equipment, amournting to ¥150,833 million,
£6% of which is expected 1o be recognized as revenus within
orie year and remaining 34% 15 within two years. Disclosure
of rermaining performance obligations is not required for the
rrajority of services since therelated revenue is Tecognized
ori-an a5 billed basis applying the right todnvoice practical
expedient or is generated from the contracts with original
expected duration of less than one yvear, The portion of fixed
malnienance service contract Tor the progucts of the Printing
Business Unit and the Medical Business Unitwith original
expected duration:of more than one year is approximately
13% of total service revenue and the average remaining
period for these fixed contracts as of December 31, 2021 i3
about twa years.

Taxes collected fromecustomers and remitted to governmen-
tal authorities are excluded frony revenues inthe corsalidated
statermentsof income.



16. STOUK-BASED COMPENSATION

On April 28, 2021, based on the approval of the board of
directors, the Company granted stock options'to its directors
and executive officers 1o acquire 43,700 shares of common
stock. Those 1o whom stock acquisition rights are granted {the
“Holder(s)”) shall be entitled to exerdise all the stock acquisi-
tor-rights together within 10days {n case the last day s not
a business day, the Tollowing business day) from after the
date when they cease to hold any position as a director oran
executive officer of the Company These oplion awards have &
2 year exerciszble perdod. The grant-date falr value pershare
of the stock options granted during the year ended December
31, 202% was ¥2 227,

On May 1, 2020, based on the board of the-directors, the
Company granted stock aptions 1o its directors and sxecutive
otficers 1o atguire 88,600 shares of common stock. Those to
swhom stack acguisition rights are granted (the “Holders)")
shiall be entitled 1o exercise all the stodk acquisition rights
together within 10 days{n case thedast dayis not a-business
day, the following business day) fromafter the date when they
cease to-hold any position as 3 director of an execuitive officar

FINANCIAL SECTION

of the Company. These option awards have a 30 year exerdis-
abie pericd. The grant-date fair velue per share of thestock
options.granted during the year ended Decermber 31, 2020
was ¥1,459

On March 25, 2020, based on the board of the directors,
the Company granted stock options 10-its executive officer
1o acqudire 10,300 shares of comymon stock. The Holder shall
be entitled to exercise all the stock acquisition rights together
within 10 days {in case the last day is not a business day, the
Tollowdng business day) from-after the date when they cease
fahold any position as a-director or anexecutive officer of
the Compahy. These option awsards have a 30 year exercis-
able period. The grant-date fair value per.share of the stock
sotions granted during the vearended Decerriber 31, 2020
was ¥ 1,703,

The compensation costracognized for these stock options
Torthe years ended December 31, 20271 was ¥97 milion and
20720 was ¥147 million and 2018 was ¥265 million, and it s
includedin selling, general and adminiztrative expenses inthe
consolidated statements of income,

The tair value of the option award was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Sholes option pricing medel that incor-

porates the agsimptions prasented below:

Years ended December 31 2070
2023 Granted on Maigh 25, Granted o May 1,
2020 2020
Expected term of oplion {n years) 50 6,0 6.0
Expacted volatility 24.83% 20.32% 20.92%
Dividend yield 3.04% 6.25% 597%
Risk-fres Inferest rate {0, 10%:} {0.12% {0 17%)

Acsurmmary of option activity under the stock option plans as of and for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2018

is presented below:

Weighted- Veighted-average
averans rernaining Aggregate
Shares EXEICise-PHCR rontractual term intrinsic valug
Yen Yeal tiflions of ven
Outstanding at January 1, 2019 74,000 1 253 227
Granted 116,300 1
Exercised (4, 500) i
Qutstanding at December 31, 2019 185 BO0 i 28:0 555
Granted 98,900 1
Exercised {37 100) 1
Cutstanding at December 31, 2020 247,600 1 284 324
Granted 43,750 ki
Exercised {4.8003 1
Cutstanding at December 31,2021 286,500 1 7.8 802
Exercisable at December 31, 2021 286,500 4 218 22

The total fair values of shares vested during the vears
ehicled December 31, 2021 and 2020 Were Y97 million and
¥147 million, respectively, and 2019 was ¥265 milllon. Cash

received from the exercise of stock options for the years ended
ecember 31, 20271, 2020 and 2019were not signfficant
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17. NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO CANON INC, SHAREHOLDERS PER SHARE

A reconcillation of the rumerators.and denominators of basicand diluted netincome attributable to Canon Inc. shareholders.per

share compitations ks a3 Tollows:

Years endet) December 31

Mitliohs of ven

2021 2020 2019
Basic net income atiributable to Canon Inc. Zzi871% 83,318 124,964
Biluted net income attributable to Canon inc PALWaT 23,315 124,962
Mumber of shares

Average common shares outstanding 1,045,632,588 1,049,802,187  1069,9%6,767
Effect of dilutive securitias;

Stock optiens 2T7 066 229,691 158,173
Diluted common shares outstanding 1,045,909,658  1,050,031,888  1,070,114,940

an

Net income-attributable 16 Canon Inc. shareholders per share:

Basic 20535 7537 11678

Dilired 20529 75,35 116I7

18, DERIVATIVES AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

Risk management policy

Canon apergles internaticnally, exposing 7t 1o the risk of
changesin Tersign currency sxchange rates. Derivativefinan-
cial instroments are comprised principally of forelgn sxchange
contracts utilized by the Campany and certain ofits subsid-
iaries to reduce the risk. Canon assesses foreign currency
exchange rate risk by continually menitering changes inthe
exposures and by evaluating hedging oppertunities. Canon
does not hold or issue derivative finandal instruments Tor
speculative purposes. Canon i3 also.exposed fo gredit-related
losses in the event of nonsperformance by counterparties to
derivative financial instraments, but it is notexpected that any
counterparties will fall 1o meettheir obligations. Most of the
counterparties are- internationally recognized finandat institu-
tions and selected by Canon taking into account thelr finandial
condition, andcontracts arediversified agoss anumber of
rrgjor financial institutions,

Foreign currency exchange rate risk management
Lanon’s infernational operations expose Canon to the risk
of changes'in foreign currency exchange rates. Canon uses
foreign exchange coptracts to manage certan foreign aur-

rency exchange exposures principally from the exchange of
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U.5. dollars and euros into fapanese yer. These contracts are
primarily used t¢ hedge the forsign currency exposure of Tore-
casted intercompany sales and intercompany irade recelvables
that are genominated in foreign currendies. In accordance with
Canon's policy, 8 speciiic portion of Torelgn currency exposure
resuiting from Torecasted intercompany sales are hedged using
foreign exchange contractswhich principally mature within
three rmonths.

Cash flow hedge

Changes inthe fairvatue of derivative financial instruments
desigriated as cash flow hedges, induding foreign exchange
contracts associated with forecasted intercompany sales,

are reported inaccurmulated other comprehiensive income
{loss). These-amounts are subseguently reclassified into sarn-
ings.in the same pericd as the hedged Hems affect sarnings.
Substantially all amounts recarded in accurnulated other
comprehensive income (loss) as of December 3%, 2021 are
sxpecied to be recognized in et sales over the next twelve
months. Changes in the fair value-of a forslgn exchange
contract for the period between the date that the forecastad
intercormpany sales ocour and it maturity date are racognized
in 2arnings.



Derivatives not designated as hedges
Canon-hasentered into certain foreign exchange contracts
to primarily offset the earnings impact related to fluctustions
inforeign currency exchange rates associated with certain
assets denomingted in forsign clrrendies. Although these

FINANCIAL SECTION

foreign exchange contracts have not been designated as
hedges as required inorder 1o apply hedge accounting, the
contracts are effective fromran econormic perspective. The
changesin the fair value of these contracts are recorded in
earnings immediately

Contract amaounts of foreign exchange contracts at December 31, 2021 and 2020 are set forth below

December 21

Mithons of yen

2021 2020
To sell foreign currencies 169,307 132,721
To tuy fereign currencies 27453 27,220

Fair value of derivative Instruments in the consolidated balance sheets
The following tables present Canon's derfvative instruimients measurad at gross fairvalue as reflectad Inthe consclidated balance

shipets at Decernber 21, 2027 and 2020,

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments

Decermber 31

Millions of ven

Fair value
Balarce sheet location 2821 2020
Aszets
Foreign exchange contracts Prepaid expenses and other current assets +E 426
Liabifities:
Forsign exchange contracts Orther current lishilitiss Eres 416

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments

December 31 Mhllions. of ven
Fair yalis
Balarice sheel focation FE21 2020
Agsets:
Foreign exchange contracts Prepaid expenses and other current assets 23 107
Liahilities:
Foreldn exchange contracts Other current liabilites 1.342 809
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Effect of derivative instruments in the consolidated statements of income
The following tables present the effect of Canon's derivative instruments in the consolidated statements of income for theyears
ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019

Detivatives in cash flow hedging relationships

Years ended Decamber31 Willions of ven
Gairi {loss) recognized Saln toss) reclassified from
in. O] accurnilated OCHinto income
Aot Lacation Arnount
2021 Forelgn exchange «contracls {4,595} Net sales {3,285}
2020; Forsign exchange contracts (1,731} Net sales (3,034}
2019 Foreign exchange contracis (2,180 Net sales &61)

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments

Years ended December 31 Millions of yen

Gain (hoss) recognized In income on derivative

i

Location 2021 2020 201

)

0

X
LA

Forelgn exchange contracts Other, net {6,000} 104

19, LESSEE ACCOUNTING

Lease-costs are included in cost of sales or seliing geners! and administrative expense.in accompanying consalidated statements
olincome. Supplemental income staterment information is as Tollows.

Years ended Decamber 21 Mithotis. of ven
2521 2020
Operating leass cost 38,698 40,053
Short-term lease cost 13,861 14,245
Other lease cost 71 120
53,737 54,418

Operating lease cash flow
Supplemental cash-flowe information is as follows:

Years endad December 31 Millions of yen

LA 2020

Lash gaid Tor amount included in the measurement of lease Habilities
Uperatifig cash flows from operating leases 39,879 36,733

Noncash activity - Rights of use assets obtained in exchange for lease liabilities
Operating leases 21,588 30,700

84 CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Maturity Analysis
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The following is & schedule by year of the Tuture minimum lease payments under operating leases at December 371, 2021,

Yesrs-ending Decamber 31

Milliors of ven

2042 32,941
2023 22,512
2024 15,226
2025 10,816
2026 7,832
Thersafter 11,192
Total future minimur lease payments 100,519
Less Imputed Interest {4,189
Remaining lease term and discount rate

The following s remaining lease term and discount rate under operating leases af December 31, 20271 and 2020,

Deceirber 371 piiry 2024
Weighted-average remaining lease term &4 months 56 months
Weighted-average discount rate 2% 2%

20, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Commitments

At Decernber 31, 20271, commitments outstanding for the pur-
chase of property, plant and equicment approKirated ¥7¢,229
million, and commitments outstanding Tor the purchase of parts
and raw materials approximated ¥ 248,908 million,

Guaraniess
Canon groupies sales offices and other facilities under lease
arrangements accounted for as operating leases. Deposits
raginty for restoration made under such arrangearments aggre-
gated ¥10,812 million ahd ¥10,962 million at December 31,
202% and 2020, respectively, and are included innoncurrent
receivables in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets,
Canon provides guarantees for its employees, affiliates

and othercompanies. The guarartees for the employess are
principally made for thelt housing loans. The guarantess for
affiliates and other companies are made for their lease obliga-
tiong and bank loans to facilitale finanding.

Canon would have 1o perferm under a guarantee if the
horrower defaults en a payment within the contract terms. The
contract terms are T year to 15 vears in case of employess with
housing loans, and 1 vear to 5 yearsin case of affiliates and
other companies with lease obligations.and bank loans. The
maxirmurm-amount of undiscounted payrments Canon would
havehad fo miake in the event of default is ¥2,078 million at
Dscember 31, 2021, The carrving amounts of the liabilities
recognized for Canon's obligations as & guarantor under those
guarantessat December 31, 2021 werenot significant:
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Carion glso offers assurance-type wartanties under which it gererailly guaraniess the performance of products delivered an

services rendered for a certain period or term: bstimated product warranty costs are recorded at the time revenusg i

srecognized

and areincluded in seliing, general and adiministrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of income.
Estimates for awrued product warranty costs are based on nistorical experience. Accrued product warranty costs arg induded in
actrued expersesin the accompanying consdlidated balance shests and the changes for the years ended Decernber 31, 2021

and 2020 are summarized as follows

Years-ended. December 31 Millions of yen

2027 2020
Balanca at beginning of the year 14,200 15,846
Additions 15,687 11,355
Lititization {14,528} 10,657)
Other {1,010} (2,244
Balance atend of the year 15,849 14,300

Legal proceedings

Canon is involved in various claims and legat actions atising

in the ordinary course of business. Canon has recorded provi-
sions for Habilities when it is probable that Habilities have been
incurred and the amount of loss can be ressonably estimated.
Canoh feviews these provisions atleéast quarterly and adjusts
thase provisions to reflect the impact of the negotiations,
settlernents, rullngs; advice of legal counsel anu other

information‘and events pertaining 1o 2 particular <ase. Based
onits experience, although itgation 5 Inharently unpradict-
able, Canon beliaves thatany damage amounis claimed in
oulstanding matters are not @ meaningful indicator of Canon’s
potertial liability. In the opinion of management, any reason-
ably possible range of Josses from outstanding miatters would
r%ot have armaterial adverse eftéct on Canon’s consolidated
financial position, results.of operations, and cash flows.

27 INSCLOSURES ABCUT THE FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND CONCENTRATIONS OF

CREDIT RisK

Fair value of finandal instruments

The estirrated falr values of-Canen’s financisbinstrumernts at Decermber 31, 2021 a

nd 7020 are set Torth below, The Tollowing

summary excludes cash and cash equivalents, trade recelvablas, noncurrent receivables, short-term oans, trade payables and
gccrued expenses, and the Talr values of these instruments approgimate thelr cartying amounts, The summary also excludes
investments and derivative instruments which are disclosed in Note 2 and Note 22, and Note 18, respectively.

December 31 Millisrs of ven
2021 2020
Carrying Extimated Carying Estimated
arnount fairvalue amount alr value
Longrenm debt, including currentipstallrents (177.410) (177,343} 346317y (346,27%5)

The following methods and assumiptions are used 1o a5ti-
miate thefalr value i the above table,

Long-term debt

Carion’s long-term debt instruments are dassified as Level 2
instrurnents and valued based orihe pregent valus of future
cash flows assoviated with sach instrument discounted using
current market borrowing rates for similar debt instruments
of comparable maturity. The levels are more fully described in
Mote 22,
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Limitations of fair value estimates

Falr value estimates are made af a spediic point in tirme, based
onrelevant market information and information about the
financial instruments. These estimates are subjective in nature
and involve uncertainties and rmatters of significant fudgment
and therefore cannot be determined with precision. Changess
in‘assumptions could significantly affect thesstimates.

Concentrations of credit risk
Mesingle custorner accounted for morethan 10 parceritof con-
solidated wade receivables as of Decermnber 31, 2021 or 2020,



22. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

FINANCIAL SECTION

Fair value is the price that would be received fo sell anassetor paid to transter a lability (arvexit price) inthe priricipal or most
advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly fransaction between marke? participants atthe measurement date. A
thiee-level fait value hierarchy that priorizes the inputs used 1o measure fair valug isas follows:

Level T Inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identi-

cal assets or liabilities,

Level 2 Inputs are guoted prices for simiilar assets or lahilis
ties inactive markets, quoted prices foridentical or
simitar assets.or liabilitles in markets that are not
active, inputs other than quotad prices thatare
observable, andinputs That dre gerived principally

from or corroborated oy observable market data by

correiation or other means,

Level 3+ Inputs are derived from valu
whiche one or more significant Inputs or value drivers
are unobservable, which reflect the reparting entity’s

owrt assumotions about the

ation techniauss in

assumptions that mar-

ket participants would use I extablishing 4 price.

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis

i

The following tables present Canon’s assets-and liabllitiesthiat aremeasured at Talr valug on atecurring basis consistent with the
fair value hletarchy at December 31, 2027 and 2020,

December 31 Millions of yer
204%
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assels
Lash and cash equivalents s 504 i 560
nvestmients:

Fund trusts and others 281 328 e 409

Fouity securitiss 28,640 o e 28,840
Prepaid expenses-and other current assets

Derivatives e &5 - 65
Total assels 28,821 5493 e 28,814
Liabilites:

Other cyrrent lizhilities.
Derivatives o 2,118 ot 2,118
Total tabilities i 2,118 i 2,119
scambet 31 Millions of yen
2020
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assaty
Cash and cash eguivalents e 500 — 500
investrents:

Funid trusts and others 284 248 - 532

Euity Securities 18683 e — 18,683
Prepald expenses and other current assets:

Derivatives - 533 e 533
Total assets 18,967 1,281 e 20,248
biabilites:

Othar current liabilites:

Derivatives e 1,225 — 1,225

Total liabiities e 1,225 e 1,225
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Leval 1 investments are comprised principally of Japanese
equity securities, which are valued using an unadjusted guoted
market price-in active markets with sufficient veiume and
frequenty of transactions. Level 7 tash and cash eguivalents
are valtied based on market approach, Using guoted prices. for
identical assets in markets that are not active.

Derivative financial Instruments are comprised of Toreign
exchange contracts. Level 2 derlvatives are valued using
guotes obtained from counterparties or third parties, which

23. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Canoh reports In four segments: the Printing Business Unit
thedmaging Business Unit, the Meadical Business Unit, andthe
Industrial and Others Business Unit, wihich are based.on the
organizatiohal structure and Information reviewed by Canon’s
rranagement 1o evaluate results and altocate resources,

Based on the realignment of Canon’sinternal reporting and
rranagement structure, from 2021, Canon haschanged the
narme and structure of segments from Cffice Business Unit,
imaging System Business Unit, Medical Systern Busingss Unit
and Industry and Others Business Unit to Printing Business
Unit, Imaging Business Unit, Medical Business Unit, and
Industrial and Others Business Unit. Major changes include
mmoving Inkiet printers from imaging Systern Business Unit 1o
the Printing Business Unit, the same business unit-as Oifice
ruttifunction devices (MFDs) and Laser multifunction print-
ars (MFPs), and mioving Networkecameras from Industry and
Others Business Unit to the lmaging Susiness Unit, the same
bissiness unit as Irerchangesable-lans digital cameras, Frior
peried amounts alse have been reclassified,

The primary products induded in each segrmeént are as follows;

Printing Business Unit;

Office muitifunction devices (IMFDs)/ Document solutions./
Laser mulifunction printers (MFRs) / Laser printers /

Inkiet printers {lmage scanners /1 Calculators /

Digital continuous Teed presses:/ Digitalshesl-fed- presses/
Large format printers
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are perivdicaliy validated by pricing miodels Using observable
markat inputs, such-as Torelgn currency exchange rates and
interest rates, based o market approach.

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a
nohvecurring basis

Therewere no significant assets or lighitities-to be measured
atfair valus ona nonrecurring basis during the vear ended
Decermber 31, 2021 and 2020,

Imaging Business Unit:

Interchangeable-lens digital cameras ¥ Interchangeable: lenses /
Diglital compact cameras /Comipact photo printers /

Network cameras / Video managermeant seftwara/

Video content analvtics software / Digital camcorders/

Digital cinema cameras / Broadcast equipment/

Muttimedia projectors

Medical Business Unit!
Cornputed tofnography (CT) systems /
Diagnostic ultrasound systerms/ Diagnostic X-ray systems /
Magnetie resoriance imaging (MR systems./

iinical chernistry analyzers 7 Digital radiography systems #
Ophthalmic eguipment

Industrial and Others Business Unit:

Serniconductor Hthography equipmerit /FPD (Flat panel
display} lithography equipment/ OLED disglay manufacturing
sguipment / Vacuum thin<ilm deposition equipment / Die
bonders/ Handy terminals / Document scanners

The accounting policies of the segments are substantially the
same as those described in the significant accounting policies in
Note T, Canon evaluate results and ajlogate resources for each
segmant based on income before income taxes,



FINANCIAL SECTION

information about operating rasuits ang assets for sach segment as of and for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and
2049 is as follows:

Milliors of yen

indiistrial and Corporate and
Printing henaging Medical Others elirinations Corsolidated
203
Net sales:
External customers 1,934,092 £51.484 480,028 449,915 {2,083} 3,513,357
Irtersegment 4,835 2,038 333 o8 817 {107,093} i
Total 1,938,847 653,532 430,262 545,742 {108,126} 3,513,357
Operating cost and expenses 5713154 574,814 450,947 501,434 {go0% 33231438
Operating profit 235,693 T8I 29420 44,308 {98,227} 281,218
Other income (deductions) 7,258 {256} 4,876 342 8,587 20,788
Income before income taxes 232 957 78462 34,295 44,8650 {B7.654) 202,708
Total assets 1,009,922 235,743 31,447 345,883 2,847,653 4,750,888
Depreciation and amortization 69,548 21,840 12,435 21,887 89,745 221,246
Capital expendiiures 63,609 12,069 11,888 25,759 55,675 179,000
2040
het sales:
External customers 1,800,898 538,560 435 368 3BE 1FT {7607 2.160,243
intersagraent 3,529 1,754 708 76,345 (82,334) ot
Total 1,804,427 541,314 435,074 461,522 (B3.094y 2,160,243
Cperating cost and expenses 1,657,319 535,584 430830 447 006 4 957 3,049 696
Operating profit 147,108 5,730 25,244 24,516 (88,051 110,547
Other income-{deductions) 5078 {778} 300 1,571 13,864 19,733
Income before income faxes 152,184 4,952 25 544 21,687 (74,087% 130,280
Total assets 913,931 239,605 286,749 348 614 2,836,715 4525614
Depraciation and amortization 69,725 22,201 11,781 28,720 55,398 227,825
Capital expenditires 56,613 12,540 7,244 21,276 64,054 161,727
2019
Met sales:
Externsl customers 2,089,024 550,108 437,456 405,114 1,600 3,593,299
Intersegment 3,440 15014 1,065 88,670 (94,780) i
Total 2,082 464 551,706 438 525 493,784 (93,180 3,593,299
Dperating cost and expenses® 1,808 436 634,773 471,781 465,197 {1,308 3,418,879
Operating profit 184,028 26,833 256,744 28,587 (G1,877; 174,420
Otber Tncome {deductions) 5,066 elels 53%9 —_ 13,563 21,073
Income before Income faxes 180,084 27,838 77,283 28,587 (78,309} 185,493
Total assets 1,002.778 288 545 273,875 310,110 2,386,860 4:771.848
Depreciation and amortization 74.958 24 581 11,760 29,086 85,062 237,327
Capttal expenditures 61,789 18,829 7,074 28,436 85,000 211,228

“Iwring 2018, the Company implermented a restruchuring plan centered In Burope with the goal of reorgenizing sales structure and improving profitability
Fainly T the Printing Business Undt, The emiployee severance tharges. in the Printing Business Unit ander the plan fof the year ended December 31, 2018
wergl¥15,656 million and most of the charges are included i selling, genersl and administrative expenses-in the consolidated statements of income. The
restructuring charges Tor the vears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 wars nst significant.
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iritersegmertt sales are recorded at the same prices used i
transactions with third parties. Expenses not directly associ-
ated with specific segments are alfocated based on the most
raasonable rmeasures applicable, Corporate expenses include
certait corporate researchand developrment expanses.
Amortization costs of identified intangible assets result-
ing from the purchase price allocation of Toshiba Medical
Systerns Corporation:{currently, Canon Medical Systerns

Corpotation; are also included in corporate expenses.
Segment assets are based on those directly associated -with
each segment. Corporate assets primarily consist of cashand
cash egivalents, investments; deferred tai assets, goodyill,
identified intangible assets from acquisitions and ¢orporate
properties. Capital expenditures represent the additions o
property. plant and equipment and intangible assets mea-
sured on an accrual basis,

Information about sales by product and service to external customers for each segment for the years ended December 31,

20271, 2020and 2019 is asfollows

Years ended Decembier 31

Millions of veor

22 2020 2019

Printing
Office multifunction devices 4F 7000 455 357 573,297
Office others 279,365 267,123 252 378
Office 756,386 722 480 865,675
Laser printers 560,159 502,157 £524,597
inkjet printers. and thers 328,933 326,041 296,622
Prosumer 889,091 828,198 921,215
Production 288555 250220 302,130
Total 1,834,012 1,800,898 2,089,024

hnaging
Cameras 432,885 347,245 466,306
MNetwork cameras and Dthers 218,809 192,320 193,799
Total 651,454 539,560 650,105

Medica!
Diagnostic eguiproert 480 025 435,362 A37 455

Industrial and Qthers

Lithography equipmant 213,699 142,516 157,160
Industral equipmeant 12274 126,762 107,287
Cthers 123,942 115,899 140,673
Total 444,915 385,177 465414
Corporate {2,093} {760 1,600
Consolidated 3,513,357 3,160,243 3,583,299

Based on the realignment of Cahan's internal reporting ang
management structure, from the beginning of 2021, Canon
has changed praducts category. Praduction includes Digltal
continuous Teed presses, Dightal sheet-fed presses-and Largs
format printers inthe grimary products. Network cameras and
Gthers include Netywork cameras, Video randgement soft-

CANON ANNUAL REPORT 2021

wiare, Video content analytics software, Digital camcorders,
Digital cinemna cameras, Breadcast equlpment and Mulimedia
projectors inthe primary producis. industrial equipment
includes OLED display manufacturing equigment, Vacuum
thirefilr deposition equipment and Die bonders i the prirnary
products. Prior period amounts alse have been reclassified.
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information by major gesgraphic area as of and for the vears ended Decembar 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019 is as foliows:

Millions of ven

2021 20240 2019
Net sales;
Japan 830,378 808,305 872,534
Americas 968,838 852 451 1,029,078
Europe 254,858 795,616 882 480
Asia and Gcéanta 819,242 705,871 809,207
Total 3,593,367 3,180,243 3,593,299
Long-lived assets:
Japan 986,638 1,091,108 1,053,074
Americas 152,137 133,648 148,669
Europe 158,297 175,516 161,050
Asia and Coeahia 141,915 143,265 158,217
Total 1,438,987 1,463,538 1,552,010
Net salesare attributed to areas based on the location ¥507,909 million, ¥801,378 million and ¥958,442 million
where the products areshipped and the sewvices are per- for the years ended Decermber 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019,
formed to the customers, Othier than in Japan and the United respectively.
States, Canon does not conduct business in-any individual Long-lived assets represent property, plant ang equipment,
country in which its sales in that country exceed 10% of intangible assets, and operating lease right-of-use assets for
consolidated netsales, Netsales i the United States were each geographic area,
24, SUBSEGUENT EVENT
On lanuary 5, 2027, Canon borrowed ¥70,000 million milhior under 115 existing overdraft faciiities with Mizuho
ynder {15 existing overdraft facilities with Mizuho Bark, Bank, Lid and MUFRG Bank, Lid. Tof required operating
Lid, and MUFG Bank, Ltd. for required operating funds, funds. The overdralt Taciiities bear interast at a rate equal 1o

Additicnally, on March 16,2022, Canon borrowed ¥30.000 s base rate plus a spread.

SCHEDULE Il VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Yegrs ended December 31 Kilions of yen
Balance at beginning.  Addition-charged.  Deduction bad delbits Transtation Balance at end
of period 10.income wititter off adjustiments-and tther of period
2521
Allowarice Tor credit losses
Trade recelvablas 11645 1,857 £1,5401 532 12494
Finance receivables 3,068 2,331 {2,157 545 3781
2020:
Allowance for credit losses
Trade receivables 10,350 3419 {1,883 {150} 11,645
Finance receivables 2,627 7,351 {2,199 289 3,068
2018
Allowance for credit losses
Trade recelvables 11,477 1,840 {2,189; {769} 10,359
Finance receivables 2,675 1,495 {1:653) 110 2627
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MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The management of Canon is responsible for establishing and maintaining adeqkaae internal control over financial reporting.
Internal control over fmanc jal *eportmg is defined in Rule 188-15(f) and 150-15() premulgated under the Bichiatige Act; 85 a pro-
cess designed by, of under the supervision of, the company’s principal emmwe and principal Tinancisl officers and effected by
the company< ooard-of directors, management and other persoringl, to provide reasonable assiirance regarding the reliabifity of
financlal *epor‘vm and the preparation of financial staterments for edernal purposes In accordance with ULS. generally accepted
accounting principles and includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain fo the maintenance of records that in reason-
able detail accurately and fairly refiect the transactions and dispositions of the-assets of Canon; {2) provide reasonable assur-
ance-that fransactions are recorded:as necessary 1o permit preparation of finandial statements in-accordancs with LS. generally
gecepted accounting principles, and thet receipts and expenditures of Canon are being made only in accordance withauthoriza-
tiens of management and directors of Canon; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of Canons assetsthal could have 2 material effect on the Tinandial statements.

Because there are inherent limitations 1o the effectiveness of any systemn of disclosure controls and procedures, induding the pos-
siblity of human error and the sircumvertion or overriding of the controls and procedures, internal control over finandaireporting
fs mot irtended to provide absolute assurance that a risstatement ofour-financial statements would be prevented o detected.
Accordingly even effective disclosure controls-and progedures can only provide reasonable assurance of achisving their control
ohijectives. Projections of any evaluation of effectivensss 1o future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inad-
equate because ofchanges in conditions, or that the-degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Canen's management assessed the effectivensss of internal control over finandial reporting as of December 31, 2021 In mak-
ing this assessment, management used the criteria established in Intarnal Conirol-integrated Framework (2013) isstied by the
Committes of Sponsaring Crganizations of the Treadway Commission ("COSO™),

Based on s assessment, management cancluded that, as of December 31, 2021, Canaon’s internal contrel over financial report-
ing was effeciive.

Lanons independent registered public accounting tirm; Deloitte Touche Tobmatsu LLC, has issued an audit regort on the effec-
tiveness of Canon's internal control over financiat reporting. This report appears inltem 18,

Remediation of Previously Reported Material Weaknesses in internal Control over Financial Reporting

As described in Canon's previous Annual Report on Form 20-F, Canon'’s management concluded that Canon's internal contigl
over financial reperting was noteffective-asof December 31, 2020 due-to identified deficiencies in the risk assessment and-con-
trol activities principles assodated with the COS0 framework, which, sither individually or in the aggregate, constituted mate-
rial weaknessesrelating to (i) identifving and analyzing significant changes that could impact the system o internat control and
contrel activities, and G} integrating contrgl activities to ensure:that responses 1o fisks are performed in a timely manner. Factors
cortributing 1o the material weaknesses described above included the Taillure to generate or maintain sufficient evidence support-
ing Canon's corsideration of the significant changes and the impact on its internal controls over financial reporting.

BDuringthe vear enided Decembier 31, 20271, manadernent implementad measures toremediate the-identified deficiencles, includ-
ing gef“efat onyand maintenance of tsus‘* cien te&fﬁc«‘eme o support Canon's consideration of signtficant changes and the impact of
such changes on s systern of internal control and control activities. The following remediation steps were completed:
s-{mproved open and timely comimunications within the organization with established policies and pracadures, in widting, To fagilitate

and maintain the identification of significant changes that couldimpact Canon's system of internal control and control activities

= Strengthened controls and documentation around managements review of accounting positions and treatment

=« imiplemanted controls and documentation around manaqementa review of the basis applied for transactions 1o be considerad
material to the financial statementsin atimely. manne

Asa result of these efforts, Canoen’s management concluded that the material weaknesses had been remediated as of December
3%, 2021 ;

Exeeutwe Vice Preogident & CFO
March 30, 2022
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Deloitte.

ouche Tabm
Marinoucht M i
A Marunoy

THG-8360

To the Shareholders and theBoard of Directors of
Canen ing,

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the-accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Canon Inc. and subsidiaries (the "Company™) as of
Becember 31, 2021 and 2020, the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, eguily, and cash Hows,
for each of the two years in the peringd ended Decernber 31, 2021, and the related notes and the scheduls listed in the Index
st ltem 18 {collectively referred fo as the “financial staternents”). In our opinion, thefinancial statements present fairly, inall
material respects, the finandial position of the Company as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for each of the two yearsin the pericd ended December 31, 2021, inconformity with accounting principles
gererally sccaptad inthe United States of America.

We have aso audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United States
(PCADE), the Company’s intetnal.control aver financial reporting as.of Decermber 31, 2021, basad on criteria sstablished
ininternal Control — Integrated Framework (2013} issued by the Committer of Sponsoring Crganizations of the Treadway
Comrission and our report dated March 30, 2022, expressed anUngualiied opinfon-on the Company’s internalcontral over
financial reporting.

Basis for Opinion

These finandal staternents are the responsibility of the Company’s managemeant. Our responsbility is to-express an apinjon-on
the Company’s Tinandial staternents based on ouraudits, We are.a publicaccotnting firm registered-with the PCACR and are
reguired to be fndependent with respect 1o the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable
rufes and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission-and the PCAOR,

We conducted auraudits i atcordance with the standards of the PCAOB, Thosé standards recuire that we plan and perform
the auditto oblain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of miaterial misstaternent, whether
due to error or fraud, Dur audits Included performing procedures to assess the tisks of materiab misstaterment of the finandial
statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond 1o those risks. Such procedures included
exardining, on a test basis, evidende regarding the amounts and disclasures in the financial staternents. Our audits also included
evaluating the accounting prindples used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation.of the finandial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion,

Critical Audit Matters

The critical audit matters communicated below are matters arising from the current-period audit of the finandal staterments

that were communicated orrequired toibe communicated o the audit committer and that (1) relate to accounts or disclosures
that are material to the financial statements and (2} involved our espedially chalienging, subjective, or complex judgments. The
cormmunication of critical auditmatters does not aiter in any way our opinion onthe finendial statements, taken a5 3 whole, aid
e are noel, by cotmmunicating the oltical audit matiers below, providing separate apinions on the crifical auditmatters or on the
accounts or disciosures to which they relate.
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Goodwill—Medical Reporting Unit—Refer to Notes 1 and 8 to the Financial Statements
Criticat Audiit Matter Description

The Company tests goodwill Tor impairment annually inthe Tourth quarter of each year, or more frequently i indicators of
potential impaimment exist. Falr value of & reporting unit is determined primarily based onthe discounted cash flow analysis,
which involves sstimatss of projected futire cash flows sndidiscount rates: The Company’s total consolidated goodwillwas
¥953,850 million as of Decemiper 37, 2021, 6F which ¥537, 183 million was allocated 1o the Medicdl Reparting Unit, Estimates of
grojected future <ash flows for the Medical Repotting Unit are-based ona mid-term managemant plan that considerad the Tulwre
market growth of medical equipmentand growth in geographies where the Company operates its medical business, kstimates
of discount rates are determined based o the weighted sverage cost of capilal, which considers primarily market end industry
data as well as speciic risk factors, With regard to the goodwill attributed to the Medical Reporting Unit, fair value in excess of
reported carying value as 8 percentage is lower than other reporting Units, As 3 vesult, a future reduction in cash flows of the
Medica! Reporting Unit could frigger an impalrment,

Given thesignificantjudgrmernts made by management o estimate the fair value of the Medical Reporting Unit, performing audit
pracedures 1o evaliate the reasonableness of managerment’s estimates and assumptions related to the projected future cash
Hows and selection of the discount rate required & high degree of auditor judgment and an incraased extent of effort, including
the rieed 1o invelve fair value specialists:

How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit

Oy gudit procedires rélated to.the projected tuttire cash flows gnd selection of the distount rate used by management 1o
estimate the fair value of the Medical Reporting Unit indluded the following, among others:

».YWe lested the effectiveness of controls over management’s goodwill impairment evaluation; including management’s controls
aver projected future cash flows-and seiection of thediscount rate,

* We evaluated managernent’s ability to accurately project Tutire cash flows by comparing actual resulis to managerment’s
historical projections.

= We eyvalusted the regsonableness:of management’s projected futurecash flows by comparing the projections o
~Historical cash flows,
~~Jriternal communications to management and the Board of Directors,

—Projgcted information included in Company press releases as well as in apnalyst and industry reports for the Company and
certatn ol ils peercompanies,

o

With the assistance of our fair value spedalists, we evaluated the reasonableness of the valuation methodology and discount

rate by

wExamining whether the methodology, assumptions, and models used were consistent with sxisting valustion practices that
are both generally accepted in practice and recogrized as approgriate in similar circumstances and testing the use and
weighting of valuation technigues.

~=Testing the source infermation underlying the deterrmination of the discount rate and the-mathematical accuracy of the
calciilation.

—Developing a range of independent estimates and compating those 1o the discount rate selecied by management.
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Revenue—Long-Term Contracts in the Indusirial and Others Segment—~Refer to Note 15 fo the Finandal Statements
Criticat Audiit Matter Description

The Company recognized revenus onlong-termr contracts of certalry Industrial equipment in the Industrial and Others segment
totaling ¥105,828 million for the vear ended December 27, 2021, The Company recogrized revenue over the contract term
{"overtme"} for long-term contracts of certain industrial eguipment for which there Is no alterpative use and forwhich the
Company has anenforceable dght to payment frorm customers for performiance completed to date The Company considers
costs incurred and Tuture project costs in accordance with the input methiod 1o determine progress, and a5 such, reveniie is
recagnjzed over time based on costs Incurred To date plus the estimate of margins st complation. Changesin job performance,
job vonditions, estimated margin and finalcontract settlements may resull in revisions To projected costs and reveriue and are
recognized in the period in which the revisions to estimates are idemified and the amounts can be reasonably estimated. Facars
thet may affect future project costs and margins include production efficiencies and avallability and costs of labor and materials

Given the udgments necessary tosestimate future project costs and-the margins at completion of certain long-term contracts
tor certainindustrial eguipment in-the Industrial and Others segrment.audilingthese estirnates for certain contracts required
axtensive aUtit éffort and & high degres of sliditor judgment.

How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed i the Audit

Quraudit procedures related 1o the estimates of fulure costs and the margins et cormpletion for certain fong-term contracts of
industrial equiprment irrthe Industrial and Others segrment included the Tollowing, among others:

* \We tasted the effectivensss of controbs over long-term contract revenue recognized over fime, including management's
controls over the-estimates of future costs and the margins at completion-for certain long-term contracts.

* Weevalugied managerment’s ability toeslimate future costs and marginsat-completion accurately by comparinig actusl costs

ard margins at completion Tor similar contracts that were previously completed to management’s historical estirnates for
such contracts.

» We evaluated the reasonableness-of management’s estimates of future costs and marg»m at-completion by camparmg the
estimates o management’s work plans, engineering specifications, meeting minutes and fee proposals, and by performing
corroborating Inguities with managément, project mahagers, and enginesrs, among dthefs,

s We selected samples from actual.costs Incurred subsequentioc December 31, 2027 and traced them to the future costs
estirnate schedule (o determing whether the selected cost was properly considered inthe future costs.

De f Oifre Toerthee Toh ma TS LL¢

March 30, 2022

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2020,
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Deloitte.

ouche Tabm
Marinoucht M i
A Marunoy

THG-8360

To the Shareholders and theBoard of Directors of
Canen ing,

Opinton on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

e

Company” ¥ as of December
3%, 2027, based on oriterls established in Infemal Control — Infegrated Frarnework (2013} issued by the Committes of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSOY I our opindon, the Company maintained, in all material
respects, effective intermnal control aver financial reporting as of December 31, 2021, based on ¢riteria established in infernal
Control — integrated Framework (2013} issued by COSO.

We have audited the internalcontrol ever financial reporting of Canotine. and subsidiaries {the

We have also audited, inarcordance with the standards of thie Public Comgany Accdunting Qversiaht Board (United States)
(PCACE), the consolidated financial statements as ot and for the year ended December 31, 2021, of the Company and our
report dated March 30, 2022, eXpressed an ungualified opinion on thosg financlal statements,

Basis for Opinion

The Cornpany’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over finandial reporting and for its
assessmentofthe effectivaness of internalcontrol over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Report
orvinternal Control over Financiat Reporting. Ourresponsibiiity s to express-an cepinion onthe Companys:internal control

over financial reporting based on our audit, Weare & public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required 1o

be independent with sespedt to the Company in accordance with the U5, federal securities laws and the applicable rules ang
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Comnission and the FCACE.

We conducted our auditin accordance with the standards of the PCACGR. Those stendards reguire that we plan and perform
the auditto obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal cantrol over financial reporting was maintained in all
material respacts. Our augit included obtaining an understanding of iInternal contig! over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal-contrdi based ari tha
assessed risk, ard performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the dreumstances. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
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FINANCIAL SECTION

Diefinition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A cormpany’s internal control over-financial reporting is & process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
refiabifity of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principies. A company's Internal control ever financial reporting inciudes those policies and proceduras that
{1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detall, atcurstely ang faldly reflect the ransactions and dispositions
of the assets.of the company: (2 provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded-as necessary to permit preparation
of financial stataments in accordance with generally accepted accounting prindples, and thetreceipts and expenditures of the
company are being made anly In accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company, and (3} provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’
assets that could have a material effect on the finandal statements.

Becguse of s inherent imitations: internal control over Hinandial reporting roay rict prevent-or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evallation of etfectiveness 1o future periods are subject to the fisk that conltiols may become inadeguate
becauseof changes in conditions, of that the degree of compliance with the policies orprocedires may deteriorate,

Defafw&F%aTﬁﬂ\wfm Ll

March 30, 2022
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRI

Bultdive o butter
working werkl

To the Sharcholders and the Board of Directorsof
Canon Ine.

Opinion on the Finaneial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated staternents of income, comprehensive income, equity and cash flows of Canon
Ing: and subsidiaries (the Company) for the vear ended December 31, 2019, and the reluted notes and lnancial statement schedule
listed in the dndex at Ttem 18 (collectively referned to as the “consolidated financial statements™). In owr opinion, the consclidated
finaneial statements present faidy, viallmiaterial respects, the restlts of the Company’s operitions and s cash tows Tor the vear
ended Decembar 31, 2019, inconformity with 115, generally aceepted accomting principles.

Basis-for Opinion

These fnancial statements are the responsibility of the Company s management. Ourresponsibility 1510 exptéss att opinion ol the
Company s Ninancial statéments based oncowr audits. We are.a public.accounting frm registered with the PCAOB:-and are required
tor beindependent with respect to the Company inaccordance with the U8 federal securities Jaws.and the applicable mles.and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commitssion and the PCAOR,

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAUB. Those standards require that we plar and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assuranece about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether dueto
error orfraud. Cur audits included performing procedures to-assess the rigks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to error or fraud, and perfonming procedures that respond 1o those risks. Sueh procedures included examiming, on

a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclostires 1 the financial statements. Our audits also metuded evaluating the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
finanecial statements. We helieve that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

@mt-“MMLL&

We served as the Company’s anditor for SEC reporting purposes from 2004, and as its Japanese statutory auditor from 1978, to
2020,

Tokvo, Japan

March 27, 2020,

except for the effects on the consolidated tinancial statement of the correction of an error as desoribed in Note Hy) and the
reabigniment of segments described i Note 23, as to-wihich the dates are

March 30, 2021 and March 30, 2022, respectively
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TRANSFER AND
REGISTRAR'S OFFICE

Canon inc
302, Shirmomaruke 3-chome, Ohta-ku, Tokye 146-8501, fapen

Banager of the Register of Shareholders

Mizuho Trust & Banking Co., Ltd.
1-3-3, MarUnouchi, Chivoda-ku, Tokyo 100-8241, laban

Depositary and Agent with Respert tn American
Depositary Recelpts for Common Shares

IFMorgan Chase Bank, NA,
383 Madison Avenue, Floor 11, New York, NY 10179, USA

MAIJOR CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

{As of Diécember 31, 70213

Manufacturing

Canoty Precision inc.

Canon Tokki Corporation

Fukushirma Canoning.

Canon Medical Systems Corporation
Canon Eectron Tubes & Devices Co., Hd
Canon Components, inc.

Canon Semiconductor Eguipment Inc,
Canon Chemicaks Inc.

Canortlectronics ng.

Canon Finetach Nisca inc,

Canon. ANENVA Corporation

Magahama Cangn Inc.

Canon:Machinery 1nc

Qita-Cancn Materials Inc.

Oita Canoh Inc

Magasaki-Canon Inc

Miyazaki Canon tnc.

Canon Virginfa, Inc.

Canor Bretagne S.AS,

Canon Preduction Printing Netherlands BV
Canon Praduction Printing Germany GmbH & CoKG
Ay Communications AB

Canon Dalian Busingss Machines, Ihc.
Canon Suzhoul Inc.

Canon Zhorgshan Business Machines Co., Lt
Canon ing, Tabwan

CanonVietnam Co., Lid.

Canon Hi-Tech {Thalland) {id

Canon Prachinburt {Thalland) Lid.

Canon Business Machines (Philippines), Inc,
Canon Cpto (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd:

Canon Medical Systerns Manufaciuring Asia Sdn. Bhd,
Canorr-Machinery (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.

SHAREHOLDER
INFORMATION

Stock Exchange Listings:

Tokyo, Nagoya, Fukucks, Sappore and New York
stock exchanges

American Depositary Receipts are traded on the New York
Stock Exchange (CAJ).

Ordinary General Meeting of Shamholders:
March of each vear

Further Information:

For publicationsor information, please conlagt the
Public Affairs Heauguarters, Caron Ing., Tokye,
or access Canon’s Website at global.canon/en

Research & Development
Canon Research Centre France S.AS,

Marketing % Other

Caron Marketing Japan ing.
Canon Systemn and Suppert inc
Canon T Solutions tnc.

{anon Medical Finance Co, Hid.
Canon USA Inc

Canon Canada nc,

Canon Solutions America, Inc.
Caron Financial Services, Inc,
Canon Medical Systems USA, Inc.
Axis AR

Canon Europa NV

Caron Europe Lid.

Canon Ry LLC

Canon UKy Ltd

Canon Deutschiand GrmbH
Canon Schweiz) AG

Canon Nederland NV

Canon France S AS.

Canon Middie East FZ-LLC
Canon ltalla S.oA.

Canon Medical Systerms Europe BY
IMilestone Systerms A

Canon (Chinay Co., Lid,

Canon Hongkong Co., L
Canon Sermiconductor Equipment Talwar,. Inc.
Canon Singapore Ple. Lid:
Canon India Pyt Lid

Canon Australia Py Ltd,
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